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Florida Public Service Commission 5 ol
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard =~ %’

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850

Re: In re: Application for Certificate to provide alternative local
exchange telecommunicatione service by SBC National, Inc.

Dear Ms. Bayo:

Enclosed for filing are the original and 6 copies of the SBC National, Inc.
("SBC") Application for Authority to Provide Alternative Local Exchange
Telecommunications Service Within the State of Florida, Also enclosed is a check in
the amount of $250.00 for payment of the application fee.

Please acknowledge your receipt of this filing on the enclosed copy of this letter.
Thank you for your consideration in this matter.
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Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director
April 16, 1999
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ce: William Adams, Esq.
Edward Eckhart, Esq.
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v SERV MISSION**
DIVISION OF COMMUNICATIONS
BUREAU OF SERVICE EVALUATION
APPLICATION FORM
for
AUTHORIT Vv VE L EXCHANGE SERVICE
WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA
Instructions
¢ This form is used as an application for an original certificate and for approval of the

assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In case of an assignment or transfer, the
information provided shall be for the assignec or transferee (See Appendix A).

¢ Print or type-a!i responses to each item requested in the application and appendices. 1f an
item is not applicable, please explain why.

¢ Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allocated space.

¢ Once completed, submit the original and six (6) copies of this form along with a non-
refundable application fee of $250.00 to:

Florida Public Service Commission
Division of Records and Reporting
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850
(850) 413-6770

¢ If you have any questions about completing the form, contact:

Florida Public Service Commission
Division of Communications

Bureau of Certification aud Evaluation
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

(850) 413-6600

DOCUMENT NUMBFR-DATE

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (ALEC) (6/98) =
Requir~4 by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, O4B7 | APRIGR
25-24 810, and 25-24.815

FPSC-RECCRUS/REPORTING




Vi This is an application for Y (check one):
(¥) Original certificate (new company)

( ) Approval of transfer of existing certificate:
Example, & non-certificated company purchases an existing company and desires
to retain the original centificate authority.

() Approval of assignment of existing certificate:
Example, a certificated company purchases an existing company and desires to
retain the certificate of authority of that company.

( ) Approval for transfer of control:
Example, a company purchases 51% of a certificated company. The Commission
must approve the new controlling entity.

2. Name of company:

SBC National, Inc. (“SBC National”)

3. Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.):
Not applicable

4 Official mailing address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, zip
code):

David R. Lopez

Vice President, National-Local Regulatory
SBC National, Inc.

175 E. Houston Street, Room: 4-A-60

San Antonio, Texas 78205

5. Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, zip code):

None at this time.
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6. Structure of organization:

() Individual ( ¥ ) Corporation

() Foreign Corporation () Forcign Partnership
() General Parinership ( ) Limited Partnership
() Other,

7. If individual, provide:
Name: Not applicable

Title:

Address:

City/State/Zip:

Te'ephone No: Fax No.:

Internet E-Mail Address:

Internet Website Address:

8. If incorporated in Florida, please provide proof of authority to operate in Florida:
(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number:

Not applicable

9. If foreign corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida:
(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number:

F99000000276

10. If using fi /a, provide proof of compliance with fictitious name statute
(Chapter 865.09, FS) to operate in Florida:

() The Florida Secretary of State fictitious name registration number:
Neot applicable
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11.  If alimited liability partnership, provide proof of registration to operate in Florida:
(a) The Florida Secretary of State registration number:

Not applicable

12.  If_a_partnership, provide name, title and address of all partners and a copy of the
partnership agreement.

Name: Not applicable

Title:

Address:

City/State/Zip:

Telephone No: Fax No.:_

Internet E-Mail Address:

Internet Website Address:

13 If a forei i provide proof of compliance with the foreign limited
partnership statute (Chapter 620.169, FS), if applicable.

(a)  The Florida registration number:

Not applicable

14.  Provide F.E.L Number (if applicable): 74-2899863

15.  Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders have
previously been:

(a) adjudged, bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or of any
crime, or whether such actions may result from pending proceedings. Provide

explanation.

Not applicable
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(b) an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated
telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If no longer

associated with company, give recason why not

Not applicable

16.  Who will serve as liaison to the Commission with regard to the following?

(a) The application:

Bruce May, Esgq.

HOLLAND & KNIGHT LLP
315 Calhoun Street, Suite 600
Tallahassee, FL 52301

(850) 224-7000 (telephone)
(850) 224-8832 (fox)
dbmay@hklaw.com (e-mail)

Edward L. Eckhart, Esq.
Vice President, General
Counsel/Secretary

SBC National, Inc.

One Bell Plaza, Room 3611
Dallas, Texas 75202

(214) 464-5402 (telephone)

(214 )464-5485 (fax)
ee9966@txmail.sbc.com (e-mail)
Page 4 of 11
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Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805,
25-24.810, and 25-24.815

OF COUNSEL:

William A. Adams, Esq.

ARTER & HADDEN LLP

One Columbus

10 West Broad Street, Suite 2100
Columbus, Ohio 43215

(614) 221-315% (tefephone)

(614) 221-0479 (fax)
wadams@arterhadden.com (e-mail)




(b)  Official point of contact for the ongoing operations of the company:

David R. Lopez

Vice President, National-Local Regulatory
SBC National, Inc.

175 East Houston Street, Room 4-A-60
San Antonio, TX 78205

(210)-351-2080 (telephone)
(210)-351-3339 (fax)
dlopez@corp.sbc.com (e-mail)

Internet website not presently available

(c) Complaints/Inquiries from customers:

David R. Lopez

Vice President, National-Local Regulatory
SBC National, Inc.

175 East Houston Street, Room 4-A-60
San Antonio, TX 78205

(210)-351-2080 (telephone)
(210)-351-3339 (fax)

dlopez@corp.sbe.com (e-mail)

Internet website not presently available

17.  List the states in which the applicant:
(a)  has operated as an alternative local exchange company:
None at this time. See Exhibit A.

(b)  has applications pending to be certificated as an alternative local cxchange
company.

None at this time. Applicant anticipates filing alternative/competitive local
exchange certification applications in many states as part of its “Naticnal-Local
Strategy.” See Exhibit A.

(c) is certificated to operate as an alternative local exchange company.

None at this time. See Exhibit A.
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(d)  has been denied authority to operate as an alternative local exchange company and
the circumstances involved.

None

(e) has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications
statutes and the circumstances involved.

None
(H has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, local
exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and the circumstances
| involved.
None
| 18. Submit the following:
A. Financial capability.

The application ghould contain the applicant’s audited financial statements for the most
recent 3 years. If the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it shall so be
stated.

SBC National, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SBC Communications Inc. (“SBC”), does
not have audited financial statements. SEC National is relying on the strength of its

parent company in beginning operations in Florida. SBC National's financial results
will be reported on a consolidated basis with the financial statements of SBC.

The unaudited financial statements should be signed by the applicant’s chief cxecuted

officer affirming that the financial statements are true and correct and should include:
' 1. the balance sheet;

See Exhibit B, Exhibit C (at 21), and Exhibit D (at 37).
2. the income statement; and
See Exhibit B, Exkibit C (at 20), and Exhibit D (at 38).

3. statement of retained earnings.

See Exhibit B, Exhibit C (at 23), and Exhibit D (at 40).
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NOTE:

This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial siatements, a projected

profit and loss statement, credit references, credit bureau reports, and descriptions of business
relationships with financial institutions.

Further, the following (which includes supporting documentation) should be provided:

1. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to
provide the requested service in the geographic area proposed to be served.

SBC'’s and Ameritech Corporation’s (hereinafter “Ameritech”™) 1998 Annual
Reports show on a consolidated basis, assets of $75.4 billion, gross revenues of
$46 billion, and net annual income of $7.6 billion. See Exhibit B.

2 written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to
maintain the requested service.

SBC’s and Ameritech’s 1998 Annual Reports show on a consolidated basis,
assets of $75.4 billion, gross revenues of $46 billion, and net annual income of
$7.6 billion. See Exhibit B.

3. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability 1o meet
its lease or ownership obligations.

SBC’s and Ameritech’s 1998 Annual Reports show on a consolidated basis,
assets of $75.4 billion, gross revenues of $46 billion, and net annual income of
$7.6 billion. See Exhibit B.

Managerial capability: give resumes of employees/officers of the company that would
indicate sufficient managerial experiences of each.

See Exhibit E.
Technical capability: give resumes of employees/officers of the company that would
indicate sufficient technical experiences or indicate what company has been contracted to

conduct technical maintenance.

See Exhibit F.
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l. REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: | understand that all telephone companics must

pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of .15 of one percent of its gross operating
revenue derived from intrastate business. Regardless of the gross operating revenue of a
company, a8 minimum annual assessment fee of $50 is required.

GROSS RECEIPTS TAX: | understand that all telephone companics must pay a gross
receipts tax of two and one-half percent on all intra and interstate business.

3. SALES TAX: | understand that a seven percent sales tax must be paid on intra and
interstate revenues.

L9}

4. APPLICATION FEE: [ understand that a non-refundable application fee of $250.00
must be submitted with the application.

UTILITY OFFICIAL:
P ’
,ﬁ,/?/ L R A H3 195 )

“ Signature Date

Peter A. Ritcher (214) 464-3969 (telephone)
Vice President & Chief Financial Officer (214) 464-5485 (fax)

SBC National, Inc.

One Bell Plaza

Room 3612

Dallas, TX 75202

ATTACHMENTS:

A - CERTIFICATE SALE, TRANSFER, OR ASSIGNMENT STATEMENT
B - INTRASTATE NETWORK
C - AFFIDAVIT
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APPENDIX A

CERTIFICATE SALE, TRANSFER, OR ASSIGNMENT STATEMENT

I, (Name) ________ Not applicable ;
( litle) of (Name of Company)

and current holder of Florida Public Service Commission Certificate Number #

have reviewed this application and join in the petitioner's request for a:

( )sale
() ransfer
() assignment

of the above-mentioned certificate.

UTILITY OFFICIAL:
Signature Date
Title Telephone No.
Address:
Fax No.
Page 9 of 11
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APPENDIX P

INTRASTATE NETWORK (if available)

SBC National intends to be a facilities-based telecommunications provider starting in
Miami and then progressing into other areas of the state. Detailed planning currently
is underway for the initial network deployment strategy. Since these plans have not
been finalized, SBC National cannot currently provide a description of the facilities to
be constructed and used. For more information, see Exhibit F, Statement of Technical
Capability.

Chapter 25-24.825 (5), Florida Administrative Code, requires the company to make available to
staff the alternative local exchange service areas only upon request.

1. POP: Addresses where located, and indicate if owned or leased.
1) 2)
3) 4)
2. SWITCHES: Address where located, by type of switch, and indicate if
owned or leased.
1) 2)
3) 4)

3. TRANSMISSION FACILITIES: POP-10-POP facilitics by type of
facilities (microwave, fiber, copper, satellite, ctc.) and indicate if owned or

leased.
POP-10-POP OWNERSHIP
1)
2)
3)
4)
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EXHIBIT A

Other States in Which Certified

SBC National, Inc. (“SBC National"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of SBC
Communications Inc. (*SBC"), has filed this application secking authority to provide alternative
local exchange service within the State of Florida. This is onc of a series of applications SBC
National will file across the nation to provide local exchange service in a minimum of 30 U.S.
marnets outside of the existing local exchange regions served by SBC and Ameritech
Corporation (“Ameritech”). Specifically, SBC National intends to enter these markets as a
facilities-based provider of local and data services initially to large business customers and then,
using the infrastructure deployed, to smaller business and residential customers. The
implementation of this strategy will provide significant benefits to the State of Florida, its
economy, and its telecommmunications industry, and to business and residential customers. SBC
National will begin to implement this “National-Local Strategy™ after SBC completes its pending

merger with Ameritech.

Following completion of the Ameritech merger, SBC National will be affiliated with
incumbent local exchange carriers that provide service in the following states: Arkansas,
California, Connecticut, lllinois, Indiana, Kansas, Michigan, Missouri, Nevada, Ohio, Oklahoma,

Texas, and Wisconsin.




EXHIBITB

Statement of Financial Ability

Upon completion of the merger between SBC Communications Inc. ("SBC") and
Ameritech Corporation (“Ameritech”), SBC National, Inc. will have the financial resources of
the merged entities available to it to provide alternative local exchange service in the State of
Florida and to implement its “National-Local Strategy” throughout the country. SBC's
consolidated 1998 operating revenues were approximately $28.8 billion with a net income of
$ 1.0 billion. Additionai SBC financial information is contained in SBC's 1998 Annual Repon,
which is attached as Exhibit C. Ameritech's consolidated 1998 operating revenues were
approximately $17.2 billion with a net income of $3.6 billion. Additional financial information
regarding Ameritech is contained in Ameritech’'s 1998 Annual Report, which is attached as
Exhibit D.




EXHIBIT C

SEC Communications Inc.’s 1998 Annual Report

(See attached)




APPENDIX C

AFFIDAVIT

By my signature below, I, the undersigned officer, atiest to the accuracy of
the information contained in this application and attached documents and that the
applicant has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and financial capability to
provide alternative local exchange service in the State of Florida. | have read the
foregoing and declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the
information is true and correct. [ attest that | have the authority to sign on behalf
of m, company and agree to comply, now and in the future, with all applicabic
Commission rules and orders.

Further, I am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida
Statutes, “Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the
intent to mislead a public servant in the performance of his official duty shall
be guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in
section 775.082 and section 775.083".

JJ . ot s 7 _ /' G <
Sete . € ,_,Z G Lo 5, 1977
Signature Y Date

David R. Lopez (210)-351-2080 (telephone)
Vice President, National-Local Regulaiory (210)-351-3339 (fax)

SBC National, Inc.
175 East Houston Street, Room 4-A-60
San Antonio, TX 78205
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SBRC Communications Inc.

1998 ANNUAL REPORT

$2.08 $53.625 m

$36.625

$1.76

Increase

Adjusted Earnings Year-End Stock Price
Per Diluted Share*®

Nineteen ninety-eight was a year of exceptional
progress for SBC Communications, as we
strengthened our leadership in telecommunications
and continued to shape our future as an integrated,

full-service, global competitor...




Amid dynamic industry change, we remain
focused on providing our customers a seamless
range of high-quality services whenever and
wherever they need them, while providing

outstanding value to our shareowners.

This document reports progress on our
initiatives to remain one of the world’s leading
telecommunications companies now and in

the 21st century.

“Adjusted earnings per diluted share represent income before eatraordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting change adjusted
for the following: 1993 excludes a net charge of 50.03 per diluted share principally for strategic decisions related 1o the merger of SB(
and SNET offset by gains on the sale of certain non-core businesses, 1997 excludes & net charge of 50 91 per diluted share regarding
§1.8 billion of one-time charges principally for strategic decisions related to the merger of SBC and Pacific Telests These adjustments
are described on page 6.



1998 Progress Report

Reported net income $4,023 51.674 140 3% |

= ST =z 1
Accounting change and Extraordinary loss  nel $ 45 5 I
Reported earnings $4,068 §1.674 143.0%

| Special charges S 49 51.776
Adjusted earnings 54,117 53450 19 3%
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Mrateg deiuce) feketed 10 the marpes of W ardd Fas 3 Triein Thewr sbjustimarts see dew rdaed o g &

Per Share ol Commaon Stock

Adjusted earnings per diluted share $ 2.08 $ 176 182% |

Dividend $ 0935 S 0.895 4 5%

Year-end stock price $53.625 36625 46 d'
HIGHLIGHTS

SBC advances its global strategy by announcing plans to merge with Ameritech and then
expand to 30 markets beyond the new company’s combined region. The merger will provide
increased scale and geographic scope, enabling the company to provide high-quality,
competitive services to customers in the nation’s 50 largest markets.

SBC acquires Southern New England Telecommunications (SNET), gaining another great
brand, strong wireline and complementary wireless businesses, long-distance experience and
expanded presence in the Northeastern United States.

Synergies from the Pacific Telesis merger are ahead of schedule to add $1 billion in net
income by next year.

In January 1999, SBC launches the nation’s largest rollout of Asymmetrical Digital
Subscriber Line (ADSL) — a high-speed Internet access service — at affordable prices,
capitalizing on opportunities in the rapidly growing data market.

The February 1999 alliance with Williams Communications provides SBC with a high
quality fiber-based broadband network for long-distance service

= ST “.-._.1..-&!




DEAR FELLOW INVESTOR:

Nineteen ninety-eight was an excellent year for SBC Communications.

It was, first and foremost, a year in which your company delivered strong

earnings growth. We also took strategic steps to ensure that, as our industry

continues to evolve, SBC will continue to create outstanding value for you

well into the future.

In 1998, our adjusted earnings rose by 19.3 percent. Accounting
fat our February 1998 two-for-one stock split, SBCs diluted earnings
per share were 52 08, up 18.2 percent over 1997

Including stock price appreciation and reinvested dividends, total
shareownet return in 1998 was 49.72 percent. This brings our total
compounded annual return since 1984 — when we became an
independent company — to 23.15 percent. That result exceeds a
combined return during the same period of 22.04 percent for our
telecommunications peers, and 17.84 percent for the Standard &
Poor's 500.

We are pleased but not satisfied. To ensure that we continue
delivering excellent performance in 1999 and beyond, the SBC
tea.n moved forward in 1998 on four strategic fronts:

Continuing to maximize growth In our core businesses. Over the
yeais, SBC has established a solid record for making the most of our
care wireling and wireless businesses by increasing revenues while
controlling expenses. Nineteen ninety-elght was no exception

.

Revenues were 528 8 billion, up 7.9 percent over the previous year

.

Access ine growth remained impressive in 1998, with a 4.1 percent
increase in residential lines. Meanwhile, our business line growth
was 15.6 percent, including both voice lines and data circuits

We achieved outstanding sales of additional calling features,
Pacific Bell. for examnple, ended the year with more than 1.5 miltion
Caller 1D customers, and increased tive penetration of features for
residential customers by more than 44 percent 1o 1.26 vertical

features per line

Southwestern Bell achieved an industry-leading residential
Caller 1D penetration rate of more than 50 percent

FAGT

The company s wireless operations alsa pertormed waeli in 1998 Our
new Personal Communications Services (PCS) olfening i Calfornia and
Nevada, in particular, expenenced exceptional growth Across all of our
markets, including Southwestern Bell, Pacific Bell and Cellular One, we
increased our number of subscnbers 1o 69 million and added digital
service to meel the demands of high use customers This includes the
half mullian subscribers we serve through the acquisition of Southern
New England Telecommunications [SNET) that further increased our
wireless customer base In lanuary 1999, we agreed to acquire
Comcast Cellular Cotporation. whuch hav cellular properties in
Pennsylvania, New Jersey and Delaware. sunject to regulatory approval
With these significant acquisiions, we are confident of our ability to
grow our wireless base — and maintan healthy marging — despite
fierce competition

We alvo accelerated the process of value creation from the Pacific
Telesis merger Thanks to the hard work and dedi stion of our merger
integration teams, we took full advantage of the best practices of bath
companies through opetational intiatives that are ahead of sehedule
I adding 51 bilhon to our annual income by the end of 2000 Equally
impartant. the completion of our merger with Southern New England
Telecommunications established SNET a3 a solid anchor Tor our

expansion in the Noaitheast

Aggressively expanding our data capabilities. To reman a com
mumcations industry leader, SBC must be o data communications
leader Our 1998 data service tevenues increased 12 percent over

1997 a3 demand for data services continae 1o eapand @ pidly

We made major strides in meeting that demand wWe introduced
industry leading, high speed Asymimetrical [hgital Subscaber Line
(ADSL) services in Califormia, a flesible offeong that will provide
custamers with much faster internet acoess to move integrated

packages of volce, data and video guickly and securely




e e ———————

Developing national and international reach. As the telecommun
cations industry evolves, we believe two types of companies will
emerge. A small group of full-service, global carners will offer
customers what they increasingly demand — integrated services
including local, long distance, wireless. and high-speed data
communications. A second. larger group will consist of smalier,
narrawly focused regional providers. SBC intends to be a global
competitor. Only by doing so can we provide the financial returms
you expect well into the future

As a result, we decided in 1998 to expand our resources and
,eographic reach, gaining size and scope to provide our customers
a seamless range of high-quality services whenever and wherever
they need them. Our planned merger with Ameritech, which has
received overwhelming approval from the shareowners of both
companies, 15 a critical step in this direction

Based on both companies combined 1998 revenues, the Amentech
merger will create a powerful competitor, with more than 545 billion
in revenues and some 200,000 of the best employees in our business
Our combined .erritories will include the headgquarters of almost half
of the Fortune 500 companies, and we will have a presence in 20 of
the top 50 markets in the country. But what really sets this merger
apart 1s the role it plays in our becoming a global company

Qur merged company will move aggr.ssively to enter the top 30
markets outside our combined territories. We plan to provide resi-
dential and business customers in those markets with one-ston shop
ping for their welecommunications needs. As we build a competitive
presence in the nation's top 50 markets, we plan to develop a state
of-the-art voice and data network that will carry our customers’ voice
and data traffic anywhere in the world. Our ability to do just that ook
a major step forward in February 1999, when we announced an
alliance with Williams Communications. This agreement gives us
access to ane of the industry’s highest quality data and veice
broadband networks, while enabling us to have a voice in the future
expansion and development of that network around the needs af

OuUF Custonmers

We expact to complete the Ameritech merger in the second hall of
1999, then move quickly to integrate Ameritech's operations into
SBC. as we did with Pacific Telesis and are doing with SNET,

Providing long-distance services. To be a true fu i service provid ¢
SBC must have the freedom to offer long -distance service to all

our customerns, wherever they Hve o work In 1998, we moved closer
1o secuning that capatihity by continuing to open our local markets
1o competitors. And we are working closely with regulators to gain
thewr support tor our long distance entry While we are disappointed
that the process has taken so long, our alliance with Wilhams ensures
that, as soon as we receive regulatory approval to offer long distance,
wee can move immediately to add this ¢ntical offenng to our range

of servicesy

SBC entered 1998 strongly postioned 1o build value for our share
owners, with great markets, great businesses and a proven ability
1o execute our plans Duning the year we expanded those markets,
strengthened out businesses and enhanced our reputation for

SUPETICH execution

More important. by refining aur strategies and taking decisive steps
to become an integrated, worldwide competitor, we are gquiding SBC
toward a clearly defined objective  becoming a global enterpoise
with the resources and flexbility to take advantage of the mast

promising growth opportunities

That 1s where SBC's focus has always been And, despite the changes

ahead, that is where it will stay  on building value lor our owners

We will keep you informed as we move ahead 1n 1999 In the
meantime, thank you for your continued confidence and suppon

Edward E Whitacre Jr C

Chalrman and Chet Executive Offer
February 12, 1999
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SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA

allary in milons eacept per share amounty

At December 31 of for the year ended: 1998 19971 1996 1995 1904
iinlﬂdll Data R -
Operating revenues 528,777 526,681 $25202 23,356 $22,555
Operating expenses $21,891  $23103 518976 $17878 §12.216
Operating income $6886 5358 5622 5 5478 § 5.339
Interest expense s 993 51043 5 901 $1043 51,010
Equity in net income of affiliates $ 236 s 20 s 200 s 120 5 226
Income taxes $2306 5 984 2070 S 1632  §1575

Income from continuing operations before
extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of

accou .ing changes’ $ 4,068 $ 1674  § 3387 83132 5 2962
Net income (loss) $ 4023 51,674 $ 3477 5{3 577) 5 2,985
Earnings per common share:

Income from continuing operations before
extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of

accounting changes’ $ 2.08 S 086 $ 173 5 160 5 153
Net income (loss) $ 206 5 08 5 18 S (183)  $ 154
Earnings per common share - Assuming Dilution: o -
Income from continuing operations before

extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of

accounting changes’ $ 205 S 085 $ 172 § 160 5 153
Net income (loss) . s 203 :1__5_.? s s 08y § 154
Total assets $45,066 S44836  S42057  S40361 549,525
Long-term debt $11,612 513,176 512000 $11592 511,698
Construction and capital expenditures $ 5,927 $6230  S585 54729 5 4262
Free cash flow’ $ 2,454 $1366 52046 52572 5 3058
Dividends deciared per common share’ $0935  S0895 5 086 S 0825 5 079
Book value per common share $ 6.52 $ 538  § 522 < 450 5 736
Ratio of;;r;nmgs to fixed charges 589 277 5.2 s a9
Debt ratio 43.86%  5707%  S683% 63.04% 48.71%
\-'v;ighled Average Common Shares ) :

__Outstanding (000,000) 1,957 1945 1956 1,955 1,936
Wﬂghted Average Common Shares I o

Outstanding With Dilution (000,000) 1,984 1,962 1,967 1,961 1,940
End of Period Common Shares I '

Outstanding (000,000) 1,959 1,954 1.942 - 1.960 1,952
Operating Data - } I S
Network access lines in service {000) 37,252 35727 34,003 _ _32_135 1173
Access minutes of use (000,000) 148,560 139470 128716 112,874 100,800
Wireless customers (000) 6851 5951 482 3,995 3158
Number of employees 129850 128100 119270 117260 120,140

A detailed i manasgement § g uson and anaihud Resulty of Operations, 1998 reiults inchude charges for sirstege iniiathees related 1o The me-ger with Southenn New Inql..ruj
Telecommaunications Corporation (SNET) and gains on sales of certain non-cote busineiies Excluding these tems, B0 reparted an adinted i ome Biom ¢ on imuing ogrerations befone
extraocdinary fows and cumulative effect of accounting change of 54,117 and an adjusted net income of 54,077 for 1998

Ay detatled in management s dicusuon and analysh of Results of Operations, 1997 results include charg o for several dems inchuding SIATEQa 1aTIves siud BNGUING merger
integration costs, gain on the wale of SBOy intereits in Bell Communications Research, Ing. and a st quarter alter tas settiement gain Excluding these tems, SBC reported an adjusted
net incorne of $3.450 fo: 1997

"T998. Larly retitement of debl and Change v directony accounting, 1796, Change in directory accounting, | 995, Dvx ontinuance of Regulatony Accounting ar d 1994 income Trom
spran off operations

“Free cash flow i net cash provided by operating activities less construction and capilal expenditu et
Drodends declared by SBC 3 Board of Directory; these amounts do 1 | include dividends dedlared and pandd bry Pac i Teleais Group snd SMET (o 10 thite 1eghed tive mgigeds

Fasl %




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Dollars in mullions except per share amounis

SBC Communications Inc. (SBC) is a holding company wiiose
subsidiaries and affiliates operate predominantly in the commu-
nications services industry. SBC's subsidiaries and affiliates
provide landline and wireless telecommunications services as
well as equipment and directory advertising both domestically
and worldwide.

The consaolidated financial results reflect SBC's mergers with
Southern New England Telecommunications Corporation (SNET) in
1998 and Pacific Telesis Group (PAC) in 1997 as pooling of interests
(see Note 2 of Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements).

SBC's principal wireline subsidiaries are Southwestern Bell
Telephone Company (SWBell), providing telecommunications
services in Texas, Missouri, Oklahoma, Kansas and Arkansas

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Summary

(five-state area). Pacific Bell (PacBell. which also includes
Pacific Bell Information Services), The Southern New, England
Telephone Company (SNETel) and Nevada Bell (collectively
referred 1o as the Telephone Companies) SBC's principal wireless
subsidiaries are Southwestern Bell Mobile Systems, Inc. {Mabile
Systems), Pacific Bell Mobile Services (PBMS) and SNET Cellular,
e, SBC's principal directory subsidiaries are Southwestern Bel!
Yellow Pages, Inc (SWBYP), Pacific Bell Directory (PB Directory)
and SNET Information Services, Inc. The Telephone Companies are
subject to regulation by each of the states in which they operate
and by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC)

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and the accampanying notes

Financial results, including percentage changes from the prior year, are summarized as follows

Operating revenues

Operating expenses

Income before extipordinary loss and
cumulative effect of accounting change

Extraordinary loss

Cumulative effect of arrounting change

Net income

In 1998 and 1996, SBC reflected a cumulative effect of accounting
change related to accounting for directory revenues and expenses
(see Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). In 1998,
SEC incurred an extraordinary loss related to the early retirement of
debr at PacBell (see Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Firancial
Statements).

Results for 1998 and 1997 also in 1ude several items that SLC
normalizes for management purpose. For 1998, normalizing items
included $219 of gains on sales of « 2rtain non-core businesses,
principally the required disposition of SBC's interest in Mobile
Telephonz Networks (MTN), a South African national cellular
company, due to SBC's investment in Telkom SA Limited (Telkom),
and $268 of charges related to strategic initiatives resulting from
the merger integration process with SNET. For 1997, normalizing
items included 51,899 of costs related to strategic initiatives
resulting from the merger integration process with PAC, the impact
of several second quarter 1997 regulatory rulings and charges
for ongoing merger integration costs (see Note 2 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of
merger integration costs), as well as $33 of gain on the sale of the
Telephone Companies’interests in Bell Communications Research,
Inc. (Bellcore) and $90 of first quarter 1997 settlement gain at PAC
associated with lump-sum pension payments that exceeded the
projected service and interest costs for 1996 retirements.
Collectively these items decreased income before extraordinary

PAGE &

Fercem ¢ I'un:)q_-
1998 vs.

1997 vy

1998 1997 1996 1997 1956
$18,777 $26,681 $25,202 7.9% 5.9%
$21.89 $23,103 $18,976 (5.2)% 2. 7%
S 4,068 S 1,674 S 3,347 —

s (60) - —_ =
$ 15 — 5 920 — -
$ 4,02 5 3477 —

§ 1674
loss and cumulative effect of accounting change by $49 and
51,776 in 1998 and 1997 Excluding these items, 1998 income
before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting
change would have been 54,117, or 19 3% higher than 1997 earn-
ings of 51 450, The correspondding diluted per share amounts
would be $2.00 11 1 798,01 18.2% higher than $1.76 in 1997

Excluding these items, the 1996 increase in income before extra
ordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting change was due
primarily to broad-based growth in demand for SBC's Wireline,
Wireless and Directory operations. Results for 1998 also reflect
reduced dilution from Personal Communications Services (PCS) oper-
ations in California and Nevada Demand growth was also the primar,
factor contributing to the 1997 increases, partially offset by a high
level of expenses for the introduction of PCS in Califorma and Mevada

Segment Results

SBC has four reportable segments: Wireline 'Wireless, Dt ctory
and Other. The Wireline segment provides landline telecommuni-
cations services, including local, network access and long distance
services, messaging and Internet set vices and sells custumer
premise and private business exchange equipment The Wireless
segment provides wireless telecommunications services. includ
ing local and long distance services, and sells wireless equipment
The Directory segment sells advertising for and publication of
yellow pages and white pages directonies and electronic publish
ing The Other segment includes SBC s intermational investments




and other domestic operating subsidiaries. (See Note 9 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.)

SBC evaluates performance of these segments based on
income before income taxes, adjusted for normalizing items
Normalizing items for 1998 and 1997 are described above.

There were no normalizing items for 1996,

Collectively, these normalizing items had the effect of reduc-

ing operating revenues in 1998 and 1997 by 58 and 5188 and

Operating Revenues

INcreasing operating expenses in 1998 and 1997 by 5422

and $2.550. as well as affecting non-operating incene and
expenses Il all of the normalizing items were included in their
respective segments, the effect would be 1o increase (reduce} each
segment’s income before income tax in 1998 and 1997 as follows
Wireline $1306) and 5(2,007), Wireless 5(49) and 5(100); Directory
512 and 5(75); and Other $268 and 0. The following sections will
ciscuss SBC's operations exeluding these normalizing items.

Following are SBC's normalized operating revenues, including segment totals and percentage changes from the prior year (reductions of

S8in 1998 and $188 in 1997 are excluded):

Wireline

Wireless

Directory

Other

Corporate, adjustments & eliminations

Total Normalized Op;raling Revenues

Wireline

Percemt Cl‘-hlr-'lqt

1998 vi. 1997 \4:\

1998 1947 1956 1997 1596
$22,.210 520.926 519919 6.1% 5 1%
4,185 1697 3,147 13.2 17.9
2,393 2,286 2.145 ] a.7 6.6

85 57 41 49.1 326
(88) 197} {42) (9.3} -
$28,785 $26,859 $25,202 7% 6.6%

Wireline operaung revenues increased $1,284, or 6.1%, in 1998 and $1,007, or 51%,1n 1997 Components of Wireline operating revenues,

including percentage changes from the prior year, are as follows

Local service

Network access
Interstate
Intrastate

Long distance service

Other

Total Wireline

Percent Change

1997 vy

1998 vs.

1998 1997 1990 1997 1996
$11.154 510,434 5 9,511 6.9% 9 79
4,612 4494 4,154 2.6 32
1.917 1,884 185! 1.8 18
2,353 2,351 2523 0.1 6.8
_2.1_14 1,763 1.678 233 51
$22,210 520,926 £19.919 6.1% 5 10y

Local Service revenues increased $720, or 6.9%, in 1998 and
5921, 0r 9.7%, in 1997 due primarily to increases in demand which
totaled 5656 and $799 in 1998 and 1997, including Increases in
access lines and vertical services revenues. The number of access
lines increased by 4.3% and 5.1% in 1998 and 1997. Approximately
40% and 315 of access line growth in 1998 and 1997 was due to
sales of additional access lines to existing residential customers In
both years, approximately 46% of the access line growth was in
California and 32% was in Texas. Access lines in Texas and California
account for approximately 75% of the Telephone Companies’
access hnes, Vertical services revenyes, which include custom call
ing options, Caller ID, voice mail and other enhanced services,
increased by approximately 20% in both years and totaled approxi
mately 51,892 and 51.582 in 1998 and 1997.

Additionally, local service revenues increased as a result of
several requlatory actions that also had the effect of decreasing
one or more other types of operating revenues. In 1998 and 1997,

federal payphone regulation, introduction of extended area ser-
vice plans and the intreduction of the Calitornia High Cost Fund
(CHCFB) collectively increased local service revenues by approxi
mately $157 and §211, and decreased long distance revenue by
approjmately $53 and 5117 interstate network access revenue by
520 and 553, Intrastate network access revenue by approximately
$24 and %26 and other operating revenue by approximately §7
and $0. The net effect on Wireline operating revenue was an
increase of 553 and $151n 1998 and 1997 The Califarma Public
Utilities Commission (CPUC) has stated that the CHCFB is intended
to directly subsidize the provision of service to high-cost areas and
allow PacBell to set competitive rates for other services

These increases in local service revenues were partially offset
by decreases of approximately 543 and $18 resulting from cellular
interconnection rate reductions in 19948 and 1997 Rate
reductions under CPUC price cap orders also reduced 1997
local service tevenues by approximately 556

Pl !




MANAGLMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (cowninueo

Dollary in millions escept per thare amounty

Network Access Interstate network access revenues
increased 5118, or 2.6%. in 1998 and 5140, or 3.2%. in 1997 due
largely to increases in demand for access services by interex-
change carriers, and growth in revenues from end-user charges
attributable to an increasing access line base, which collectively
resulted in an increase of approximately $420 and $361 in 1998
and 1997. Partially offsetting these increases were the effects of
rate reductions of approximately $189 in 1998 and $120in 1997
related to the FCC's productivity factor adjustment, access reform
and other changes and regulatory shifts related to payphone
deregulation of approximately $20 and 553 as noted in local
service above, Additional decreases in 1998 totaling approxi-
mately $76 resulted from an increase in universal service fund net
pa nents implemented in the first quarter of 1998 that exceeded
the 1997 net payments of long-term suppaort, which were
designed to subsidize universal service. The net federal universal
fund payments and receipts will be exogencus factors in future
federal price cap filings. interstate network access revenues in
1997 also had a net decrease of approximately $42 due to the
reversal of 1996 revenue sharing and proposed 1996 tariff
decrease estimates at the Telephone Companies.

Intrastate network access revenues increased 533 in both
1998 and 1997, due largely to increases in demand totaling
approximately 7% and $121 in 1998 and 1997, including usage
by alternative intralATA toll carriers. These increases in 1998 and
1997 were partially offset by state regulatory rate reductions at
PacBell and SWBell totaling approximately $23 and $50 and the
effects of the CHCFB described above in local service totaling
approximately 524 and 526.

Wireless

Wireless operating revenues increased 5488, or 13.29%, in 1998 and $560, or 17 9%.in 1997 Components of Wireless operating revenues

including percentage changes from the prior year, are as follows.:

Long Distance Service revenues were relatively unchanged
in 1998 and decreasved approxmately 5172 or 6 B4, in 1997
Long distance service revenues decreased due to the effect of the
regulatory shifts discussed in local service above of approxi
mately $53 and $117 in 1998 and 1997 related to the CHOFH,
introduction of extended area service plans and payphone
deregulation, price competition from altemative ntral ATA toll car
ners of approximately $43 and 5100 in 1998 and 1997 at SWBell
and SNETel and regulatory rate reduc ions of approximately $34
in 1997 These decreases were offset in 1998 and partially offset in
1997 by revenues from increased toll messages and demand at
PacBell totaling approximately 548 and $45 in 1998 and 1997 and
increased customer migration to SNET All Distance®, an interstate
and intrastate toll service, of approximately $20 and 542 in 1998
and 1997 In addition, revenues in 1998 increased by approximately
$22 due to the net effect of regulatory rate orders and local
exchange carrier billing settlements

Other operating revenues increased 5411, or 23.3%,1n 1998
and $B5.or $ 1%, 10 1997 due primarily 1o increased sales from
nonregulated products and services at the Telephone Companies
totaling approximately $201 and 5§72 in 1998 and 1997 increased
equipment sales at the Telephone Companies of approximately
$92 and $6 1in 1998 and 1997 and revenues from new business
initiatives, primarily Internet services, totaling approximately
571 and 539 in 1998 and 1997 In addition, net payments for state
universal funds of approximately $15 in 1998 contnbuted to the
increase These increases were partially offset in 1998 by approx
mately 57 related to the CHCFH, discussed in local service above

Pescent Change

Subscriber
Other
Total Wireless

1998 vi. 1997 v

1998 1997 19 1997 1y

43,783 $3.372 52907 12.2% 16.0%
402 125 230 23.7 4113

£4,185 53,697 $3.037 13.2% 17 9%

Subscriber revenues consist of wireless local service and
long distance. Wireless subscriber revenues increased $411, or
12.2%, in 1998 and $465. or 169, in 1997 due primarily to growth
in the number of customers of 15.1% and 23.3%, partially offset
by declines in average revenue per customer. Increases in 1997
wireless subscriber revenues of approximately $103 also resulted
from the introduction of PCS operations in California, Nevada and
Oklahoma. At December 31, 1998, S8C had 5,924,000 traditional

FAGY @

cellular customers, 81,000 resale customers and B4a6,000 ©OS
customers At Decembear 31,1997 580 had 5526000 traditional
cellular customers, 60,000 resale customers and 365,000
PCS custlomers

Other wireless revenues increased $77 or 23 7%, in 1998 ¢nd
595, 0f 41 3%, in 1997 due primarily 1o increases in equipment
revenue attributable to growth in the number of custoriers and
conversion 1o digital equipment




Directory

Directory operating revenues increased 5107, or 4.7%, in 1998 and $141, or 6.6%, in 1997 Directory operating revenues, including

percentage changes from the prior year, are as follows:

Fer;;nt?hlnpc
1998 vs 1997 vy

Total Directory

1998 1997 1996 1997 1996
52,393 $2.286 52,145 4.7% 66%

Directory operating revenues increased in 1998 due mainly to
increased demand, including benefits from merger initiatives.
Also contrivuting to the increase was approximately $17 from
directary rescheduling from the first quarter of 1999 into the

Operating Expenses

fourth quarter of 1998. Directory advertising revenues increased
in 1997 due mainly to increased demand and the publication of
directories in 1997 that were not published in 1996 due to
rescheduling.

Following are SBC's normalized operating expenses, including percentage changes from the prior year (additions of $422 In 1998 and

$2,550 in 1997 are excluded):

1998 vs. 1997 v
1998 1997 1996 1997 1956
Operations and support:
Wireline $12,711 512,20 511,464 J.4% 7.2%
Wireless 2,786 2,610 1,994 6.7 09
Directory 1,227 1,230 1,159 (0.2) 6.1
Other 152 93 46 63.4 -
Corporate, adjustments & eliminations (363) {368) (153} (1.4)
Total operations and support 16,513 I -H':BSE_ 14510 4.1 93
Depreciation and amortization® 4,956 4,697 4,466 583 5.2
$21,469 $20,553 518,976 4.5%

Total Normalized Operating Expenses

8.3%

“See Note 9 of Notes (o Consolidated Financlal Statemants for breakdown by segment

Wireline Operations and support expenses increased 5420, or

3.4%.in 1998 and $827, or 7.2%, in 1997. Increases for 1998
include costs of approximately $262 related to progress in the
merger implementation process including centralizing support
functions and other merger initiatives at SWBell and PacDell.
Offsetting these increased costs were reductions in 1998
primarily related to realization of merger initiative benefits that
totaled approximately $317.These reductions included lower
use of contract labor, primarily at PacBell, lower costs associated
with customer number portability and reduced research and
development costs. Operations and support expense also
increased in 1998 due to costs assoclated with reciprocal compen-
sation for the termination of Internet traffic of approximately $136
at the Telephone Companies (see “Federal Regqulation” for further
discussion about reciprocal compensation). Increased expenses in
1998 of approximately $55 related to new business initiatives,
primarily voice mall, Internet, long distance and cable. Additional
costs In 1998 totaling approximately 5172 related to increased
wages and salaries, benefits, materials and right 10 use fees.
Comparisons 10 1997 are also impacted by the absence of the
recognition of 1997 pension settlement gains relating to 1997
retirees after the merger with PAC totaling approximately $136.

Increases in 1997 include costs for wages, salaries, benefits,
sales commissions and contract labar totaling approximately
$327.Increases in 1997 also include costs associated with
customer number portability after the merger with PAC. intercon-
nection, other regulatory mandated neiwork enhancements and
materials of approximately 5414 Increased expenses in 1997 of
approximately 5156 related to new business initiatives, primarily
voice mail, Internet, long distance and cable. These increases were
partially offset by a reduction related to the recognition of
pension settlement gain: discussed above

Wireless Wireless expenses increased $176, or 6. 7%, in 1998 and
5616, or 20.9%. in 1997 due primarily to growth in the number of
customers and increased equipment sales The large increase in
1997 expenses includes approximately 5362 of expenses from the
introduction of PCS operations. These increases were partially
offset by decreased customer acquisition costs of 11% and 4% in
1998 and 1997.

Directory Directory expenses remained relatively unchanged
in 1998 as lower costs resulting from the merger integration
process, including decreased employee related costs, were offset
by expenses from increased demand and directory rescheduling
discussed in ditectory operating revenue above. Directory
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (conninuic

Dollars in millons escept pei share amounty

expenses increased in 1997 due mainly to increased demanu and
the publication of directories in 1997 that were not published in
1996 due to rescheduling.

Depreciation and Amortization expense is primarily in
the Wireline and Wireless segments. In total, depreciation and
amortization increased $259, or 5.5%, in 1998 due primarily to
increased depreciation expense of $201 in the Wireline segment
and $41 in the Wireless segment resulting from overall higher
plant levels. The increase in 1998 was partially offset by reduced
depreciation at PacBell related to analog switching equipment
of $42 Total depreciation and amortization increased 5231, or
52% 1997 The increase was due to increased depreciation
expense of $193 in the Wireline segment and $141 in the Wireless
segment resulting from overall higher plant levels. The Wireless
increase was due primarily to the launch of PCS operations.
Reduced depreciation of 5107 at PacBell related to analog
switching equipment partially offset the increase,

Interest Expense on a consolidated basis for 1998 decreased
by $50, or 4.8%. in 1998 and increased by 5142, or 15.8%, in 1997.
Interest expense for 1998 includes $3 of one-time charges for
SNET merger-approval costs and 1997 includes $27 associated
with one-time charges, primarily interest an the PAC merger-
approval costs Excluding these charges. interest expense for
1998 decreased 526, or 2.6%, and increased $115, or 12.8%, for
1997. The 1998 decrease was due primarily to reductions in inter-
est expence resulting from lower average debt levels and lower
weighted average interest rates, partially offset by lower capital.
ization of interest during construction The 1997 increase was due
primarily to increased average debt levels,

Equity in Net Income of Affillates increased 535 in 1998 and
decreased $6 in 1997.The 1998 increase reflects increased equity
in net income of 578 from SBC's Investment in Teléfonos de
México, 5.A de CV.(Telmex). Mexico’s national telecommuni
cations company, SBC's May 1997 investment in Telkom and
SBC's wireless operations. Also contributing to the increase were
lower losses resulting from reduced involvement in Tele-TV. These
increases were partially offset by a reduction of $53 in contribu
tion from investments in Switzerland, France and Israel, primarily
resulting from expenditures on long distance and wireless in
Switzerland and long distance in France and Israel.

The 1997 decrease refiects decreased equity in net income of
5§49 from Telmex. This lower income resulted from the change in
the functional currency used by SBC 1o record its interest in
Telmex from the peso to the U.S. dollar beginning in 1997 and
SBC's reduced ownership percentage after the sale of Telmex L
shares. Results also reflect preoperatino expenses of $32 in
several international investments, including long distance in
France, Switzerland and Israel and cellular communications in
Talwan, and decreased contribution of 513 from SBC's wireless
operations These decreases were mainly offset by equity in net
income of $58 from Telkom and $27 in lower losses from Tele-TV.

SBC’s earnings from foreign affiliates will continue to be
generally sensitive to exchange rate changes in the value of the
respective local currencies. SBC's forelgn investments are
recorded under U.5. generally accepted accounting principles,

FAGE 10

which include adjustments lor the purchase method of account
ing and exclude certain adjustments required for local reporting
in specific countries, such as inflation adjustments

Other Income (Expense) - Net for 1998 and 1997 includes
amounts that SBC management normalized for revieving results
Normalizing amounts for 1998 include $358 in gains on the sale
of non-core businesses, pnmarily the required disposition of SBC's
interest in MTN and the sale of 58C Media Ventures. Inc . pending
from the prior year Amounts for 1997 reflect gains of §54 from
the sale of SBC's interests in Bellcore and $32 in secand quarter
charges related to SBC s strateqgic inihatives, pnmanly wniteoffs of
nonoperating plant. Absent these items, other income (expense)
lor 1998, 1997 and 1996 was 5(113), 5(100) and $(75,

During 1998, several offsetting transactions impacted other
income and expense contnbuting to the normalized increase of
net ather expense of $13 SBC recognized ather expense of 5237
related to an impairment of an intcmational investment and
investments in certain wireless technologies, primanly wireless
video Also increasing other expense were higher minanty
interest, lower interest income and call premiums and unamor
tized discounts on early retirement of debt at SWBell that totaled
567 more than the previous year Offsetting these decreases were
other income related to a special dvidend of $158 received from
a software affiliate and gains of $127 recognized on the sales and
the charitable contribution of SBC's available-for-sale investment
in Telewest Communications plc (see Note 7 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of the
gains). Movement in the market value of Telmex L shares requires
a market valuation adjustment on cerlain SBC debt redeemable
either in cash or Telmex | shares Additionally, Telmex under their
tepurchase program from time to ume repurchases enough
shares in the market that SBC is required to sell part of its Telmex
L share holdings to Telmex to remarn under 10% ownership of
Telmex. The net of these activities contributed 590 more to other
income than in 1997, Also affecting comparnisons with 1997 was
approximately 564 in royalties and guns recogmized in 19497

During 1997, there were also several offsetting transactions
contnbuting to the normahzed increase in net other expense of
$25.Higher minority interest, including distributions paid on an
additional $500 of Trust Onginated Preferred Securities [TOPrS)
sold by PAC in June 1956, and lower interest income resulted in
543 more net expense than in 1996 The net activity related to
market movement an Telmex L shares increased other expense
by $47 more than in 1996 Partially offsetting these net other
expenses were royalty payments associated with software devel
oped by an affiliate and other investment gains totaling $64

Income Taxes for 1998 include taxes relaved 1o the saie of
cettain non cole businesses discussed in othet iIncome
lexpense]  net and tax benelits associated with merger inteara
tion inihiatives relating to SNET Income taxes for 1997 retlect the
tax effect of charges for strateaic intiatives resulting from SBC
comprehensive review of operations and the impact of several
requlatory rulings Incame taxe: tor 1997 alvo included taxes on
the first quarter pension settlement gain discussed in operations
and support The net effective tax rate on these items was lower




as a result of non-deductible items included in the charge and
valuation adjustments to certain deferred tax assets which may
not be utilized due to restrictions associated with the merger
Excluding these items, income taxes for 1998 and 1997 would
have been $2,332 and $1,951. Income taxes for 1998 were higher
due primarily to higher income before income taxes. Income
taxes for 1997, excluding the non-recurring items, were slightly
lower than income taxes for 1996 of $2,070.

Extraordinary Loss In 1998, SBC recorded an extraordinary
loss of $60 related to the refinancing of $684 of long-term debt
at PacBell.

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change As discussed
in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, SNET
Information Services, Inc. and PB Directory changed their
methods of recognizing directory publishing revenues and
related expenses effective January 1, 1998 and January 1, 1996,
respectively. The cumulative after-tax effect of applying the new
method to prior years for SNET Infarmation Services, Inc. was
recognized as of January 1, 1998 as a one-time, non-cash gain
applicable to continuing operations of $15, or $0.01 per share.
The gain is net of deferred taxes of 511.The one-time gain
recognized as of January 1, 1996 for PB Directory was 590, net of
deferred taxes of 553, or $0.05 per share. Management believes
the change to the issue basis method Is preferable because itis
the method generally followed in the publishing industry,
including SWBYF, and better reflects the operating activity of
the businesses. These accounting changes are not expected to
have a significant effect on net income in future periods.

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT AND TRENDS OF THE BUSINESS

Regulatory Environment

Overview

The telecommunications industry is in a period of dynamic
transition from a tightly reqgulated industry overseen by multiple
requlatory bodies to a market-driven industry monitored by
state and federal agencies. The Telephone Companies’ wireline
telecommunications operations remain subject to regulation

by the eight state regulatory commissions for intrastate services
and by the FCC for interstate services.

Consolidation of companies is occurring within the market-
place for local telephone service and across other telecommuni-
cations services, such as long distance, cellular, cable television,
| internet and other data transmission services. Companies
operating in some of these markets are also expanding into
others. such as the provision of local service by long distance
companies, Additionally, new technologies are also affecting
the way people view and use communications services.

The telecommunications industry is also changing interna-
tionally, as government-owned telephone monopolies are being
privatized in many countries and competitive entrants are
authorized U.S.-controlled companies may acquire or form
investment, joint venture or strategic relationships with these
newly privatized companies or theitr new competitors involving
any or all of the range of telecommunications services,

.

Foreign-controlled compantes also may acquire or form such
relationships with U.S compamies

SBC 15 aggressively representing its interests before federal
and state regulatory badies. courts, Congress and state legisla-
tures. SBC will continue to evaluate the increasingly competitive
nature of its business, and develop appropriate competitive,
legisiative and requlatory strategies

Wireline
Federal Regulation
Through affiliates, SBC offers landline interLATA long distance
services to customers in selected areas outside the Telephone
Companies’ operating areas Further, SBC offers interLATA long
distance services to customers in Connecticut through SNET
America, Inc. (SAl). Under the Telecommunications Act of 1996
{Telecom Act], before being permitted 1o offer landline interl ATA
long distance service in any state within the regulated operating
areas of SWRell, PacBell and Nevada Bell, SBC must apply for and
obtatn state-specific approval from the FCC The FCC's approval,
which involves consultation with the United States Department
of Justice and the appropriate state commission, requires favor-
able determinations that certain of the Telephone Companies
have entered into interconnection agreement(s) that satisfy a
14-point "competitive checklist” with predominantly facilities
based carrier(s) that serve residential and business customers
or, alternatively, that certain of rhe Telephone Companies have a
statement of terms and conditions effective in that state under
which they offer the "competitive checkiist™ items The FCC must
also make favorable public interest and structural separation
determinations in connection with each application. See "State
Regulation” for status of the state applications.

in December 1997, the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Texas ruled that parts of the Telecom Act
wete unconstitutional on the grounds that they improperly
disciminate against certain subsidiaries of SBC by imposing
restrictions that prohibit certain of the Telephone Companies by
name from offering interL ATA long distance and other services
that other Local Exchange Carriers (LECs) are free to provide. In
September 1998, the United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth
Circuit (Sth Circuit) reversed this decision and ruled that the
challenged provisiont of the Telecom Act were constitutional I
January 1999 the United States Supreme Court (Supreme Court)
declined to hear an appeal of the S5th Circuit's decision

Interconnection In August 1996, the FCC issued rules by
which competitors could connect with LECs' networks, including
those of the Telephone Companies Among other things, the rules
addressed unbundling of network element.. pnicing for .atercon
nection and unbundled elements. and resale of retail telecommu-
nications services The FCC niles were appealed by numerous
parties, including SBC

In July 1997, the United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth
Circuit (8th Circuit) held that the FCC did not have the authority
to promulgate rules related to the pacing of local intrastate
telecommunications and that its rules in that regard were invahid
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The Bth Circuit also overturned the FCC's rules which allowed
competitars to “pick and choose” among the terms and condi
tions of approved interconnection agreements. In October 1997,
the 8th Circuit issued a subsequent decision clarifying that the
Telecom Act does not require the incumbent LECs to deliver
network elements to compeltitors in anything other than
completely unbundied form.

In September 1997, a number of parties, including SBC, filed
petitions to enforce the July 1997 ruling of the 8th Circuit that the
right to set local exchange prices, including the pricing method:
ology used, is reserved exclusively to the states. The petitions
responded to the FCC's rejection of Ameritech Corporation’s
interLATA long distance application in Michigan, in which the FCC
stated it intended to apply its own pricing standards to Regional

iolding Company (RHC) interLATA applications. The petitioners

asserted the FCC was violating state authority. C.a January 22, 1998,

the 8th Circuit ordered the FCC to abide by the July 1997 ruling
and reiterated that the FCC cannot use interLATA long distance
applications m.ade by SBC and other RHC wireline subsidiaries
wishing to provide interLATA long distance to attempt to reimpose
the pricing standards ruled invalid in July 1997 by the Bth Circuit

In January 1999, the Supreme Court ruled on an appeal of the
Bth Circuit’s order, The ruling held that the Telecom Act gives the
FCC the authority to set guidelines for states to follow in setting
prices under tie Telecom Act, and reinstated the FCC rules allow-
ing those seeking to interconnect to “pick and choose” specific
provisions from previous interconnection agreements. Because
the Bth Circuit’s decision did not address the lawfulness of the
content of the FCC pricing guidelines, the Supreme Court
remanded that issue to the 8th Circuit for further consideration.
The ruling also upheld FCC rules forbidding incumbent LECs
from separating already combined network elements, but
remanded back to the FCC its determination of which netv.ork
elements must be made available. The Supreme Court also held
that, before the FCC could require telecommunications carriers
to make a particular network element available to requesting
carriers, the FCC must first consider as to proprietary elements,
whether access to the elements was necessary and whether the
failure to provide access to a particular element would impair the
requesting carrier’s ability to provide the service it seeks to offer.
The effect of this ruling on the telecommunicatiors industry can
not be determined at this time,

Reciprocal Compensation Reciprocal compensation
is billed to “BC's subsidiaries by Competitive Local Exchange
Carriers (CLECs) for the termination of certain local exchange
traffic to CLEC customers. SBC believes that under the Telecom
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Act the state commussions have authornity to order reciprocal
compensation for intrastate or local traffic, while anly the FCC

has authority over intetstate and interexchange traffic. SBC
believes most Internet tratfic 15 interexchange and interstate
Several state comnissions, including the CPUC i an Octaber 1998
order, have taken the position that Intermnet communications is
‘ntrastate or local traffic and ordered SBC to pay reciprocal com
pensation to certain CLECs pursuant to then existing contracts
State commissions in the five state area other than Kansas have
also 1ssued orders finding that SBC is required to pay reaiprocal
compensation to certain CLECs In June 1998,a US District Court
in Texas affitmed the Texas Public Uthity Commission’s ( TPUC)
determination and upheld payment of reciprocal compensation,
holding that an Internet call is comprised of two portions, and that
the TPUC has junisdiction over the local portion of the traffic and
the FCC over the Internet component, Similar decisions regarding
Internet traffic have been made by other state commissions SBC
has sought review or reconsideration of these cases

The question whether Internet communications should be
classified as local/intrastate or interstate traffic for reciprocal |
compensation purposes is the subject of a pending FCC proceed |
ing and the FCC s expected to rule on tius issue in the near
future. SBC's subsidiaries have been recording amounts sought
by certain CLECs for the termination of Internet traffic to Internet
Service Providers.

Asymmetrical Digital Subscriber Line (ADSL) 1s a lugh
speed data service principally used for Internet access. In June
1998, 5BC filed with the FCC a pettion requesting relief for ADSL
from pncing. unbundling and resale regulatory restrictions. The
FCC denied the petition and declared that incumbents, such as
the Telephone Companies, must offer such services for resale at a
discount and must otfer unbundled access to the equipment
used In ADSL provisioning to the extent possible SBC has filed
with the FCC a petition for reconsideration of this arder The FCC
sought comments on offering the incumbent LECs the option of
providing deregulated advanced services through an affiliate
with approprate safeguards.

The effects of the FCC decisions on the above topics are
dependent on many factors including, but not imited to the
ultimate resolution of the pending appeals; the number and
nature ol compeniton requesting inlerconnection, unbundhing
of resale, and the results of the state regulatory commissions’
review and handling of related matters within their junisdic tions
Accordingly, SBC 15 not able to assess the impact of the FC(
orders and proposed rulemaking ot ths time




State Regulation

The following provides an overview of state requlation .n the eight states in which the Telephone Compames operated at December 31, 199§,
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The following presents highlights of certain regulatory
developments.

California In October 1998, the CPUC issued a decision nodi-
fying the current requlatory framework for PacBell effective
January 1, 1999. The decision adopted PacBell's proposal that the
current cap eon basic residential rates be continued for three more
years, through 2001, with the CPUC retaining the ability to adjust
basic telephone rates. The decision suspended earnings sharing,
rate of return reviews and the use of earnings caps and floors
through 2001, In addition, the decision adopted PacBell's
prop.sal to eliminate depreciation reviews and granted PacBell
the freedom to set its own depreciation rates and methodology
It also continued the suspension of the productivity factor
adjustment. In addition, the CPUC decision eliminated mast
future exogenous cost adjustments, including the recovery of
future costs related to a 1993 accounting change for postretire-
ment benefits other than pensions. Management currently
estimates the items embodied within the new regulatory
framework will have the net effect of reducing annual revenue
by approximately $100 from 1999 through 2004,

In July 1998, *he CPUC issued a rate rebalancing decision
related to its 1996 order on universal service. The CPUC's decision
was implemented prospectively beginning September 1, 1998
and reduces PacBell's non-basic local service, network access and
long distance service revenues by 5305 annually to offset the
approximately $305 annually that PacBell expects 1o receive from
the CHCFB. Beginning in February 1997, PacBell, and all other
California telecommunications carriers, began collecting funds
via customer surchaiges consistent with the CPUC's 1996 deci-
sion. The CPUC has yet 10 decide on the specific mechanism to be
employed to ensure the distribution of funds collected by FacBell
and other carriers from February 1997 through August 1998 is
revenue neutral.

Connecticut In January 1997, SNET submitted to the
Connecticut Department of Public Utility Control (DPUC) its
proposal on corporate restructure. The proposal recommended
that SNETel functions be split: ownership and maintenance of
switching and transmission network facilities, l.e.. all wholesale
functions, would remain in the telephone company, SNETel, and
all retail functions would go to SAi, which was the long distance
subsidiary Both would be wholly-owned by SNET. In June 1997,
the DPUC granted SNET permission to restructure its telephony
operations, with several DPUC-imposed modifications.

Under the plan, all retall operations (retail marketing and
tustomer service) have been transfer-ed to SAl and SAl will be
treated by the requlators like all other CLECs, SNET local service
customers will choose their provider via a balloting process,
which has been scheduled for September 1999. All wholesale
services and the network infrastructure will remain with SNETel,
which will be restricted to meeting the needs of CLECs including
SAI and other wholesale customers. SAl can buy its wholesale
service from SNETel or any other wwholesale provider. SAl has been
providing interstate and International long distance service since
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1993, and received certification to provide local service and
intrastate toll in Connecticut in 1997

Missouri Effective September 261997, the Missoun Public
Setvice Commission (MPSC determined that SWiell 1s subject
to price cap reqguiation. Prices in ellect as of December 31, 1996
are the initial maximum allowable rates for services and cannot
be adjusted unul January 1, 2000 for basic and access services
and an January 1, 1999 for non-basic services On an exchange
bass where a competitor began operations, the freeze on maxt
murm allowable rates for non basic services was removed Afle
January 1, 2000, caps for basic and access services may be
adjusted based on one of two government indices After
January 1, 1999, caps for non basic services may be increased
up to 8% per year In an exchange where competition tor basic
local service exists for five years, services will be declared
competitive and subject to market pricing uniess the MPSC
finds effective competition does not exist. The Office af Public
Counsel and MCI WorldCom, Inc [MCI WorldCom) sought
judicial review of the MPSC determination and in May 1998
the state circuit court affirmed the MPSC decision

Texas Under the Public Utlity Regulatory Act, which became
effective in May 1995 (PURAJ, SWBell elected to move from rate of
return regulation to price requlation with elimination of earnings
sharing Basic local service rates are capped at existing levels for
four years following the election. i e, until September 1999 The
TPUC is prohibited from reducing switched access rates charged
by LECs to Interexchange carriers while rates are capped

LECs electing price regulation are committed to network and
infrastructure improvement goals, including expansion of digital
switching and advanced high speed services to qualifying public
institutions, such as schools. libranes and haspitals, requesting the
services PURA also established an infrastiucture grant fund for
use by public institutions in upgrading therr communications and
computer technalogy The 1997 Texas legislative session changed
the funding for this infrastructure grant fund from annually col
lecting $150 for ten years to a fixed percentage (1.25%) applied
to all telecommunications providers’ sales taxable revenues The
law also provides a cap of $1,500 for the life of the fund SWBesll's
annual payments were approximately $36.n 1997 and $56 1in
1998 Due to the industry’s growth in revenues, the fund should
be completely funded before the onginal ten years

PURA establishes local exchange competition by allowing
companies that desire to provide local exchange services to
apply tor certihcation by the TPUC subject to certamn builldout
requirements, resale restrictions and minimum service require
ments PURA provides that SWBell will rem «in the default carrier
of "1 plus”intralATA long distance traffic in its territory until
SWhell is allowed to carry imerLATA long distance In 1996, MCI
WorldCom and ATET Corp (ATET | sued the state of Texas alleging
that PURA violates the Texas stale constitution and claiming that
PURA establishes anticompetitive barniers designed to prevernt
MCI WoridCom, AT&T and Sprint Corparation (Speint) from
providing local services within Texas The FCC, also in response ta
petitions liled by ATET and MO WorldCom, preempted and




voided portions of PURA that required certain buildout require-
ments. Furthermore, the FCC also preempted rules that excluded
competitors from entering markets with fewer than 31,000 access
lines and which made resale of Centrex phone services subject

to a hmited property restriction. AT&T and MC| WarldCom have
dismissed their suits regarding this matter In October 1997,
SWEBell filed with the FCC a petition for reconsideration regarding
the preemption of the property restriction for Centrex services.
This issue is still pepding befare the FCC

Competition

Wireline

Competition continues to increase for telecommunications and
information services Recent changes in legislation and regulation
have increased the opportunities for alternative service providers
offening telecommunications services Technological advances
have expanded the types and uses of services and products
available. As a result, SBC faces increasing competition as well as
new opportunities in significant portions of its business.

Recent state legislative and regulatory developments allow
increased competition for local exchange services, Companies
wishing to provide competitive 'ocal service have filed numerous
applications with each of the state commissions throughout the
Telephone Companies’ regulated operating areas, and the com-
missions of each state have been approving these applications
since late 1995 Under the Telecom Act, companies seeking to
interconnect to the Telephone Companies’ networks and
exchange Inzal calls must enter into interconnection agree-
ments with the Telephone Companies. These agreements are
then subject to approval by the appropriate state commission.
SBC has reached approximately 495 interconnection and resale
agreements with competitive local service providers, and most
have been approved by the relevant state commission. AT&T,
MCI WorldCom and other competitors are reselling SBC local
exchange services. and as of December 31, 1998, there were
approximately 800.000 SBC access lines supporting services of
resale competitors throughout the Telephone Companies’
regulated operating areas, most of them in Texas and California.
Many competitors have placed facilities in service and have
begun advertising campaigns and offering services. SBC also
was granted facilities-t ased and resale operating authority
in certain lerritories served by other LECs and now offers local
exchange service offerings to these areas.

In California, the CPUC authorized facilities-based local
seryices competition effective January 1996 and resale competi-
tion effective March 1996. While the CPUC has established local
competition rules and intenm prices, several issues still remain
to be resolv ' acluding final rates for resale and LEC provision-
ing and pric: certain network elements lo competitors.
PacBell has incurred substantal costs implementing local
competition and number portability. In November 1998, the
CPUC issued a decision allowing PaczBell to begin recovery of
local competition implementation costs

In Texas, the TRPUC set rates in December 1997 that SWBell
may charge for access and interconnection to its telephone

network The TPUC decision sets pricing for dozens of network
compaonents and completes a consolidated arbitration between
SWiBell and six of its wholesale customers, including AT&T and
MCIWorldCom.

In Missour), the MP5C issued orders on a consolidated
arbitration hearing with AT&T and MCI WorldCom and on
selected item: with Metropolitan Fiber Systems Among other
terms, the orders established discount rates for resale of SWBell
services and prices for unbundled network elements. SWBell
appealed the intetconnection ag=#ement fesulting from the
first arbitration proceeding on November 5, 1997, a decision 1s
still pending A second arbitration process to address other
interconnection issues with AT&T has concluded, and the MPSC
ordered that a conforming interconnection agreement be filed
SWBell appealed this order in April 1998

The Telephone Companies expect Increased competitive
pressure in 1999 and beyond from multiple providers in various
markets, including facilities-basea CLECs, interexchange carriers
and resellers At this ime, management is unable 10 asspss the
effect of competition on the industry as a whole. or finapcially on
SBC, but expects both losses of market share in local service and
gains resulting from new business ininatives, vertical services and
new service areas. Competition also continues to intensify in the
Telephone Companies intral ATA long distance markets For
example, it is estimated that providers other than PacBell now
serve mare than half of the business intral ATA long distance
customers in PacBell’s service areas. In addition, if intralL ATA tall
dialing parity is required, competition in intralLATA long disiance
markets is expected 1o increase.

In the international arena, Telmex was granted a concession
in 1990, which expired in August 1996, as the sole provider of
long distance services in Mexico, Several large competitors have
received licenses 1o compete with Telmex and have begun
operations. As of December 31, 1998, Telmex has retained
approximately 75% of its long distance customers Telmex's
share of international long distance tratfic 15 expected to decline
significantly when the proportional return mecharism, which
guarantees Telmex the same percentage of incoming traffic as
outgoing traffic, expires at the end of 1999 Aggressive local com
petition 15 expected in 1999, primanly in the business segment

Wireless

In 1993, the FCC adopted an order allocating radio spectium

and licenses for PCS PCS utilizes wireless telecommunications
digital technology at a higher frequency radio spectrum than
cellular Like cellular it is designed to permit access Lo a variety

of communications services regardless of subscriber location

In an FCC auction, which concluded in March 1995, PCS licenses
were awarded in 51 major markets SBC or affiliates acquired

PCS licenses in the Major Trading Areas ol Los Angeles San Diego,
Californi., San Francisco Qakland San Jose, California, Memphis,
Tennessee, Little Rock, Arkansas. and Tulsa, Oklahoma The
California licenses cover substantially all of California and Nevada,
SBC is currently operational in all of ts major California Nevada
markets and Tulsa, Oklahoma. During 1996, SBC received several
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~T&T cellular networks in Arkansas In exchange for S8C's PCS
licenses in Memphis, Tennessee, and Little Rock, Arkansas, and
other consideration.

PCS service was formally launched in all the major California
and Nevada markets at different times throughout 1997, with
the buildout to other areas continuing. The network incorporates
the Global System for Mobile Communications standard, which
is widely used in Europe. PBMS is selling PCS as an off-the-shelf
product in retail stores, through exclusive agents and in
company-owned stores across California and Nevada. Significant
competition exists, particularly from the two established cellular
companies = each market.

In an FCC auction that conciuded in January 1997, SBC
acquired eight additional PCS licenses for Basic Trading Areas that
are within the five-state area.

SBC also has state-approved interconnection agreements to
receive reciprocal compensation from interexchange carriers and
other local service providers accessing its wireless networks in
all states where it provides wireless services.

Companies that were granted licenses in areas where SBC
also provides wireless service include subsidiaries and affiliates of
AT&T, Sprint and other RHCs. Significant competition from PCS
providers exists in SBC's major markets. Competition has been
based upon both price and service packaging, such as unlimited
calling plans, and has contributed to SBC's decline in average
subscriber revenue per wireless customer.

Under the Telecomn Act of 1996, SBC may offer interLATA long
distance over its wireless network both inside and outside the
regulated operating areas. S8C has entered the wireless long
distance markets, and offers wireless long distance service in all
of its wireless service areas.

Directory

SWBYP, PB Directory and SNET Information Services, Inc. face
competition from over 100 publishers of printed directories in
their operating areas. Direct and Indirect competition also exists
from other advertising media, including newspapers, radio,
television and direct mail providers, as well as from directories
offered over the Internet,

OTHER BUSINESS MATTERS

New Accounting Standards | June 1998, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 133,"Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (FAS 133), which
will require all derivatives to be recorded on the balance sheet at
fair value, and will require changes in the fair value of the dertva-
tives to be recorded in net income or comprehensive income. FAS
133 must be adopted for years beginning after June 15, 1999, with
earlier adoption permitted. Management is currently evaluating the
impact of the change in accounting required by FAS 133, but is not
able to quantify the effect at this time,

See Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements for
a discussion of the new accounting standard on software costs.
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Wireless Acquisition See Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of the acquisition of
Comcast Cellular Corporation

Long Distance Agreement On February 8, 1999, SBC
announzed an agreement with Williams Communications
(Williams), a subsidiary of Williams Cos.. Inc., under which Willlams
will serve as SBC's long distance provider. As part of this agree
ment, SBC plans to acquire 10% of the common stock of Williams.
This investment will occur simultaneously with an initial public
offering of common stock by Willlams, scheduled for the second
quarter of 1999

Merger See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for a discussion of the merger agreement with
Ameritech Corporation.

5BC’s Year 2000 Project SBC operates numerous date-
sensitive computer applications and systems throughout its
businesses. Since 1996, SBC has been working to upgrade its net .
works and computer systems 1o properly recognize the Year 2000
and continue to process critical operational and financial informa-
tion. Companywide teams are in place to address and resclve Year
2000 issues and processes are under way to evaluate and manage
the risks and costs associated with preparing SBC's date-impacted
systems and networks for the new millennium.

SBC Is using a four-step methodology to address the issue J
The methodology consists of inventory and assessment, hard
ware and software fixes, testing and deployment. SBC measures
Its progress by tracking the number of completed hardware and
software applications, network components, personal computers
and building facilities that can correctly process Year 2000 dates

Inventory and assessment is estimated to require 20% of
the overall effort and includes the identification of items (e
line-by-line review of software code, switch generics, vendor
products, etc ) that could be impacted by the Year 2000 and the
determination of the work effort required to ensure compliance
The inventory and assessment phase has been completed. This
process involved reviewing over 340 million lines of software
code, 1,200 central office switches, 7,000 company buildings.
conducting an inventory and assessment of 117,000 personal
computers, and coordinating with 1,300 suppliers of 14,000
products to obtain adequate assurance they will be Year 2000
compliant or determine and address any appropriate
contingency plans or backup systems

Making the hardware and software fixes is the second phase
of the process and is estimated to require 25% of the overall
effort. This activity involves modifying program code, upgrading
computer software and upgrading or replacing hardware
As of December 31, 1998, the hardware and software fixes were
substantially complete.

Testing involves ensuring that hardware and software fixes
will work properly in 1999 and beyond and occurs both before
and after deployment. Testing is estimated to comprise 45% of
the overall effort Testing began early in 1998, is more than
two-thirds complete, and will continue through 1999 to aliow
for thorough testing before the Year 2000 Contingency plans and
backup systems are currently being written




Deployment involves placing the *fixed” systems into a live
environment to ensure they are working properly. Additional
testing is done after deployment as well. Deployment is esti-
mated to require 10% of the overall effort. More than half of the
deployment phase was completed as of December 31, 1998

SBC expects to spend approximately $265 on the entire
project, with approximately 5140 spent through December 31,
1998, As testing and hardware and software fixes are estimated
to require most of the expenditures, there is not a strict correla:
tion between expenditures and project completion.

The o uvities involved in SBC's Year 2000 project necessarily
require estimates and projections, as described above, of activities
and resources that will be required in the future, These estimates
and projections could change as work progresses on the project,

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

SHC had 5460 of cash and cash equivalents available at
December 31, 1998. Commercial paper borrowings s of
December 31, 1998 totaled $1,044. SBC has entered into
agreements with several banks for lines of credit totaling
$1,460, all of which may be used to suppaort commercial paper
borrowings (see Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements). SBC had no borrowings outstanding under these
lines of credit as of December 31, 1998,

Cash from Operating Activities

During 1998, as in 1997 and 1996, SBC's primary source of funds
continued to be cash generated from operations, as shown in
the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Net cash provided
by operating activities exceeded SBC's construction and capital
expenditures during 1998, as in 1997 and 1996; this excess is
referred 1o as free cash flow, a supplemental measure of liquidity.
SBC generated free cash flow of $2,454, $1,366 and $2,046 in
1998, 1997 and 1996.

Cash from Investing Activities
To provide high-quality communications services to its cus-
tomers, SBC, particularly its Wireline and Wireless operations,
must make significant investments in property, plant and equip-
ment. The amount of capital investment is influenced by demand
for services and products, continued growth and regulatory
commitments

SBC's capital expenditures totaled $5,927, 56,230 and $5,855
for 1998, 1997 and 1996. Capital expenditures in the Wireline
segment were relatively unchanged in 1998 compared to 1997.
The Wireline segment’s capital expenditures increased 12% in
1997 due primarily to demand-related growth, network upgrades,
customer-contracted requirements, ISDN projects and SWBell's
regulatory commitments. The Wireless segment’s capital
expenditures decreased 17% and 23% in 1998 and 1997 due
primarily to expenditures for initial buildout of the PCS network
and conversion of SBC’s largest cellular markets to digital during
1997 and 1996

In 1999, management expec’s total capital spending to be
between $6,400 and $6.800. Capital expenditures in 1999 will

relate primarily to the continued evolution of the Telephone
Companies’ networks, including amounts agreed to under
regulation plans at SWBell, and continued buildout of Mobile
Systems markets and PBMS. SBC expects to fund ongoing capital
expenditures with cash provided by cperations.

SWHell has substantially compieted the additional network
and infrastructure improvements to be made over periods
ranging through 2001 to satisfy regulatory commitments.

Cash from Financing Activities

Dividends declared by the Board of Directors ol SBC were 50935
per share in 1998, $0.895 per share in 1997, and $0.86 per share in
1996 These per share amounts do not include dividends declared
and paid by PAC and SNET prior to their respective mergers. The
total dividends paid by SBC, PAC and SNET were 51,836 in 1998,
51.755in 1997 and 51,795 in 1996 Pursuant to the terms of the
merger agreement, PAC reduced tts dividend beginning in the
second quarter of 1996. The lower second and third quarter
dividends paid in 1996 improved 1996 cash flow by approximately
$195 SBC's dividend policy considers both the expectations and
requirements of shareawners, internal requirements of SBC and
long-term growth opportunities

In February 1998, SBC called 5630 of long-term debt for
retirement, including $175 at PacBell and $425 ar SWBell, and
issued approximately 5200 in debentures at PacBell due
February 2008 and approximately 5200 in debentures at SWiell
due March 2048. In September 1998, 5BC called $175 of
long-term debt for retirernent, all at SWell. In October 1998,
PacBell repurchased 5684 of debentures.

Total debt increased during 1997 due primarily 1o the issuance
of medium-term notes and debentures at the Telephone
Companies and debt redeemable either in cash or Telmex L shares

During 1996 PAC issued 51,000 of TOPrS, $500 at 7.56% in
January 1996 and $500 at B.5% in June 1996 (see Note 11 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) The proceeds were
used to retire outstanding short-term debt, primarily commercial
paper that had increased significantly during 1995

5BCs tal capital consists of debt (long term debt and debt
maturing, «thin one year), TOP1S and shareowners’ equity. Total
capital yi.reased $108 in 1998 and $1,056 in 1997, The increase
in 1998 was due 1o 1998 earnings, partially offset by lower debt
levels The increase in 1997 was prnimanly due to higher debt
levels and 1997 earnings

SBC's debt ratio was 48 99, 57 1% and 56 8% at December 31,
1998, 1997 and 1996. The debt ratio 15 affected by the same
factors that affect total capital

MARKET RISK

SBC's capital costs are directly linked to financial and business
risks. SBC seeks to manage the potenual negative effects from
market volatility and market rnisk. Certain financial instruments
used to oblain capital are subject to market risks from fluctua
tions in market interest rates The majority of SBC s inancial
instruments are medium- and long-term fixed rate notes and
debentures Fluctuations in market interest rates can lead to
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continuso]

Dallars in millians except per thare amounty

significant fluctuations in the fair value of these notes and additienal 26% from mid-February 1999, SBC would record
debentures. It is the policy of SBC to manage its debt structure additional expense of approximately SH

and foreign exchange exposure in order 1o manage capital costs
control financial nsks and maintain financial flexibility over the
long term. Where appropriate, SBC will take actions to limit the
negative effect of interest and foreign exchange rates, liquidity
and counterparty risks on shareowner value.

interest Rate Sensitivity

The principal amount by expected maturily, average interest rate
and fair value of SBC’s llabilities that are exposed to interest rate
risk are described in Notes 10 and 11 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. Following are SBC s interest rate derivativies

Quantitative Information about Market Risk subject to interest rate rsk (none of these denvatives mature in
Foreign Exchange Risk Sensitivity Analysis 2000 through 2003):
USS. Dollar Value of NetUndeilying ) N " Maturny
Het Fowign Foreion Comency T ARt Fair Value
Sxhange Traniaction 999 003 Total  12/31/98

December 31,1998 Contracty Exposures o == : B e
Swiss Fran o 5 24 R ¢ 24 Interest Rate Derivatives N . -
Japanese Yen 142 142 Iﬂerest Rate Swaps o
French Franc 37 37 Receive Variable/Pay Fixed
Chilean Peso 32 32 National Amount’ 550 550 RN
Total Exposure §235 5235 Fixed Rate Payable 7.2%

Weighted Average Vanable
Hote There i na net exposed long/short currency pouticn and no foresgn sxchange oy ¢
from a 10% depreciation of the US dollar Hate Recewable‘_ 51%

The preceding table describes the effects of a change in the value Receive Vatiable/Pay Fixed

of the Swiss franc Japanese yen, Chilean peso and French franc Notlaeal Amaunt! $I3 Ll 1

given a hypothetical 10% depreciation of the U.S. dollar. Since the Fixed Rate Payable 67%  67%

identified exposure is fully covered with forward contracts, changes Weighted Average Vanable

in the value of the US. dollar which affect the value of the under- _ Rate Receivable® 50% 55%

lying foreign currency commitment are fully offset by changes in Weceive Variable/Pay Flaed ameunt is ovet equally try $50 b Vas i Wate Dbt matusing i

the value of the foreign currency contract. If the underlying 1970 with an average interest rate of 4 5% and a lai v aloe of $50 |

currency transaction exposure changed, the resulting mismatch “Werghted Average Variabie Rate Aevenvable based on current and the imphesd forward rates

would expose the company t6 currency tisk of the fOf'EIgI"l .m the yreld curve at the repodling date lor Contant Maturity Treavury manuy 20 B oty
Receive Varable Pay Fiaed amaunt offsets 5130 eawe obbgation due alter 2007 with an

exchange contract. For this reason, all contracts are related to firm average interest fate of % 8% and 4 tair value of §11

commitments and matched by maturity and currency. Wesghted Aweeage Varisbile Hate Red sivatibe based 00 curtent and the impted forwand rates
o The yueld Cutve ot the regaating date fos Cire Myt b | IRGCH

Equity Price Risk Sensitivity Analysis ‘

SBC Is exposed to equity price risk related to the change in the As a result of interest rate fluctuations, If SBC were to terminate

price of AirTouch Communications, Inc. (AirTouch) common stock the contracts, it would be required to pay 52 to replace the fixed

related (o the settlement of employee stock options. At rate flows or "unwind” the interest swaps SBC does not intend 1o

December 31, 1998, the net appreciated value of the equity swap terminate the $50 contract as it 15 inked 1o the vanable rate debt

contract entered in 1994 was $26, while the value of the underly- tssued by SBC that also matures in 1999

ing employew stock option exposures for AirTeuch common stock There has been no material change in the updated market

was 525, leaving a net exposed long equity position of $1_1If the risks since December 31,1997

value of AirTouch common stock increased by 26%, the net Qualitative Informaticn about Market Rixk

exposed long equity position would increase by $1 to $2. Since
January 1,1995, the average yearly share price of AirTouch
common stock has increased 26%. The equity swap contract
expires April 1999 and the last option gr=nt expires January 2003.
(See Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.) In
February 1999, management evaluated the exposure to future
appreciation ol AirTouch common stock and the benefit 1o
“unwinding” the swap. As a result, SBC began exiting the equity
swap contract, receiving cash for the appreciated value of the
contract and recognizing a minimal gain, Once exited, SBC will
record in other income (expense] - nct future changes in the
value of the underlying employee stock option exposure. If

the value of AirTouch commaon stock were to increase by an

Foreign Exchange Risk

From tme to ime SBC makes investments in operations in for
eign countries, is paid dividends. receives proceeds from sales or
borrows funds in foreign currency. Before making an investment,
or in anticipation of a foreign currency receipt, SBC will aften
enter into forward foreign exchange contracts The contracts are
used to provide currency at o fixed rate SBCS policy 1s to measure
the risk of adverse currency fluctuations by calculating the
potential dollar losses resulting from changes in exchange rates
that have a reasonable probability of occurning SBC covers the
exposure that results from changes that exceed acceptable
amaounts SBC does not speculate in fareign exchange markets
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Equity Risk

SBC has expasure to risk of market changes related to its
recorded liability for outstanding employee stock options for
common stock of AirTouch (spun-off operations), 5BC plans to
make open market purchases of the stock of spun-off operations

to satisfy i1s obligation for options that are exercised. Off-balance-

sheet risk exists to the extent the market price of AirTouch rises
in value, As discussed in “Equity Price Risk Sensitivity Analysis”
above, SBC evaluated the exposure to future appreciation of
AirTouch common stock and Is exiting a swap contract related
to the options by April 1999,

Interest Rate Risk

SBC issues debt in fixed and floating rate instruments. Interest
rate swaps are used for the purpose of controlling interest
expense by fixing the interest rate of floating rate debt. When
market conditions favor issuing debt in floating rate instruments,
and SBC prefers not to take the risk of floating rates, SBC will
enter interest rate swap contracts to obtain floating rate pay-
ments to service the debt in exchange for paying a fixed rate.

SBC does not seek to make a profit from changes in interest rates.

SBC manages interest rat= sensitivity by measuring potential
increases in interest expense that would result from a probable

change in interest rates. When the potential increase in interest
expense exceeds an acceptable amount, SBC reduces risk through
the issuance of fixed rate instruments and purchasing derivatives.

CAUTIONARY LANGUAGE CONCERNING
FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

Intarmation set forth in this report contains forward looking
statements thai are subject to nisks and uncertainties. SBC claims
the pratection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements
provided by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

The following factors could cause SBC's future results to differ
materially from those expressed in the forward-looking state
ments: (1) adverse economic changes in the markets served by
SBC or changes in available technology, (2) the final outcome of
various FCC rulemakings and judicial review, if any, of such rule-
makings; {3) the final outcome of various state requlatory
proceedings in SBC's eight-state area, and judicial review, if any, of
such proceedings; and (4) the timing of entry and the extent of
competition in the local and intralLATA toll markets in SBC's eight
state area Readers are cautioned that other factors discussed in
this report, although not enumerated here also could materially
impact SBC's future earnings
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Dollary in miliony except per thare amounts

Operating Revenues
Landline local service
Wireless subscriber
Network access

Long distance service
Directory advertising
Other

Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses
Operations and support
Depreciati~ | and amortization

Total operating expenses

Other Income (Expense)
Interest expense
Equity in net income of affiliates
QHEr_J_nguTe (expense) - net
Total other income (expense)
Income Before Income Taxes, Extraordinary Loss and
_Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change =~
Ir}(al_‘nu laxes B
Income Before Extraordinary Loss and Cumulative
Effect of Accounting Change
Extraordinary Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt, net of tax
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change, net of tax
Net Income

Earnings Per Common Share:

Income Before Extraordinary Loss and Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change
Net Income

Earnings Per Common Share - Assuming Dilution:
Income Before Extraordinary Loss and Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change
Net Income

The accampanying natey are an integral part of the ¢onsolidated financial sLatements

1998

$11,100
3,783
6,512
2,355
2,420
2607
28,777

16,714
5177
_21.89)
6.88¢

(993)
236
245

(512)

6,374
2,306

4,068
160)
15
$ 4,023

o

2.08
s 206

o

2.05
$ 2.03

1997

$10,334
3372
6.215
2.352
2,280
2,128
26,681

17,802
5,301

23103
3578
(1,04 3)
20
78)
(920)

2,658
984

1.674

5 1674

0 H6

$ 085
S 0A8s

5 9,465
2,907
6.203
2,523
2,156
1,948

25,202

14,510
4,466

18,976
6,226
(901}
207
{75)
(769)

5,457
2,070

3,387

5 3477

5 73
.

$ 172
5 117




(ONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Datlars in milhians escept pet share amounty

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term cash investments

Accounts receivable - net of allowances for uncollectibies of 5472 and $430
Prepaid expenses

Deferred income taxes

Other current assets

T{J!d‘ current assets

Propany, Plant and Equipment - Net

lnunglblo Assets - Net of Accumulated m«ﬂ;ltl?n of SM‘I and $1,047
Investments in Equlty Aﬂllum - -

Other Assets

Total Assets

I.hbllitles and Shlmnui‘ Equity
Current Liabilities

Debt maturing within one year
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Dividends payable

Tola! current ||abihues
Long-'!‘nm Debt

Deferred Credits and Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Deferred income taxes

Postemployment benefit obligation

Unamortized investment tax credits

Other noncurrent liabilities

—— e e i v

Total deterred credits and other noncurrent liabilities

Corporation- obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of suhﬂdhry trusts’

Shareowners' Equity
Preferred shares (51 par value, 10,000,000 authorized: none issued)

Common shares ($1 par value, 7,000,000,000 authorized: issued 1.987,532,349 at December 11, 1998

and 1,984,141 868 at December 31, 1997)
Capital in excess of par value
Retained earnings
Guaranteed obligations of employee stock ownership plans (ESOP)
Deferred compensation - leveiaged ESOP (LESOP)

Treasury shares (28,217,018 at December 31,1998 and 29,741,356 at December 31, 1997, at cost)

A([umula[cd other comprehensive income

Total shareowners' equity

Tutal Llabilltlu lnd Shareowners’ Equity

*The truyts contain avsety of $1.000 n peineipal amaount of the Subordinated Debentures of Pecific Tekesn (oup
e a0 ariLarrginng oles ste s integral part of the consolidsted finandial staterments

Duvcember 31

1998 1637

$ 460 S 410
6 320

5,790 5 344
414 i57
489 660
379 426
7,538 7917
29,920 29,068
3,087 3,663

2, 514 2,740
2, 007 1,848
$45,066 544 816
$ 1,55 5 2,139
7,980 B.330
458 441
9,989 10910
", 612 13,176
1,990 1569
5,220 5.200
159 411
2,116 2,030
9,685 9,230
1,000 1,000
1,288 992
9,139 9,966
3,396 1,204
(147) {219)
(82) (119
(B82) {730]
(632) 1574)
12,780 10,520
545,066 544,836
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Dailars in million increase (decrearel in cavh and cash equivalents

Operating Actlvities
Netincome
Adjustments to reconcile net income 1o net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Undistributed earnings from investments in equity affiliates
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Amortization of investment tax credits
Deferred income tax expense
Extraordinary loss, net of tax
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax
Changes in operating assets and liabiiities:
Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Other net

Ti‘i! adjustments -
Net Cash Provided by Opvlrlﬂ!'l_g Activities
Investing Activities

Construction and capital expenditures
Investments in affiliates

Purchase of short-term investments
Proceeds from short term investments
Dispositions

Acquisitions

Other

Net Cash Used in investing Actlvities

Financing Activities

Net change iri short-term borrowings with original maturities of three months or less
Issuance of other short-term borrowings

Repayment of other short-term borrowings

Issuance of long-term debt

Hepayment of long-term debt

Early extinguishment of debt and related call premiums

lssuance of frust enginated preferred securities

Purchase of fractional shares

Issuance of common shares

Purchase of treasury shares

Issuance of treasury shares

Dividends pad
Other

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year
Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Year

The accompanying notes are &n integral pan of the consolidated Nnancial statements

FalLb J

1998

$4,023

5177
(56)
5113
(72)
533
60
{15)

(959)
(8)
(1a7)
(628)
4,358
8,38

(5,927)

(85)

(42)
355
1.140

1
(4,548)

(367)

2
8)

413
()
(765)

64
(498}
ioa
(1.811)
(3,783)
50
410

=3 460

Ty’

51674

5,301
1100)

566
182)
239

(902)

{56}
14

(475
5922
7,596

(6,230}

(26)

1916)
1.029
574

(1,118}
13

6,670)

1563)
1,079
(BOS)
1,597
{602}
(6}

15)

(B7)
293

(1,724)

(7}

(B40)
b

5347

4466
(138)

438
(B2

485

(90}

(1.087)
101
591

1450)
4424
7,901

(5,855)
(74)
(1.005)
816
96
(442
19
(6,445)

(974)
209
1134)
988
(443)

1,000

m
(650)

52
{1,765)
1103)
(1,709]
(253)
577

s 324




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY

Dollars and yharey an milligny esCept ped thare amounts

Atwrrmt:lrd
Capital in Retained Cruargnte-d Deletied gt
Kot SHASY E‘:ﬂ'l of famingn  Obbgat o C ompemation  Comgerhenine

Shares  Amount Par Yakse I:Dq,-flt;.-.tl . ultu)f u-,m I e
Balance, December 31,1995 991§ 99 $10.002  § (546) $1331) 51242) $15781

Net income for the year
(%1 78 pet share) : - 3477 =
Other comprehensive Income,
net of tax
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of income
tax benefit of $28 - - — - _ = ) 1591

Total Comprehensive Income
Dwvidends to shareowners
(S0.86 pet share) = - (115) (1,680 — =
Reduction of debt associated
with ESOP == 2 - = 55
Cost of LESOP trust shares
allocated to employee accounts - - —
Issuance of comman shares — — 20
21
3

Purchase of treasury shares - —
Issuance of treasury shares - -
Ot e = =
Balance, December 31, 1996 991 991 9,931
Net income for the year
150.86 pet share) = = =
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax:
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of income
__taxexpenseof$38 = - = - = = = e 8
Total Comprehensive Income
Dividends to sha;eowners
(50.895 per share) — - — {1,755) -~
Reduction of debt associated
viith ESOP - - - - 57
Cost of LESOP trust shares
allocated to employee accounts — - - = 42
Issuance of commaon shares 1 1 39 — -
Purchase of treasury shares — = -
Issuance of treasury shares - — 138) -~ ~
Other - S = 34 N
Balance, December 31,1997 992 992 9966 1204  (219] 9 (574)
Net incame lor the year
{62.06 per shate) — = — 4,023 - -
Other comprehensive InCome,
net of tax,
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of income

e (037)

i

1 I
$!b| 11
=

N

b I |

E

8
i

tax benefit of $37 - - - 1581
Unrealized gain on available
for-sale securities - — = = = &0

Less: reclassification
adjustment for gains
_included in netincome  — _ = — = . 160

Total Compiehensive Income
Dividends to shateowners

(50935 per share| - - - (1,836} = = =
Two-for-one stock split 993 993 (993 — = = .
Reduction of debt associated

with ESOP — — - - 12
Cost of LESOP trust shares

allocated to employee accounts - - — — == i7
Issuance of commaon shares 3 3 74 — — -

Purchase of treasury shares — —_ —_ — = =

Issuance of treasury shares — — {33} - = =

Other — - 125 5 - -
E_alln_?.p_l-_c_!mb!r 31,1998 1,988 §1,988 $9,139 $3,396 _ 5(147) § (82) 51632)
Thee accompanyin g notes gre an ntegral part of the consolidated flinatcial statements

.
“haiey A it M e
an S 4K 4
1477
159)
3418
(13 (650}
4 146
20} (985) 3418
- 1,674
- == 63
1,737
(21 |B7] ==
7 335
7
(15) (73J) 1,737
4023
(58}
60
(&)
1,965
(15) -
(12 (49H] =
14 146

(28) s(882)  $3,965
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dollary i millians eap el per share amounts

HOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Baslis of Presentation - The consolidated financial statemonts
include the accounts of SBC Communications Inc. and its majority
owned subsidianes (SBC). The statements reflect SBC's mergers
with Pacific Telesis Group (PAC) and Southern New England
Telecommunications Corporation (SNET) as poaling of interests
(see Note 2). SBC's subsidiaries and affiliates operate predomi
nantly in the communications services industry, providing landline
and wireless telecommunications services and equipment and
directory advertising both domestically and worldwide

SBC's principal wireline subsidiaries are Southwestern Bell
Telephone Company [SWBell), providing telecommunications ser
vices in Texas, Missourl, Oklahoma, Kansas and Arkansas, Pacific
Bell (PacBell, which also includes Pacific Bell Information Services),
The Southern New England Telephone Company and Nevada Bell
(collectively referred 1o as the Telephone Companies). SBC's prin
cipal wireless subsidiaries are Southwestern Bell Mobile Systems,
inc., Pacific Bell Mobile Services and SNET Cellular, Inc. SBC's prin-
cipal directory subsidiaries are Southwestern Bell Yellow Pages,
Inc (SWBYP), Pacific Bell Directory (PB Directory) and SNET
Information Services, Inc,

All significant intercompany transactions are eliminated
in the consolidation process. Investments in partnerships, joint
ventures and less than majority-owned subsidiaries are princi-
pally accounted for vnder the equity method. Earnings from
certaln foreign investments accounted for under the equity
method are included for periods ended within three months
of SBC's year end.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reparted in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Certain amounts
in prior period financial statements have been reclassified to con-
form to the current year's presentation,

Income Taxes - Deferred income taxes are provided for tem-
porary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for tax purposes

Investment ax credits earned prior to their repeal by the Tax
Retorm Act of 1986 are amortized as reductions in income tax
expense over the lives of the assets which gave rise to the credits

Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents include all highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Deferred Charges - Directory advertising costs are deferred
unul the directory is published and advertising revenues related
to these costs are recognized.

Revenue Recognition/Cumulative Effect of Accornting
Change - SBC recognizes revenues as earned. Amounts billed in
advance ol the peniod in which service is rendered are recorded
as o Hability.

SNET Information Services, Inc. prior to January 1, 1998, and
PB Directory, prior to January 1, 1996, recognized revenues and
expenses related to publishing directories using the "amortiza-

rALY 1

tion” method, under which revenues and expenses were recog
nized over the lives of the ditectories, generally one year Effective
January 1, 1998, tor SNET Information Services. Inc and January |
1996, for PB Directory the accounting was changed 1o the "issue
basis® method ol accounting which recognizes the revenues and
expenses at the time the related directory is published The
change in methodology was made because the issue basis
method is generally followed in the publishing industry. including
SWBYP, and better reflects the aperating actuvity of the business

The cumulative after-tax effect of applying the changes in
method to prior years was recognized as of January 1, 1998 and
1996 as ane-time, non-cash gains of $15, or S0.01 per share and
$90, or $0.05 per share The gains are net of deferred taxes of 511
and $53. Had the curtent method been applied during prior peri-
ods. incame before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of
accounting change would not have been materially affected.

Property, Plant and Equipment - Property, plant and equip
ment |s stated at cost. The cost of additions and substantial bet
terments of property, plant and equipment is capitalized The cost
of maintenance and repairs of propei ly, plant and equipment is
charged to operating expenses. Property, plant and equipr »nt s
depreciated using straight-line methods over their estimatec ‘co
nomic lives, generally ranging from 3 to 50 years In accordanc:
with composite group depreciation methodology. when a portion
of the Telephone Compames depreciable property, plant and
equipment is retired in the ordinary course of business, the gross
book value is charged to accumulated depreciatios, no gain or
lass is recognized on the disposition of this plant

Intangible Assets - Intang ble assets consist pnmanly of wire
less cellular and Personal Communications Services (PCS) licenses,
customer hists and the excess of consideration paid over net
assets acquired in business combinations These assets are being
amortized using the straight-line method, cver penods generally
ranging from 5 to 40 years. At December 31, 1998 and 1997,
amounts included in netintangible assets for icenses were
52,141 and $2.261 Management periodically reviews the carrying
value and lives of all intangible assets based on expected future
cash flows.

Software Costs - The costs of comput=r soltware purchased
or developed for internal use are expensed as incurred, However,
initial opeiating system soltwaie costs are capitalized and amor
tized over the estimated economic lives of the associated hard
ware. The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants has
issued a Statement of Position (SOP) that requires capitalization
of certain computer software expendituies beginning in 1999

Management continues to evaluate the impact of the rhange
in acenunting required by the SOP and anticipates that it will
increase net income by less than $200 in 1999 With comparable
levels of software expenditures, the SOP would tend to increase net
income in comparison with SBC’s current method of accounting for
software costs. However, the increases would be largest in the year
of adoptior, with diminishing levels of increases compared with
current accounting throughout the amortization period
Consequently, given otherwise comparable income levels exclud
ing software, and otherwise comparable software expenditures, the




effect of the SOP would be to increase income In the first year and
decrease income in each subsequent year until the number of
years affected by the SOP equals the amortization period.
Advertising Costs - Costs for advertising products and ser-
vices or corporate image are expensed as incurred (see Note 18).
Foreign Currency Translation - Local currencies are generally

considered the functional currency for SBC's share of fereign opera-

tions, except in countries considered highly inflationary. SBC trans-
lates its share of foreign assets and liabilities at current exchange
rates. Revenues and expenses are translated using average rates
during the year. The ensuing foreign currency translation adjust-
ments are recorded a5 a separate component of shareowners'
equity. Other transaction gains and losses resulting from exchange
rate change' on transactions denominated in a currency other
than the local currency are included in earnings as incurred.
Derivative Financial Instruments - SBC does not invest in any
derivatives for trading purposes. From time to time as part of its
risk management strategy. SBC uses immaterial amounts of
derivative financial instruments including interest rate swaps to
hedge exposures to interest rate risk on debt obligaticns, and
foreign currency forward exchange contracts to hedge expo-
sures to changes in foreign currency rates for transactions
related to its foreign investments. Derivative contracts are
entered into for hedging of firm commitments only. SBC cur-
rently does not recognize the fair values of these derivative
financial investments or thelr changes in fair value in its financial
statements. Interest rate swap settiements are recognized as
adjustments to interest expense in the consolidated statements
of income when paid or received. Foreign currency forwar?
exchange contracts are set up to coincide with firm commit-
ments. Gains and losses are deferred until the underlying trans-
action being hedged occurs, and then are recognized as part of
that transaction. PAC entered into an equity swap contract to
hedge exposure to risk associated with its recorded liabllity for
certain outstanding employee stock options relating to stock of
AirTouch Communications Inc. (AlrTouch) (see Note 15). The
equity swap contract and its liability are recorded at fair value in

the balance sheet as other assets or liabilities. Equity swap settle-
ments are recorded in interest expense in the consolidated state-

ments of income when paid or received.
NOTE 2. MEKGERS WITH SNET AND PAC

On April 1,1997, 5BC and PAC completed the merger of an SBC
subsidiary with PAC, in a transaction In which each outstanding
share of PAC common stock was exchanged for 1.4629 shares of
SBC common stock (equivalent to approximately 626 million
shares). With the merger, PAC became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of 5BC. The transaction has been accounted for as a pooling of
interests and a tax-free reorganization.

Transaction costs and one-time charges relating to the clos-
ing of the merger were 5359 ($215 net of tax) including, among
other items, the present value ¢f amounts to be returned to
California ratepayers as a condition of the merger and expenses
for investment banker and professional fees Of this total, $287

($180 net of tax) is included in expenses in 1997, and $72 {535 net
of tax) in 1996. The amounts due to ratepayers are being p2'd out
over five years, from 1998 1o 2002.

On October 26,1998, 5BC and SNET completed the merger of
an SBC subsidiary with SNET, in a transaction in which eazn share
of SNET common stock was exchanged for 1.7568 shares of SBC
common stock (equivalent to approximately 120 million shares)
SNET became a wholly-owned subsidiary of SBC effective with
the merger and the transaction has been accounted for as a pool-
ing of interests and a tax-free reorganization. Financial statements
for prior periods have been restated to include the accounts of
SNET. Transaction costs related to the merger were 540 (£26 net
of tax).

Operating revenues, income before extraordinary loss and
cumulative effect of accounting change and net income of the
separate companies for the pre-merger periods of the last three
periods were as follows:

" Nine Months Ended Year Ended
September 30, December 31
. B T
Operating revenues
SBC $19,495 $24.659 $23,260
. - V608 2 2022 2@ 1942
_ Combined _S21001  Sle681 52502
Income before extraordinary
loss and cumulative cffect
of accounting change:
SBC $ 3,085 5 1474 5 3,189
SNET 164 198 193
_Adjustments 3 2 3
~ Combined $3352 51674 5 3387
Net income
SBC $ 3,085 5 1,474 5 32719
SNET 179 194 193
Adjustments o 3 6 5
Combined $ 3,267 5 1674 § 3477

retroactively to conform the accounting methodologies between
SNET and SBC for pension and postemployment benefits 58C
believes the new method is more prevalent and better reflects
the operations of the business

Post-merger initiatives - During the second quarter of 1997,
SBC announced after-tax charges of 51.6 billion related to several
strategic decisions resulting from the merger integration process
that began with the April 1, 1997 closing of its merger with PAC,
which included $165 ($101 after tax) of charges related to several
regulatory rulings during the second quarter of 1997 and 5281
($176 after tax) for merger approval costs. The decisions resulted
from an extensive review of operations throughout the merged
company and include significant integration of operations and
consolidation of some agministrative and support functions.
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During the fourth quarter of 1998, SBC again performed a
complete review of all operations affected by the merger with
SNET to determine the impact on ongolng merger integration
processes, Review teams examined operational functions and
evaluated all strategic initiatives, As a result of this review, SBC
announced net after-tax charges of $268 related to strategic
declsions arlsing from the review and expensing of merger-
related costs incurred by SNET.

One-time charges related to the strategic decisions reached
by the review teams totaled 5403 (5249 after tax) in the fourth
quarter of 1998 and 52 billion (51.3 billion after tax) in the second
quarter of 1997 At December 31,1998 and 1997, remaining
accruals for anticipated cash expenditures related to these
decisions .ere approximately $323 and 5432,

Reorganization - SBC is centralizing several key functions
that will support the operations of the Telephone Companies,
including network planning, strategic marketing and procure-
ment. It is also consolidating a number of corporate-wide support
activities, including research and development, information
technolegy. financial transaction processing and real estate
management. The Telephone Companies will continue as separate
legal entities. These initiatives continue to result in the creation of
some jobs and the elimination and realignr nt of others, with
many of the affected employees changing jub responsibilities and
in some cases assuming positions in other locations.

SBC recogmized charges of approximately $82 ($50 net of tax)
during the fourth quarter of 1998 and $338 (5213 net of tax) dur-
ing the second ouarter of 1997 in connection with these initia
tives. The charges were comprised mainly of pastemployment
benefits, primarily related to severance, and costs associated with
cloving down duplicate operations, primarily contract cancella-
tions. Other charges arising out of the mergers related to reloca-
tion, retraining and other effects of consolidating certain
aperations are being recognized in the periods those charges are
incurred The initial integration process subsequent to the PAC
merger resulted in SBC incurring expenses for these merger-
related items in advance of any substantial synergistic benefits.
During the second half of 1997, these merger-related charges
totaled $501 (5304 net of tax).

Impairments/asset valuation - As a result of SBC's merger
integration plans, strategic review of domestic operations and
organizational alignments, SBC reviewed the carrying values of
related long-lived assets in the fourth quartar of 1998 and the
second quarter of 1997 The reviews were conducted company-
wide, although the fourth quarter 1998 review focused primarily
an SNET. These reviews included estimating remaining useful
lives and cash flows and identifying assets to be abandoned.
Where this review indicated impairment, discounted cash flows
related to those assets were analyzed to determine the amount of
the impairment As a result of these reviews, SBC wrote offl some
assets and recognized impalrments to 11 value of other assets,
recording a combined charge of $321 (5199 after tax) in the
fourth quarter of 1998 ana $965 ($667 after tax) in the second
quarter of 1997,

The 1998 impairments and v.riteoffs primarily related to
recognition of an impairment of the assets supporting SNET's
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video and telephony operations, and also included charges lor
requited changes in wireless equipment, inventory and sites. The
1997 impairments and writeoffs related primarily to the wircless
digital TV operations in southern California, certain analog switch
ing equipment in California, certain rural and other telecommuni-
cations equipment in Nevada_ selecied wireless equipment,
duplicate or obsolete equipment, cable within commercial build-
ings in California, certain nonoperating plant and other assets

Pacific and Southwestern video curtallment/purchase
commitments - SBC also announced in 1997 that it was scaling
back its imited direct investment in video services in the areas
also served by PacBell and SWHBell As a result of this curtailment,
SBC halted construction on the Advanced Communications
Network (ACN) in California, As part of an agreement with the
ACN vendor, SBC paid the liabilities of the ACN trust that owned
and financed ACN construction, incutred costs to shut down all
construction previously conducted under the trust and received
certain consideration from the vendor. In the second quarter of
1997, SBC recognized net expense of 5553 (5346 after tax) associ-
ated with these activities. Duning the third quarter of 1997, S8C
recorded the corresponding short-term debt of $610 previously
incurred by the ACN trust on its balance sheet Additionally, SBC
curtailed certain other video related activities including discon-
tinuing its broadband network video tnals in Richardson, Texas,
and San Jose, California, substantially scaling back its involvement
in the Tele-TV joint venture and withdrawing its operations in ter
ritory served by SWBell from the Americast venture Americast
partners are disputing the withdrawal in arbitration ard litigation,
the outcome of which cannot be predicted. but is not expected
to have a material impact on SBC's financial condition or results
of operations. The collective impact of these decisions and
actions by SBC resulted in a charge of $145 (592 after tax) in the
second quarter of 1997

NOTE 3. MERGER AGREEMENT WITH AMERITECH CORPORATION

On May 11, 1998, SBC announced a delinitive agreement 1o
merge an SBC subsidiary with Amentech Corporation (Ameritech)
in a transaction in which each share of Amentech common stock
will be canverted into and exchanged for 1 316 shares of SBC
common stock (equivalent to approximately 1,450 million shares)
After the merger, Ameritech will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of
SBC. The transaction, which has been approved by the board al
directors and shareowners of each company, s intendad to be
accounted for as a pooling of interests and to be a tax-free reor
ganization, The merger is subject to certain requlatory approvals
including the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) and
state commissions in Qhio and illinois If approvals are granted.
the transaction is expected to close in 1999

SBC and Ameritech own competing cellular icenses in several
markelts, including, but not imited to, Chicago lllinois, and
St. Louis, Missouri (Overlapping Cellular Licenses), In an effort to
comply with the FCC's rules and regulations and certain provi
sions of the Merger Agreement, SBC and Amentech expect to be
required by the FCC to divest one of the Overlapping Cellular
Licenses in each market and are attempting (o determine the
manner in which an Overlapping Cellular License in each market
should be divested




The pro forma effect on SBC's consolidated statements of
income had the merger occurred on January 1, 1996 is 2« follows.

Pro Forma lumu-d_ltl-__ﬂ__ _ 1998 19%. e
Operating revenues $45.90 42,679 S40.119
wome before extraordinary

loss and cumulative effe«

of accounting change § 7,674 $ 3970 § 55N
Net income $ 7,629 53970  § 5610
Basic umings pcr share:
Income before extraordinary

loss and cumulative effect

of accounting change $§ 225 S 17 $ 162
Net income $ 2.24 S 117§ 16s
Diluted urnlngl per share:
Income before extraordinary

loss and cumulative effect

of accounting change $ 223 § 1.6 $ 161
Net come $ an 1 116 S 164

This pro Torm.a information does not include the effect of
changes, which will be applied retroactively, to conform
accounting methodologies between SBC and Ameritech. Based
on information currently available, management estimates the
conforming changes will not materially affect the pro forma
operaling revenues or income before extraordinary loss and
cumulative effect of accounting change. Additionally, the pro
forma information also does not include any potential cost sav
ings which may resiilt from the integration of SBC's and
Ameritech’s operations or future transaction costs relating to the
merger (which are estimated to be less than $90), nor does it con-
sider any reorganization costs or costs associated with the disposi
ton of the Overlapping Cellular Licenses that may be required.
Management is unable to quantify the potential cost savings that
may result from the integration of SBC and Ameritech. The finan-
aal impact of the reorganization costs or costs assoclated with the
disposition of the Overlapping Cellular Licenses cannot be deter-
mined pending the resolution of the disposal.

NOTE 4. PACYFIC TELESIS GROUP FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The followiny Luble presents summarized financial information
for PAC at December 31, or for the year then ended:

_ Tiee 1w 19%

Ballna- Shﬂu
Current assels $ 3,037 $ 2,835 $ 2474
Noncurrent assets 15,428 14,150 14,134

Current liabilities 5,278 4513 3527
~ Noncurrent liabilitic s 10,482 10413 10,308
Income Statements
Operating revenues 511,302 $10,101 $ 9,588
Opetating income (loss) 2,612 (156) 2,198
Income (loss) before extraordinary
loss and cumulative effe-r nf
accounting changes 240 (546) 1,057
Net income {loss) 1,180 (224) _ h42

SRC has not provided separate financial statements and other
disclosures for PAC as management has determined that such
information 15 not material to the holders of the irust Originated
Preferred Securities (TOPrS) (see Note 11), which have beer quar
anteed by SBC This information is provided as a suppleme: - nnly

NOTE 5. EARNINGS PER SHARE

A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of basic
earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for income
tefore extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting
change for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996
are shown in the table below

vear Ended December 31 Caees e 199
Numerators
Numerator for basic earmings
pet share
Income belore extraordinary loss

and cumulative effect of

‘accounting change 54,068 $1.674 $3.337
Dilutive potential common shares
Other stock-based compensation 4 1 2
Numerator for diluted
~earnings per shate $4,072 $1.677 $3.389
Denominators
Denominator for basic earnings
per share
Weighted average number
of common shares
outslanding (000) 1,956,610 1944617 1956200
Dilutive potential commaon
shares (000)
Stock options 21,701 12,926 7,385
Other stock based
compensation 5542 4388 3410
Denominator for dlfuted
_earnings per share 1,983,853 1961931 1,960,995
luk earnings per shm
Income before extraordinary
loss and cumulative effect
of accounting change $ 2.08 $ 086 $173
Extraordinary loss (0.01)
Cumulative effect of
accounting char je 0.01 - 005
NH tl’l(OI‘!:E $ 2.06 5 086 $ 178
Diluted nmuw‘ per share:
Income before extraotdinary
lots and cumulative effect of
accounting change s 2.05 $ 085 $172
Extraordinary loss (0.03)
Cumulative effect of
__accounting change 0o 0.5
Net incone $ 2.03 ¢ 0OBS $ 1 ?'._F

Faut §?
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property. plant and equipment is summarized as follows at
December 31

- S 1998 1o

Land 5 442 S 434
Buildings 6,842 6,502
Central office equipment 28,019 25,864
Cable, wiring and conduit 30,916 29,943
Other equipment 5,897 5,926
Under construction 1,350 1540
73,466 70,215

Acc _Lfr_nulaled depreciation and amortization 43546 a4
Property, plant and equipment - net $29.920 529,068

ble plant was 7.2%, 7.4% and 6.9% for 1998, 1997 and 1996,

© ertain facilities and equipment used in operations are under
operating or capital leases. Rental expenses under operating
leases for 1998, 1997 and 1996 were 5440, $386 and 5346, At
December 31, 1998, the future minimum rental payments under
noncancelable ope ating leases for the years 1999 through 2003
were §1,817,$2,652,52,519,52,553 and 52,508 and 57,096 there:
after. Capital leases are not significant.

NOTE 7. INVESTMENT IN TELEWEST COMMUNICATIONS PLC

During 1998, SBC owned up to 15% of Telewest Communications
plc (Telewest), the largest cable television operator in the United
Kingdom. Due to restrictions existing on the sale of SBC's interest
in Telewest, SBC accounted for its investment using the cost
method of accounting. During the third quarter of 1998, as a
result of Telewest's merger with General Cable, Telewest entered
into a new agreement with its key sharehciders, including SBC,
which lifted those restrictions. SBC was then required to account
for its investment in Telewest as available-for-sale securities
pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities™ (FAS 115). Under FAS 115, available-for-sale securities
are measured at falr value in the statement of financial position,
and unrealized holding gains and losses are excluded from
earnings and reported as a net amount in a separate component
of shareowners’ equity until realized. During 1998, 58C sold
approximately 90% of its Telewest investment for $425 and made
a charitable contribution of the remainder. The net effect from
Telewest transactions for the year ended December 31, 1998 was
to increase net income by 560.

NOTE B, EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Investments in affiliates accounted for under the equity method
include SBC's investment in Teléfonos de México, S.A.de CV.
(Telmex), Mexico's national telecommunications company. SBC
is a member of a consortium that holds all of the AA shares of
Telmex stock, representing voting control of the company.
Another member of the consortium, Carso Global Telecom, S.A.
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de CV, has the night to appoint a majority of the directors of
Telmex SBC also awns L shares which have limited voting nghts
Throughout 1998, SBC sold portions ol its | shares in response to
open market shate tepurchases by Telmex, so that (s total equity
investment remained below 109 of Telmex's total equity
capitalization

Other major equity investments held by SBC include a 1997
investment of approximately $760 in Telkom SA Limited (Telkom),
the state-owned telecommunic ations company of South Africa
{(see Note 17), an indirect 15% ownership in Cegetel, a joint ven
ture providing a broad range of telecommunications offerings in
France, investments in Chilean telecommunications operations
and minority ownership of several domestic wireless properties

The following table 15 a reconciliation of SBC's investments
in equity affiliates

o 19_?. 197 1‘-"_)6
Beginning of year $2.740 51,964 51.616
Additional investments 55 1.076 337
Equity in net income 216 20 207
Dividends received (167] (90) (70)
Currency translation adjustments (10} (135 (94}
Reciassifications and

_other adjustments (240) 1276 132}
End of year $2,514 52,740  51.964

The currency translation adjustment for 1998 pnmarily reflects
the effect of exchange rate fluctuations on SBCH investment in
South Africa. Other adjustments for 1998 reflect o write down of
an international investment and the sale of portions of SBC's
Telmex L shares

Currency translation adjustments for 1997 pumarily reflect
the effect of the exchange rate fluctuations on 5BCs investments
in South African and French telecommumications companies
Other adjustments for 1997 reflect the sale of portions of SBC's
Telmex L shares and the change to the co .t method of account
ing in 1997 for SBC's 1995 investment in South African wireless
operations which were sold during the third quarter of 1998
{see Note 17)

Undistributed earnings from equity affiliates were $918 and
5862 at December 31,1998 and 1997

NOTE 9. SEGMENT INFORMATION

SBC has four reportable segments Wireline, Wireless, [Hrectary
and Qther. The Wireline segment provides landline telecommuni
cations services, including lucal, network access and long distance
services, messaging and Internet services and sells customer
premise and private business exchange equipment The Witeless
segment provides wireless telecommunications service . includ
ing local and long distance services, and sells wireless equipment.
The Directory segment sells advertising for and publication of
yellow pages and white pages drectories and eloctronic publish
ing. The Other segment includes 5BC's international investments
and other domestic operating subsidiaries




These segments are strategic business units that offer differ-
ent products and services and are managed accordingly. SBC
evaluates performance based on income before income taxes,
ad|usted for normalizing items. For 1998, normalizing items
included gains on sales of certain non-core businesses, principally
the required disposition of SBC’s interest in Mobile Telephone
Netwarks (MTN), a South African national cellular company, due
to SBC's investment in Telkom, and charges related to strategic
initiatives resulting from the merger integration process with
SNET For 1997, normalizing items included the costs related to
strategic initiatives resulting from the merger integration process
with PAC, the .npact of several second quarter 1997 regulatory
rulings and charges for ongoing merger integration costs
(see Note 2), as well as the gain on the sale of the Telephcne
Companies interest in Bell Communications Research, Inc.

{Bellcore) and the first quarter 1997 settlement gain at PAC
associated with lump-sum pension payments that exceeded the
projected service and interest costs for 1996 retirements. The
effect of any normalizing adjustments 15 shown separately in the
table below. The accounting policies of the segments are the
same as those described in Note 1 Transactions between seq
ments are reported at fair value

Corporate, adjustments and eliminations include corporate
activities, the elimination of intersegment transactions, and other
adjustments. Included in other adjustments are differences in
accounting between subsidiary and consolidated financial state
ments for postretirement benefits at PacBell and the treatment
of conforming accounting adjustments arising out of the pooling
of interests with SNET and PAC that were required to be treated
as changes in accounting principles by the subsidiaries

Corporate.
Adjustments & Normalizing
At Decemnber 31, 1998 or for the year ended Wireline Wireless Directory hher Eliminations Adjustments Total
Revenues from external customers 522,097 54,184 $2,320 % 82 $ 102 $ (B) $28,777
Intersegment revenues 113 1 73 3 (190) - —
Depreciation and amaortization 4,265 583 n — 77 mm 5177
Equity in net income of affiliates - 25 — 21 - - 236
Interest expense 861 179 11 a7 (98) 3 993
Income before income taxes 4,364 490 1,131 269 195 (75) 6,374
Segment assets 33,427 7,161 1,385 2,854 239 — 45,066
Investment in equity method investees 34 232 — 2,274 (26) - 2,514
Expenditures for additions to long-lived assets 5,178 644 o 1" 64 - 5,927
- - o N Corporate
Adjusiments & Normalizing
At December 31, 1997 or for the year ended Wireline Wireless Directory Other Eliminations Adjustments Total
Revenues from external customers $20,718 53,696 $2.197 5 S7 s 20 5 (188) 526.681
Intersegment revenues 208 1 89 - 1298}
Depreciation and amartization 4,095 491 28 H3 604 5301
Equity in net income of affiiates (5) 9 206 (9 201
Interest expense 837 152 4 25 {2} 27 1,043
Income before income taxes 3,736 355 1,043 192 75 {2.743) 2,658
Segment assets 32,018 7,07 1.227 3,398 1122 44 816
Investment in equity method investees 34 229 2,503 (26] 2,740
Expenditures for additions to long-lived assets 5275 176 iB - 141 6230
T Copotate, a
Adjustments & Kormalizing
At Decernber 31, 1996 or for the year ended Wireline Wireless Directory Othet Eliminations Adjustments Total
Revenues from external customers $19.751 $3.137 2,027 S 34 S 203 5 525,204
Intersegment revenues 168 — 68 9 (245)
Depreciation and amortization 3.954 397 28 1 86 -~ 4,466
Equity in net income of affiliates (5) 22 226 (36) 207
Interest expense 766 107 5 i4 (1r) 901
Income before income taxes 3,789 567 970 178 147 5.457
Eapenditures for additinns Lo long-lived assers 4,712 1,006 2 b 100 ».855
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Geographic Information

$BC's investments outside of the United States are primarily
accounted for under the equity method of accounting and do
not record in operating revenues and expenses the revenues and
expenses of the individual companies in which SBC invests.
Long-lived assets consist primarily of the book value of these

investments.
Year Ended December 31, 1598 7 e
Revenues:
United States $28,692 $26,624 $25.168
Mexico 15 21 25
South Africa 48 22 3
France 4 5 ]
Chile 1 2 2
Otherforeign 17 71
Toml - $28,777 526681 525202
December 31, 1998 1997
Long-l lved Assets:
United States $31,135 530,229
Mexico 836 733
South Alrica 694 B37
France 557 543
United Kingdom - 339
Chile 59 295
Othet foreign 214 234
Total o $33.495  $332 &O
FAGE 48

NOTE 10. DEBT

Long-term debt, including interest rates and maturnities, 1s summa
rized as follows at December 31

o [32] 1997
SwBell !
Debentures I
5.38%-588% 2003 2006 $ 500 $ 500 i
6.13%-6.88% 2000 2048 1,750 1.550
700%-7.75% 2009 2027 1,150 1.750
3400 1800 |
Jnamaortized discount  net of premium (38) (36}
Total d-ebenlurts - N N 3,362 3,56-1
Notes S - o
504% 767% 19982010 1,063 1,236
Unamortized discount (5) (6)
Total notes _ _ __.1 Ml 1230
Padlcll
Debentures
4.62% 588% 1999 2006 475 a7rs
6.00%-688% 2002 2044 1,194 1.194
FA2% 7 759% 2008 2041 1,587 2,250
B50% 2031 29 225
- 3,285 4144
_ Unamortized discount  net of premium (65) (B89)
Total debentures 3,220 4055
Notes
612%870% 2001 2009 1,500 1,300 i
l_.{r_wn_*uprnzed discount (18} (18)
___'[9_10!_:?0_!_5; N i 1,482 1.282
Other notes and debentures
437% 698% 1998 1007 501 633
) ?90% 10 50%: _lgﬂl}_-?_'}ll__ 2,048 2013
2,549 2,666
Unamortized premium - net of discount 61 65
Total other notes and debentures 2,610 2731
Guaranteed obllqa!mm of ESOP
 B41%-940% 2000 127 198
E‘FL'E!'_;P_E.?“”’ - . 2&0 4“)-‘
Total long term debt. including
current maturities 12,119 13,554
Current maturities tson (378)
‘I'_oHI !o_ng term ¢ dt'h'-' B $11,612 513170 i
'Sew Note 14

In February and September 1998, SBC called $B05 of long term
debt for retirement SBC recognized after tax charges of $11
assoclated with the calling of this debt.

in October 1998, PacBell repurchased $684 of long termn
debt. The repurchases resulted in a $60 after tax extraordinary
loss, net of taxes of 542

At December 31, 1998, the aggregate pnrapal amounts
of long-term debt and average interest rate scheduled for
repayment for the years 1999 through 2003 were $507 (6.6%),

_




5574 1 "%, §1,034 (7.5%), $980 (6.7%), 5749 (6.3%) with $8,406
(6.9%) due thereafter. As of December 31, 1998, SBC was in com-
pliance with all covenants and conditions of instruments govern-
irg its debt.

Debt maturing within one year consists of the following at
December 31

1998 1997

Commercial paper 51,044 §1.412
Current maturities of long-term debt 507 i78
Other short-term debt S _ ., == 349
$1,551 $2,139

Total

The weighted average interest rate on commercial paper debt at
December 31, 1998 and 1997 was 5.49% and 6.02%. SBC has
entered into agreements with several banks for compensated
lines of credit totaling $655 and uncompensated lines of credit
totaling $805, thus total lines of credit available are $1,460, all of
which may be used to support commercial paper borrowings.
SBC had no borrowings outstanding under these lines of credit as
of December 31, 1998 or 1997

AOTE 11, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of SBC's long-
term debt, including current maturities and other financial instru-
ments, are summarized as follows at December 31:

e 1997

Carrying Fair Canrying ¥ a_u
Amount Value Amount Value

$3,362 $3,531 §3,764 53828

SWiiell debentures

SWBell notes 1,058 1,123 1,230 1,271
PacBell debentures 3,220 3,463 4,055 4,337
PacBell notes 1,482 1,590 1,282 1,342
Other notes and debentures 2,610 2,725 2,731 2,947
TOPrS 1,000 1,029 1,000 1,034
Guaranteed obligations

_of ESOP' 127 132 198 207
See Note 14

The fair values of SBC's long-term debt were estimated based on
quoted market prices, where avallable, or on the net present
value method of expected future cash flows using current inter-
est rates. The fair value of the TOPrS was estimated based on
quoted market prices. The carrying amounts of commercial paper
debt approximate fair values.

SBC does not hold or issue any financial instruments for trad-
ing purposes. SBC's cash equivalents and short-term investments
are recorded at amortized cost. The carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents and short-term investinents and customer
deposits approximate fair values,

Pacific Teless Financing | and il {the Trusts) were formed for
the exclusive purpose of issuing preferred and common securities
representing undivided beneficial interests in the Trusts and
inverting the proceeds from the sales of TOPrS in unsecured sub-
ordinated debt securities of PAC Under certain circumstances,
dividends on TOP:S could be defetred for up to a period of five
years PAC sold 51 billion of TOPrS, $500 at 7 56% in January 1996
through Pacific Telesis Financing | and $500 at B.5% in June 1996
through Pacific Telesis Financing 11 As of December 31, 1998, the
Trusts held subordinated debt securities of PAC in principal
amounts of $516 and 5514 with interest rates of 7.56% and B.5%
Both issues of TOPrS were priced at $25 per share, have an ongi
nal 30-year maturity that may be extended up to 49 years, are
callable five years after date of sale at par and are included on the
balance sheet as corporation-obligated mandatorily redeemable
preferred securnities of subsidiary trusts. The proceed: were used
to retire short-term indebtedness, primatily commercial paper
SBC has guaranteed payment of the obligations of the TOPrS

Derivatives

SBC entered into an equity swap contract to hedge exposure o
risk of market changes related 1o ity recorded liabilty for outstand
ing employee stock options for common steck of AirTouch (spun
off operations) and associated stock appreciation rights (SARs)
{see Note 15). In February 1999, SBC began =xiting the equity swap
contract, recelving cash for the appreciated value of the contract
and recognizing a minimal gain, Once exited, SBC will record in
other income (expense]  net future changes in the value of the
underlying employee stock option exposure. SBC plans to make
open-market purchases of the stock of spun-off operations to sat
isfy its obligation for options that are exercised Off-balance-sheet
tisk exists to the extent the market price of the stock of spun-off
operations rises above the market price reflected in the llability's
current carrying value. The equity swap hedged this exposure and
minimized the impact of market fluctuations. The contract entitled
SBC to receive settlement payments to the extent the price of the
common stock of spun-off operations rose above the notional
value of $23 74 per share, but imposed an obligation to make pay
ments to the extent the price declined below this level The swap
also obligated SBC 1o make a monthly payment of a fec based on
LIBOR The total notional amount of the contract, $13 and $19 as
of December 31,1994 and 1997, coverod the approximate number
of the outstanding options and SARs of spun off operations on
that date. SBC periodically adjusted downward the outstanding
notienal amount as the options and SARs were exercised.

Both the equity swap and SBC's Hability for the stock aptions
and SARs of spun-off uperations are carnied in the balance sheet
at thew market values, which were immatenal as of Decernber 31,
1998 and 1997 Gains and losses from quartertly market adjust
ments of the carrying amounts were subistantially offsetting As of
December 31, 1998 and 1997 the accounting loss that would
have been incurred from nonperformance bv the counterparty to
the equity swap was 526 and $14

FaGl 1t
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NOTE 12. INCOME TAXES

Significant camponents of SBC's deferred tax liabilities and asse’s
are as follows at December 31:

1998 199_}'

Depreciation and amortization $3,959 $3.679
Equity in {areign subsidiaries 357 253
Other o - 355 2052
Deferred tax labilities 4,671 5.984
Employee benefits 1,707 2,528
Unamaortized investment tax credits 91 174
Currency translation adjustments 333 303
Other 1,244 2,140
Deferred tav issets 3,375 5.145
Deferred tax assets valuation allowance 36 70
$1,332 $ 909

Net deferred tax labilities

The decrease in the valuation allowance Is the result of an evalua-
tion of the uncertainty associated with the realization of certain
deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance is maintained in
deferred tax assets for certain unused federal and state loss
carryforwards.

The components of income tax expense are as follows:

1998 1997 1996
Federal:
Current 1,583 $786 51,443
Deferred  net 437 76 364
Amortizatuon of investment
tax credits (72) (82) (82)
1,948 780 1,725
State and local
Current 262 41 224
_ Deferred - net 96 163 N
S 358 204 345
Total - 52,306 4984 $2,070

A reconciliation of income tax expense and the amount com-
puted by applying the statutory federal income tax rate (35%) to
income before income taxes, extraordinary loss and cumulative
effect of accounting change is as follows:

- i S s 1997 19
Taxes computed at federal
statutory rate §2.23 5930 $1.910
Increases (decreases) in income
taxes resulting from
Amortization of investment tax
credits over the life of the plant
that gave rise to the credits (47) (53) (53)
State and local income taxes - net
of federal income tax benefit 233 131 224
Other - net N () (26) (1)
5984 $2.070

lmil _

$2,306
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NOTE 13. EMPLOYEL BENEFITS

Pensions - Substantially all employees of SBC are covered by one
of various noncontributory pension and death benefit plans. The
pension benefit formula used in the determination of pension
cost for nonmanagement employees 1s based on a flat dolar
amount per year of service according to job classificatior For PAC
managers, benefits accrue in separate account balances based on
a fixed percentage of each employee’s monthly salary with inter-
est For all other managers, benefits accrue in separate account
balances based on a fixed percentage of each employee’s
monthly salary plus interest or are determined based upon a
stated percentage of adjusted career income, Both the
bargaining-unit and management employees of SNET have a
cash balance pension plan Accordingly, pension benefits are
determined as a single account balance and grow each year with
pay and interest credits.

SBC's objective in funding the plans, in combination with the
standards of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974
{as amended), is to accumulate funds sufficient to meet its benefit
obligations to employees upon their retirement. Contributions to
the plans are made to a trust for the benefit of plan participants.
Plan assets consist primarily of stocks, U.S. government and domes
tic corporate bonds, index funds and real estate

The following table presents the change in the pension plan
benefit obligation for the years ended December 31

- T 997
Benefit obligation at beginning of the year  $18,116 516,330
Service cost - benefits earned during

the period 339 300
Interest cast on projected benefit obligation 1,265 1,237
Amendments 254 402
Actuarial gain 566 1.398
Special termination benefits 53
gﬂi!i_p_.ll{! (1,723) ) 1_I,5-_":

Benefit obigation at end of year 518870 Sl

The following table presents the change in pension plan assets
for the years ended December 31 and the pension plans funded
status at December 31

1998 1997
Fair value of plan assets at beginning
of the year $24,998 $22.4)8
Actual return on plan assets 3,753 4111
Benefits paid e nsen
Falr value of plan assets atend of year $27,081 324.990
Funded status $ 8,161 $ 6.8B2
Unrecognized prior service cost 1.M2 12
Unrecognized net gain (8,327) (7.081)
Unamaortized transition asset (759) _1895)
Prepaid pensioncost $ 387 5 127




The following table presents amounts recognized in SBC's
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31.

- 1998 1997
Prepaid pension cost $819 5545
Accrued pension liability (a32) (418)
Netamountrecognized $387 5127
Net pension cost is composed of the following:
. - 1998 1997 199

Service cost - benefits earned

during the penod $ 339 S 300 $ 7
Interest cost on projected

tenefit ~hligation 1.265 1,237 1,226
Expected return on plan assels (1.771) (1,640! 11.,664)
Amortization of pnior service cost 27 15 (19
Recognized actuarial gain o ss) (115 s

Net pension benefit s (239)  $ 203) 5 (232)

Significant weighted average assumptions used in developing
pension information include:

| e 17 1o
Discount rate for determining
projected benelit obliyation 7.0% 7.25% 7.5%
Long-term rate of réturn on
plan assets 8.5% 8.5% B.5%
Compasite rate of compensation
increase 4.3% 4.3% 4.3%

The projected benefit obligation is the actua. ial present value
of al! benefits attributed by the pension benefit formula to
previously rendered employee service. It Is measured based on
assumptions concerning future Interest rates and employee
compensation levels, Should actual experience differ from the
actuanal assumptions, the benefit obligation will be affected.

In April 1997 management amended the pension plan for
non-PAC managers to a cash balance pension plan effective June
1 1997, Under the new plan, participants accrue benefits based
on a percentage of pay plus interest. in addition, a transition pen-
efit 1s phased in over five years. The new plan also requires com-
putation of a grandfathered benefit using the old formula for five
years Participants receive the greater of the cash balance benefit
or the grandfathered benelit. The new cash balance plan allows
lump sum benefit payments in addition to annuities. This change
did not have a significant iImpact on SBC's net income for 1997.

in March 1996, management amended the pension plan for
PAC managers from a final pay plan to a cash balance plan effec-
tive July 1, 1996 An enhanced transition benefit, cased on frozen
pay and service as of June 30, 1996, was established to preserve
benefits already accrued by salaried employees under the final
pay plan and resulted ir: an increase in earned benefits for most
employees. SBC also updated the actuarial assumptions used in
valuing the PAC plans to reflect changes in market interest rates
and recent experience, including a change in its assumption

concerning future ad hoc Increases in pension benefits Taken
together, these changes increased net income by approximately
$125 during 1996

Approximately 4,200 employees left PacBell duang 1996
under retirement or voluntary and invaluntary severance pro
grame and received special pension benefits and cash incentives
in connectton with the PacBell restructunng and related force
reduction programs, Annual pension cost excludes 564 ol add
tional pension benefits charged to PacBell's restructuning reserve
in 1996

During 1997, a significant amount of lump sum pension
payments resulted in a partial settlement of PACs pension plans
Therefore, net settlement gains in the amount of $299 were
recognized in 1997 Of this amount, $152 was recognized in the
first quarter of 1997 and related primarily to managers who
terminated employment in 1996 These gains are not included
in the net pension cost shown in the preceding table

In connection with a voluntary early out ofter that provided
enhanced pension benefits, approximately 1,135 employees lefl
SNET durring 1996, Annual pension cost excludes 565 of net set
tlerment galns charged to SNET s restructunng reserve in

supplemental Retirement Plans - SBC also provides s
and middle management employees with nonqualified. unfunded
supplemental retirement and savings plans These plans include
supplemental defined pension benefits as well s compensation
deferral plans, some of which include a corresponding match by
SBC based on a percentage ot the compensation deferral
Expenses related 1o these plans were $105, 590 and 590 in 1998,
1997 and 1996, Liabilities of 1,008 and 5897 related to these
plans have been included in other noncurrent hatalities in SBC S
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31 1998 and 1997

Postretirement Benefits - SBC provides certain medical, dental
and life insurance benefits to substantially all retired employees
under various plans and accrues actuanally determined post
retirement benefit costs as active employees earn these benefits
Employe#s retining after certain dates will pay a share of the costs
of medical coverage that exceed a delined dollar medical cap
Such future cost shanng provisions have been reflected in
determining SBCy postretirement benefit costs SBC maintaing
Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Assaciation trusts to fund
postretirement benelits. Assets consist principally of stocks
and U.S. government and corporate bonds

The following table sets forth the change in the benefit
obligation for the years ended December 1)

1998 Yo
Benefit obligation at begmnming of the yea $7.701 S7.002
Service cost - benelits earned durning
the penod 109 106
Interest cost on projected benelit obligatiun 537 516
Amendments 363 [ELT
Actuana! gain (220) 397
Benefits pard (410} 13821
Benefit obligation at eod of year $8,080 $72.700
PAGE )T
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The following table sets forth the change in plan assets for
the years ended December 31 and the plans’ funded status at
December 31

0O CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

_tm w

Fair value of plan assets at beginning
of the year $ 3826 52926
Actual return on plan assets Ba7 677
Employer contrnbution 354 a0)
Benefits pad e (248) (239
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 54,779 53,820
Funded status $(3,301) S{3,875)

Unres gnized prior service cost 186 (13

Unrecognized net gain (1,912) 11.175)
Accrued postretirement benefit obligation 5(4927)  S(5063)
Postretirement benefit cost s composed of the following:
B 1998 1997 1996
Service cost - benehts earned

dunng the period $109 5106 S 105
Interest cost on accumulated

postretirernent benefit

obligation (APBU) 537 516 512
Expected return on assets (272) {220) (181)
O_th_n_e_r -net 6 (14) 5
Postretirement benefit cost $380 S 388 5441

The fair value of plan assets restricted 1o the payment of life insur-
ance benefits was $844 and $987 at De.ember 31, 1998 and 1997
At December 31,1998 and 1997, the accrued life insurance bene-
fits includ=d in the APBO benefit obligation were $367 and $93.
The assumed medical cost trend rate in 1999 is 7.0%. decroas
ing linearly to 5.5% in 2002, prior to adjustment for cost-sharing
provisions of the medical and dental plans for active and centain
recently retired employees. The assumed dental cost trend rate
in 1999 15 5.75%, reducing to 5.0% in 2002. Raising the annual
medical and dental cost trend rates by one percentage point
increases the APBO as of December 31, 1998 by 5488 and
increases the aggregate service and interest cost components of
the net peniodic postretirement benefit cost for 1998 by approxi
mately $34. Decreasing the annual medical and dental cost trend
rates by one percentage point decreases the APBO as of
December 31, 1998 by $408 and decreases the aggregate service
and interest cost components of the net periodic postretirement
benefit cost for 1998 by approximately $27. Significant assump-
tions for the discount rate, long-term rate of return on plan assets
and compaosite rate of compensation increase used In developing
the APBO and related postretirement benefit costs were the same
A% those used in developing the pension information
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NOTE 14, OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee Stock Ownership Plans - SBC maintains cont-ibutory
savings plans which cover substantially all employees Under the
savings plans, SBC matches a stated percentage of eligible
employee contributions, subject ta a specified celling

SBC has four leveraged ESOPs as part of the existing savings
plans Two of the ESOPy were funded with notes 1ssued by the
savings plans to various lenders, the proceeds of which were used
1o purchase shares of SBCs common stock in the open market,
These notes are uncanditionally guaranteed by SHC and therefore
presented as a reduction to shareowners' equity and an increase
in long term debt. They will we repaid with SBC contnbutions to
the savings plans. dividends paid on SBC shares and interest
earned on funds held by the ESOPs.

The third ESOP purchased PAC treasury shares in exchange
for a promissory note from the plan 1o PAC Since PAC 18 the
lender. this note 1s not reflected as a hability and the remaining
cost of unallocated trust shares 1s carned as a reduction of share
owners' equity. Puncipal and interest on the note are paid from
employer contributions and dividends received by the trust All
PAC shares were exchanged for SBC shares effective with the
merger April 1,1997 The provisions of the ESOP were unaffected
by this exchange

The fourth ESOP acquired SNET shares with the proceeds of
notes 1ssued by the savings plans, which SNET guaranteed,
through a third party The SNET common stock was acquited
through open market purchases, in exchange for a promissory
note from the plan to SNET. SNET nenodically makes cash pay
ments to the ESOP that, together with dividends received on
shares held by the ESOF are used 1o make interest and prinapal
payments on bath loans All SNET shares were exchanged for SBC
shares effective with the merger October 261998 The provisions
of the ESOP were unaffected by this cxchange

SBC's match of employee contributions to the sa.ings plans
is fulfilled with shares of stock allocated from the ESOPs and with
purchases of S8C% stock in the upen market Shares held by the
ESOPs are released for allocation to the accounts of employees
as employer matching contributians are earned Benefit cost iy
based on a combination of the contrnibutions 1o the savings plans
and the cost of shares allocated to participating employees
accounts Both benefit cost and interest expense on the notey
are reduced by dividends on SBCs shares held by the ESOPs
and interest earned on the ESOPs funds




Informatiun related to the ESOPs and the savings plans is
summarnzed below

L weee e 1o
Benefit expense - net of dividends
and interest income 5 55 £ 59 576
Interest expense  net of dividends
and interest income 1_6 _2_1_ ’ 30
Total expense _ B $ N _ 4 BO 5106
Company contributions for ESOPs ~ $110 5112 5121
Dividends and interest incnme

for debt service $58 563 %67

SHC shares held by the ESOPs are summarized as follows at
December 31

- . 14

Unallocated 11,505,123 17,210,803
Committed to be allocated 1,245,335 282,388
Allocated to participants - 47,425,671 45,966,307
60,176,129 (3,459.498

ol

NOTE 15, STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Under vanious SBC plans, senior and other management
employees and non-employee directors have received stock
options, SARs, performance shares and nonvested stock units to
purchase shares of SBC common stock. Options issued through
December 31, 1998 carry exercise prices equal to the market
price of the stock at the date of grant and have maximum terms
ranging from five to ten years. Depending upon the grant, vesting
of options may occur up to four years from the date of grant.
Perfarmance shares are granted to key employees in the form of
common stock and/or in cash based upon the price of common
stock at date of grant and are awarded at the end of a two- or
three-year period, subject to the achievement of certain perfor-
mance goals Nonvested stock units also are valued at market
price of the stock at date of grant and vest over a three-yeat
peniod. Up to 206 million shares may be issued under these plans.
In 1996, SBC elected to continue measuring compensation
cost for these plans using the intrinsic value-based method of
accounting prescribed in Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No 123, "Accounting tor Stock-Based Compensation®
(FAS 123) Accordingly, no compensation cost for SBC's stock
optien plans has been recognized. The compensation cost that
has been charged against income for SBC’s other stock-based
compensation plans, primarily SARs and nonvested st>ck units,
totaled $45, 543 and $22 for 1998, 1997 and (996, Had compensa-
tion cost for stock option plans been recognized using the falr
value based method of accounting at the date of grant for awards
n 1998, 1997 and 1996 as defined by FAS 123, 5BC's net income
would have been §3,921,51,597 and $3,445, and basic net
inceme per share would have been $..00, 5082 and $1.76

Options and SARs held by the continuing employees of PAC
at the time of the AirTouch spin-off were supplemented with an
equal number of oplions and SARs tor comman shares of
spun-off operations The exercise prices for outstanding options
and SARs held by continuing employees of PAC were adjusted
downward to reflect the value of the supplemental spun off
operations’ options and SARs The balance sheet reflects a related
liability equal to the difference between the cutrent market price
of spun-off operations stock and the exercise prices of the sup-
plemental options outstanding (see Nate 11) As of December 31,
1998, 459,916 supplemental spun ofl operat:ans options and
SARs were outstanding with expiration dates ranging from
1999 1o 2003, Outstanding aptions and SARs that were held by
employees of the wireless operations at the spin off date were
replaced by options and SARs for common shares of spun-off
operations. The spun-off operations assumed habulity for these
replacement options and SARs

For purposes of these pro lorma disclosures, the estimated
fair value of the options granted after 1994 15 amortized to
expense over the options’ vesting period. Because most employee
options vest over a two 1o four year period. these disclosures will
not be indicative of future pro forma amounts until the FAS 123
rules are applied to all outstanding non-vested awards The fair
value for these options was estimated at the date of grant, using
a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions used for grants in 1998, 1997 and
1996 risk-free interest rate o 5 72%, 6 56% and 6 25, dividend
yield of 2.21%, 3 07% and 4 91%, expected volatility factor of 15%,
15% and 18%; and expected option life of 5.3. 5.8 and 4.7 yeat,

Information related to options and SARs is summarized below

Wu.-i-q?_\'lrd
Average
Numbaei Bavrone Phice
Outstanding at January 1, 1996 60,648,949 52089
Granted 25,0359 2300
Exercised 13,979,290 1873
!:Effl.‘iledf[lpucd 12.159.301] 2159
Outstanding at December 31 1996
(35,522,826 exercisable at
weighted average poce of $2013) 19,546,279 21 64
Granted 313,560,019 2728
Exercised (17544 507 0%
Forleited/Expired (4817151 1506
Outstanding at December 31,1997
(40,802,392 exercizable at
weighted average price of $21 02 90,719,955 2376
Granted 21,756,515 425!
Exercised (16,853,425) 2413
Forfeited/Expired 4,591,616 3108
Outstanding at December 31,1998
(47,493,729 exercisable at
welghted average price of $22.31] 91,051,449 $28.17
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Information related to options and SARs outstanding at

December 31,1998

$1150 517250 $26 00 53400
[ et e Price Hange §17.49 - §2599 -5339% - 54300
Number of npli_on'{_ ) o
and SARs:
Outstanding 3492843 41,277,610 75,901,002 203745984
Exercisable 1492843 41277620 2639149 84117
Weighted average
CaAsiCise price
Outstanding 51651 52239 $27.60 54259
Exercisable 51651 $22.39 S8 $42 00
hed average
Al
contractual ife  343years  63Byears B31years 597 years

The weighted-average, grant-date {air value of each option
granted during 1998, 1997 and 1996 was $8.62,$5.57 and 53.47

NOTE 16. SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY

Common Stock Split - On January 30, 1998, the Board of Directors
of SBC declared a two-for-one stock split, effected in the form of a
stock dividend, on the shares of SBC's common stock. Each share
holder of record on February 20, 1998 received an additional
share of common stock tor each share of common stock then
held. The stock was issued March 19, 1998, SBC retained the cur-
rent par value of §1.00 per share for all shares of common stock.

NOTE V7. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

During the third quarter of 1998, $BC sold its ‘nterest in MTN 10
the remaining shareholders of MTN for $337, The sale fulfilled
5BC’s obligation to divest MTN as a requirement of the acquisi-
tion of Telkom. The effect on other income (expense) - net and
net income from the sale of MTN was $250 and $162. See Note 7
for the disposition of SBC's interest in Telewest.

In May 1997, a consortium made up of SBC and Telekom
Malaysia Berhad, 60% owned by SBC, completed the purchase of
30% of Telkom. SBC invested approximately $760, approximately
5600 of which will remain in Telkom.

During 1996, SBC received several AT&T Corp. cellular net-
works in Arkansas in exchange for SBC's PCS licenses in Memphis
and Little Rock and other consideration.

These acquisitions were primarily accounted for under the
purchase method of accounting. The purchase prices in excess of
the underlying fair value of idenufiable net assets acquired are
being amartized over periods not to exceed 40 years. Results of
operations of the properties acquired have been included in the
consolidated financial statements from their respective dates of
acquisition

TITT

The abyve dovelopmients did not have a signilicant impact
un comnsolidated results of operations lor 1998, 1997 or 1996, nor
would they had they occurred on January 1 of the tespedtive
periods

On January 20,1999, 5BC announced it has agreed o acquire
Comecast Cellular Corporation iComcast Cellular), the wireless sub
sidiary of Comcast Corpaiation, in a transaction valued at $1,674,
Under the terms of the agreement, SBC will pay $400 in cash and
assume Comcast Cellular’s current debt of $1,274 The transaction
will be accounted for through the purchase accounting method
Comcast Cellular offers analog and digital wireless services to
more than 800,000 subscribers in Pennsylvania, Delaware, New
Jersey and lllinois. The largest market in which Comcast Cellular
operates is Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, SBC for several years has
been operating the lllinois properties itis purchasing under a
previous agreement between the two companies. The transac
uon, which is subject to requlatory approvals, is expected to be
completed by the end of 1999

NOTE 18. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL IKFORMATION

Uecembet 31
Balance Sheets 1998 1997
Accounts Ddya!:lit and accrued liabilities -
Accounts payable 521,865 $3.115%
Accrued taxes 1,206 1118
Advance billing and customer deposits 855 R
Compensated future absences 568 558
Accrued interest 249 326
Accrued payroll 338 115
pthj - ) 1,899 2134
Total $7.980 $8.330
Statements of Income 1998 1997 199
Advertising expense s 598 5 558§ 40
Interest expense incurred $1.052 $ 1168 51041
Capitalized interest (59) (125 (142)
Total interest expense _ $ 993 5 1,043 S 901
Statements of Cash Flows 1998 1997 199
Cash paLE auinmi the y;-ar for
Interest $1.070 $ 1014 $ HAR

Income taxes, net of refunds 1,720 5 289 $1,367

No customer accounted for more than 10% of consohdated
revenues in 1998, 1997 or 1996

Several subsidiaries of SBC have negotiated contracts with
the Communications Workers of Amenca (CWA) none of which s
subject to renegotiation in 1999 Approximately two-thirds of
SBC's employees are represented by the CWA




NOTE V9. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

e — S

Basuc
Earnings
Total (Lons) Per
Calendar Operating Operating Net Income Common Stock Price
Quarter Revenues Income (Loss) Lo Share High Lo Cipse
1998
First' $ 6,855 51,775 $ 985 50.50 $46.563 $35.375 $43.375
Second 7,030 1,817 1,020 0.52 44.938 37.125 40.000
Third? 7,216 1,903 1,262 0.65 44875 35.000 44.375
Fourth'# 7.676 1,39 756 0.39 54.875 41.125 53.625
Annual'? $28,777 $6,886 $4,023 52.06
1997°
First $ 6405 $ 1685 S 901 5 0.46 §29125 §24813 $ 26.250
Second 6,372 (831) (736) (0.38) 30938 24.625 30938
Third 6,790 1.573 B67 0.45 31125 26,781 D719
Fourth 7114 1,151 642 0.33 38063 30.000 36625
Annual $ 26,681 $3578 $1,674 $ 086

'Het Income and Eatnings pet Commaon Share reflect o cumulative effect of accounting change of $15. 06 50 01 per thare in the int quarter from a change i accounting o diwectony
operations and an ex dinary loss on retiee of detrt of $80, or $0 33 per share in the fourth quarter

Inet income in the third quarter inciudes sfter-tax galm of $219 for gaing on sales of Certasn NOA <ore Businetes, prancipally the requued dnposton of MITN due to 3By investment in
Telkom. Net Income i the fourth quarter slso inchades 5268 of charges related 1o Strategic Instiative resulting Hom the Merger INEgration process witl. SNET

Iriet Income (loss) includes $90 in firit quarter pension settiement gain for 1996 retirements [see Note 110516 billion in second quatier chargey telaled 1o st imerget iiiliatives (e
Note 2), $10 and $254 in third and fourth quarter menger integration cotts and $33 in fourth quarter gain on sale of SBC s interesty in Bellcore




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Shareowners
SBC Communications Inc.

We have audited the accampanying consolidated balence sheets
of SBC Communications Inc. (the Company) as of December 31,
1998 and 1997, and the related consolidated statements of
income, shareowners’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 1998. These consalidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We did not
audit the 1996 financial statements of Pacific Telesis Group, a
wholly-owned subsidiary, which statements reflect total operat
ing revenues constituting approximately 38% of the Cormnpany's
related consolidated financial statement total for the year ended
December 31, 1996, Those statements were audited by other

aurt Lors whose report, which has been furnished 1o us, included
an explanatory paragraph that describes the change in its
method of recognizing directory publishing revenues ¢ d related
expenses. Our opinion, insofar as it relates to the 1996 data
included for Pacific Telesis Group, is based solely on the report

of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material —isstate-
ment. An audit ini 'udes examining, on a test basis, evidence sup-
porting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evalu-
ating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and, for 1996, the repornt
of other auditors, the consolidated financial statements referrec
1o above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of $BC Communications Inc. at December 31,
1998 and 1997, and the consolidated results of its operations and
its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
Decembrer 31, 1998, in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles.
é;mutfaﬁuyiu’

San Antonio, Texas
February 12, 1999

PELY N

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, The
integrity and objectivity of the datain these financial statements,
including estimates and judgments relating 1o matters not con
cluded by year end. are the responsibility of management, as is all
other information included in the Annual Report unless other
wise indicated

The linancial statements of SHC Communications Inc (SBC)
have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP. independent auditors
Management has made available to Ernst & Young LLP all of SBC's
financial records and related data. as well as the minutes of share
owners and directors meetings Furthermore, management
believes that all representations made to Ernst & Young LLP
during 1ts audit were vahd and appropnate

Management has established and maintains a system of
internal accounting controls that provides reasonable assurance
as to the integrity and reliability of the financal statements, the
protection of assets from unauthonzed use or disposition and
the prevention and detection of fraudulent finangial reporting.
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the costs
of an internal accounting controls system should not exceed,
in management’s judgment, the benefits to be denved

Management also seeks to ensure the objectivity and
integrity of its financial data by the careful selection of s
managers, by organizational arrangements that provide an
appropriate division of responsibility and by communication
programs aimed at ensuning that its policies, standards and
managerial authotities are understood throughout the
organization Management continually monitors the system
of internal accounting controls for compliance SBC maintains
an internal auditing program that sndependently assesses
the effectiveness of the internal accounting controls and
recommends improvements thereto

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which consists
of eight directors who are not employees, meets penodically with
management, the internal auditors and the independent auditors
1o review the manner i which they are performing thei respon
sibilitles and to discuss auditing. internal accounting controls and
financial reparting matters Both the internal auditors and the
independent auditors penodically meet alone with the Audn
Committee and have access to the Audit Committes at any time

GHimicd & A)é‘é‘-a,},
¢

Edward E Whitacee Jr.
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Donald E. Kiernan
Senior Vice President, Treasures
and Chief Financial Officer
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Edward E. Whitacre Ji, 57
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Gilbert F. Amelio, Ph.D., 56
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The Parkvde Groop LLE
Puboreapral

Adrcralt Ventures, LLL

San Francico. Cabiforma

Aedyisory Diregton singe Apnl 1997
PYG Dreector 1995-1997
Backgiound Tedhnology electionic

(ALY LT S L]

Clarence C. Barksdale, 66
Vice Chairman
Board of Truysteessy
Wastungton Uiniversity
5% Lows, Missoun
SHC Director since October 1983
SWBT Director 1982 1983
Background Banking

James E. Barnes, &)
Charman of the Boara,
Pressdent and
Chief Exec utive Officer
[Feiited]
MAFCO v
Fuabsa CoeLabycsrma
SHC Director singe November 1990
Background Dwersified energy

August A. Busch Il o1
C haderan of the
Board and Fresident
Anheuser Husoh
Comparies, ing
St Lours. Missour
SHC (e tod sorde OO0 ober 198 1
SWHET Enrecton 1980 1983
Bachgraund Brewing family
entertanment, (ransportation
manufacturer of alunminom

beverage containers

Royce 5. Caldwell, 60
Freudent SHC Operations
SBL Communiatans Ing
San Antonia Tesas
SHC Darector sifie
Apnl VS

tha koot Teecormmiumg alios

Ruben R.Cardenas, o8
Partnes
Cardenas, Whitis &
Stephen, LLP.
McAllen, Texas
SBC Director since October 1981
SWHBT Director 19751983
Background Law

The Honorable
william P.Clark, 677 '
Chief Executive (fficer
Clark Company
Senior Counsel
Claik, Cali and Negranti
Paso Robles, Calitornia
SBC Director since Apell 1997
PTG Director 19851997
Hackground: Law, ranching

Martin K. Eby, jr, 64" *

Chairman of the Board and
Chiel Executive Officer

The Eby Corporation
Wichita, Kansas

SBC Director since June 1992

Background: General bullding

comtrucTon

Herman E. Gallegos, 64" "
Independent
Management
Consultant
Brisbane, Calitornia
SBC Director since April 1997
PTG Director 19831997
Background: Management
cansulting

Jess T.Hay, 68"
Chaleman
Texas Foundation for
Highet Education
Chairman
HCB Enterprises liv
Dallas, Texas
SBC Director since Apel 1986
Background Financial services

Admiral Bobby R.Inman, 67° '
Urdted States Navy, Retined
Austing Teaas
SHC Director since
March 1965
Background Private investment

Charles F. Knight, 6
Chamman and
Chiel Erecutive Officor
Emerson Electnie Co
5 Lowis, Misvoun
SBE Durecton sine (O tober 198 )
SWHT Dpectoi 1974 1943
Background Electncal

manufacturing

Mary 5 Metz, Ph.D. i
II‘\'\’\,"‘ L]
S H Cowell Foundation
San Francinee, Calilorma
SBC Duwector since
Apil 1957
PTG Dires bise 19RA6 1997
Bachground Lduw ation
admnistration

Dr.Haskell M. Monroe, Ji. 6/
Drean of b acultes Ermeritus

and [hrector of the AEM
Heritage Froservation
Program

Tenas ABM University

(:0"(’““ Statson Teaas

SBC Dires tor since Ciitaber 1964

SWHT Duector 1982 1981

Background Education

administration

Tonl Rembe. Esq. 1+

Partner

Fillsbrury Madison &

Sutro LLP

San Franciscn, Califormea
SBC Directar since January 1994
Advivory Diteqton 19497 159K
PTG Directon VFRL V!

Bachground Law

S.Donley Ritchey, &5
Managing Partoues
Alprne Pacineny

o

s Chairman and (et
Emetutive (Mo
(Retired |

Lucky Stores ing

Danville Califoting

SBC M tor since Apnl 147
PTG Dsrpgtor V9HS4 1997
Background Diversided retal

Joyce M. Rache, 4!
Independent Consultant
Savannah Georgia
SHE [ires tod since

Ocrober 1998
SNE! Duector 1597 1998
Bac kground Manulactuting and
Imarketing of pervonal care

prechiig iy

Richard M.Hosenberg 68
Charrman and C hief
Exes utroe Offweer
(Hetiredd)
HankAmenca
€ ove proratinan
San Francivio, California
SHU (e tor since Apeil 1997
PTG Dt toe 1994 19497
Backijrownd Banking

Ing. Carfos Shm Helu, 4%
I hamrran of the Boand
Teled. . de Méaxa
SA eV
€ hanrman | rmentus
Grupo Caro SA det i
Mesicn ity Mesico
SBi. Darector since September 1993
Background Telecommunications
TR LaR 1t Laa o4 qi}‘.kh Sutpmoltle

Rt Constiue Bion, retaling

Pavricla P. Upton, &0
President anc
Chiel Exec utive Officer
Aromatigque inc
Hebser Speirigs Arkansas
SBC Duedton s« dune 1993
Bad kgt omingd Manufad g and
miarke g of decotative hame

fragratice

Committees of the Board
(11 Aydn
A Lo ate Developrment
By Cegeorate Vbl Bolicy
and | owaronmiental Allaies
140 L aed utive
151 Finane/Fenvion

I6¢ Hurman Hesown &

Fakl




EXECUTIVES OF SBC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

SBC Senior Lsecutives

Edward £ Whitacre Jr., %'
t hairman & LEO
SBC Connmurud 2t Ing

Royce 5. Caldwell, 60
Presichent-SBC Operations
SBC Communication bng

Cassandrs C. Carr, W4

W Eeegulive Vice Prewdent
Eaternal Alain

SBC Commumic athors Ing

1. Cliff Eason, 51
Presadent SHC international
SBL Commmunie atuons i

Jamas D ElG, 55

G ExeCutree Vice Preudent &
General Counsel

SBC Communic ations ing

Charies £ Foster, 0.
Group Fresdent SBC
SEC o e SUoms ind

Karen . Jennings, 48
S Vice Prevddent Human Resources
SBC Communications ing

James 5, Kahan, 51

S Vice Preudent Corporate
Ueerlopmant

SBC Comiriun ationi bng

Donald £ Kiernan, 58
S Vice Presedent, Treasures & CFD
SBC Commamiunie aton Ind

Linda $. Mifl, 4!

S Wiee Prevadent

Campmeate Casrrvie e ghony
L Larmaioativ 40y BN

Stanley T. Sigman_ 4!
Prevdent & CEO
SBC Wirekes Ins

Othat Exscutives

Wayne 5 Alsaander, 50
Prejedent Aua Pacili
SHC Opmeratscurs. Ina

duhn H. Atterbury, .|
Presadent & CLO
ruthiwestern Bell Teleptone Company

Terry D Balley, 41
Presadent Oblanoma
Southweitern Bell Telephone Company

Thomas M. Barry, 54
Piewdent SBO) | Telfkom South Alvcal
SBC internatonal in

William A Blase, 41
Vir Prevident Hegulatoly
Vaciti Telewn

Richford D. Bradiey, 4/
Fresdent
SBC Center lar Learning

Blaine Bull, 41
S W President Putshe Aflas
S Communications ing

James W. Callaway. 42
Preudent Callfornia
Facife Tebean

Stephen M. Carter, 4%
wiend Strageth Mathety
R TR TP TR T

FILE 4

Lea Ann Champion, 40
Presdent-Comnumer Commurialiony

Services
Souttywestern Bell Telephone Company

David A. Cole. %0
Prevident Teasn
Southwestern Bell Telepmone Company

Liam §. Coonan. &1
St Vice Preudent & Aust Genersl Counsel
SBC Communications Ind

Wilbur Crossley, %4

Vice President Network | Teikom
South Alrical

SBL International, ng

Patricla Dlas Denaly, 52

S Vicw Presicent Regulatory &
Pubsic Affair

SBC Communic ation Inc

Richard C. Diete, 57
Presdent SBC1 (Mewic o)
SBC International, ind

Kathy L. Dowling 41
Regional Presdent Mortheatt Wireleds
Celludar One

Malanie §. Fannin, 44

Vice Pres & Gen Counwel Externad
Afany TX
Southeerilern Bell Tek phone Company

Robert Ferguson, i
S Vice Presicent Federal Falation
SBC Teleqommuni stions e

lamas D Gallemaere 4

| mecutive Vice Preucent Strstegs
Marketing

SBC Operations Inc

Michael N. Gilllam, 40

Vice Presdent Year JOOO Projet &
Gateheeper

SBC Servicet

Letward L. Glotzbach, 50
Executive Vice Pres & Cheef information
Offucen

SBC Sevvrd g

William J Hennigan, 1%

Prowdent Busineis Comammid oo
Serviey

Louthwestem Bell Tebephore Company

Timothy 3. Harden, 4%
Vice President & General Manager

Opedation
S8C Operations ik

Priscilla Hill-Ardoin. 47

Freudent Mnsoun
Senthwestern Bell Telephone Company

Ross K. ireland, 51
Vice President Hetwork Planning &

Enganesting
Pacific Teles

Ronald M. Jennings, 57
Vice Pres. B Gen Mg - Puls
Communications

SBC Telecommunization in

Martin A. Kaglen, 71
Larcutive Vice President S0
SR T owrimrmuni s ing

Michaal Kaulfman, 51
Presdent Conumes Mathets Group
Pacific Bell

Sandy Kinney, 41
Fresdent industry Moty
SHC Tk Dimimasnia Aoy iy

lonathan P Khag 4
Propudeir! Athaiay
St err i Tern Bl | ehepiene L omgeany

Righard G. Lindnaes, 44
Ve Prevatent & (FO
St s tern Bell Tebeptwne oy

David R Loper 4/
Vie Prewdent Matonad Lim 41 Meguiatoey
SB Chowerations g

Gary W. Lucas, 4
wice Prevadent Labos Helatun
Siruttreveitenn Ball Teiegphone © oy

Aobert M Lynch, 40

L W Pres & G © oaariaed
batesrial AMgay

S Tedew O atens in

Robin MacGiiliviay, 43

Vice Pres Business Comimar atu
Swrwn

Paifu Bell

Mary T Manning 48
Ve Prewdent Corporats Heal Eatate
SO S v e bng

Normas Martines Logana, 4.
Vice Prev & Gen Manages
Dporatoe Swervm e

L Wik o e it ey Bl L

Wayne U Masten 4}
Yie Prewdent Buuneiy Planneg
SHBC Dperation nc

William B McCullough, ¢
Mresdent & LEO SWE Wueiew,
Sonuttveritenn Bel Wk

Shawn M. McKenzia, 4
Pressdent Lanias
Southwertedn Bell Tebegahone { ompany

Forrest | Mibler, 46
Preuden & CEU
SBLC et tosty Chper alRann

Tom B Moigan, &'
Prevdent & (EO
Southern hew England Telephone Lo

Thomas O. Moulton, Jr. 42
Regional Prevdent beocthe &
Contral Cathwria

Pacfia Teiewn

Edward A Muslier |
Prevdent & (1O
Pacific Bell

Carman P. Kava. in
Prevdent Lo Arijebes
Paclic Teleus

Robert J. Melson, 40
Hegional Pressden Geeat Lakes Region
Coliutar Ovap

David € Nichely 4!
Regional Prevdent San Dveygo
Faciln Tedein

Thomas A Pall_ 2
Wit e Prevident Saley
SPE (e Loy Dpees at ionii

T Michael Payne, 44

S Wice Prevadent, Genedasl Lounsed L
Secretary

Pacific Tetes

Robert B Plckering 4
Viuw Mesndenl AL FED
Va ity Bl

Altved G Richter, Jr, A8
S e P B Gereetal ol

Uperations

SHC Pebiec ormamune Aty ing

A Dale Robertsorn, 0
S War Prewoent FOL
SBL Tl rmanan dimina fiu

Michasl A, Rodrigues. 45
Wuir Prevsdent Labeos Relafuon
Pas il Telewin

Chailes ) Rosvalein, '
oot LUFLY
SO0 T Fsongy Bervoutc e o

Drew A Roy. 5J
Freudent SBCH L uwope & Maktie Last
SEL Internatonal in

Judith M_Sahm, 51
YNur Prewndent & Saretary
LN TR T I TN

Robert W. Shaner
Prwiadent & (HO
Pacilic et Motule wevem e

Jamas B Shelley 40
Prwusdert Tevan Megulating
s P tod o Bl Diskepd worie © o AT RlTy

Charbes M. Smith, 5%
Freveden hetwor b e on ey
Pacitn Bell

Donna L. Snyder. 47
S W Prey Genedal Lol & Sevietacy
Saiithvave sterm Beell Db L osmpuarg

Randall Stephenion '~
Ve Presdent b (ool iciker
SBL L ommimynes atsnd g

Jayce M. Taylor 4}
eyl Frevudent Bay Aiea
Faa il Tebenin

¥an H Tayboo, W0

Hergaonal Freveat Netwars Seoomes
LS At

St hivwrsied o fedl Tebe e © revigiamy

) Michael Turner 49

Bwrs Ve Pres 4 oap Pannesy &
Lagutad Myt

L et 5

Ioe W Walkoviak, 47
Pressdent Netwaw b e v es
Songthvwestern Bedl Tebephone Company

Lota K Watte 41
Frevsdent Mowaia
Pervadda lell

Hephen G Welch. 44

Pressdent Compiwate & Adounntiative
Yervies

Pl Teles

Horais Wilking Jr_an
Pregube
Sl 1 b Al b

Bayford Wilkine Jr. 4/

Fretadent Buviieds Comirians s asny
St

Pl Hadl

g il Naikey
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SHAREOWNER INFORMATION

Toll-Free Shareowner Hotline

Call us at ) 400 4%) 7271 elween

Gam and Bpm Eastern Tume

Monday theough Foday

TDD 1-888 269 521

We can heip with

* BOCOUNT QU ey

< reguests for assntanc e inghading
ok transien

= information on the SBC Dvect
Stock Purchase and
Reinvestrment Plan

Written Reguests

Piease mail all account inguimies
and other fequests fur assitande
with regard to your stock owner
ship to:

SBC Comumunig sk Ind

/0 First Chacago Trust [ivison of
EquiServe

PO Box 2508

Jersey City, New Jervey 07303 2508

Please mail requests for transac
tions involving stock transfen o
account changes tu

SBC Communicationy Ing

c/o First Chicago Trust Drvision of
EquiSetve

PO Box 2589

lersey City, New Jervey 07 303 24589

Yisu also may tesch First Chig a0
Trust Company, the Transter Agent
for SBC, at vur

emall address

sbfct®em lonbd com

S$BC D'rect Stock Purchase and
Relnvestment Plan

(SBC Direct)

SBC Direct aliows cutrent share
owners 1o purchave addimonal SBC
stock with a manimum investment
ol $50. Other perwons may alw
take advantage of thiy feature with
2 mimmum initial investment of
$500. SBC Dwect has many other
convenient features including
automatic monthly investmenty
dividend reinvestment direg i
deposit of dividendy and an
Individual Retitement Account

For mare information o a
prospectus, call 1 BOG 551 1221

Send optional Cavh investments to

S8C Direct

<o First Chicago Trust Dnasion
of Equiberve

PO Box 13531

Newark. New Jerwey | 7TRS 0001

Privvted o fen g bed et

Stock Trading Information

SBO n linted on the New Yok,
Chicago and Pacific stoch
eachanges and The Swits
Exchange SBC s traded on the
London Stock Eachange through
the SEAL) International Markets
fadtlity

Techer apmibsol (hefhE ) S84

Newspaper o0k Iinting
SBL o0 YBC Comm

Information on the Internetl
Information atsout SBC 13 available
on the Internet Vil ow home
page on the Waorld Wide Web

hern wewew b com

Anrnual Meeting

The annual meeting of shae
owniers will be held 41 900 am
Friday, Apeil 30,1999, at

Alratar Shnne Temple
S00 North Loog 1604 West
San Anton Tesas 707216

Iindependent Auditors
Ernat & Young LLP

1900 Froat Bank Tower
100 W Houston

San Antona Teeas TR204

Requasts for 10 K

The SBC. Southwestern Bell
Telephane Company and

Pacific dell Farms 10K filed

with the Secunties and Eachange
Commivian are availalde

O Tegues]

Investor Relations

Security analysts ang other
members of the professonal
finarncial community may call
the (nvestorn Rielations Hotline
21035 2044

General Information —
Corporate Offices

SBC ( ommaanmn alkons I

125 1 Momaston

PO Boa 2930

San Ao Tessy 78299 1913
210 821 4104

(A AL |
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Hello, future. Hello, growth. Every day

the global communications industry redefines
the future. New services. Faster technologies
Greater convenience. All just a mouse click
or a phone call away. The result: worldwide
industry growth over the next five years
forecast at 60%. For Ameritech. this transfor-
MAlioN means our Company, our cu' lomers
and our shareowners have more ways to
grow than ever before
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Financial Highlights

Chairman’s Leter
We build value
through disciphined
execution of our three
prowth strategies

Vaice

Innovanve marketing
and attentive senvace
power strong growth
M our core business

Data

Our hgh-capacity
networks and advanced
servives spur rapid
expuansion

Wireless

Amernitech is a wireless
leader i both the United
States and Europe

Security

Fhrough our North
'\II.]L'H.L'L“I '«C\'ll!'”} ill"l..‘“l-
tons, we're bulding a
new prowth business

Globg!

The value of our European
holdings has grown 1o
more than S 10 hillion

European Growth

With interests in 18 coun
tres, we'ne positioned o
the future

Cuestions & Answers

Selected Financial and
Operuhng Data

Management's
Discussion and Analysis

Reports of Management
and Independent
Public Accaunianis

Cansolidated Financial
Statemenls

MNotes to Consolidated
Financial Statements

Board of Directors
Manragement
Glossary

Informatian for
Cur Investors
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How many What drives 1998 What Who are our allies,
customers? growth? growth?  brand? our competitors?
111 million homes; | million Faxes, modems, additional 7% Amarilech® Compatitors: competitive
businesses such as Kmaort, ABN phone lines, dato ond call local phone companias
AMRO and Firstar; 5,000 communi- manogement features for plus ATAT, MCI WorldCom
cahons/information companies convenience and productivity and others
3 & million consumans Mability, convenience, 13%:? Amaetitech® Competiors AT&T
and businesses productivity, sofaty PCS providers and others
ond occessibility
1.5 million consumers Mability, convenience 3%:? Ameritech® Competiors vanous
ond businesses ond productivity
40 million directories, Business growth and 18%' Amertech® Compelilon voriou
440,000 advertisers, exponded valve Yellow Page
192 million Internet hits e "‘ik'*pﬂg“ nal
7.000 busii.esses and Flexibility and responsiveness 23% Amaeritech” Compehions various
government units Capital Services
More than 200,000 Customer demand for relioble, easy 71%:? omericrast’ Compaetitors Time Warner
to-use entertainment and informanon TCl and others
1.2 million homes and Need for personol and 13%? Securitylink® Compettors: ADT
businesses property security from Ameritech and others
2 4 million cellular customary Value added io fullservice package A% Amatitech® Competitors ATAT
MC! WorldCom and others
Mare than 700,000 ports Technology change, corporate focus 39%' Amaritech® Ally 1BM

natonwide for companies such
as United Airlines and ComEd

Stortup

7,200 libearies

on core business and cost control

Meed for communication, research
and enlertainment

MNeed 1o outomale occess o
information

99%’

5%

omeriech nat*

Ameritech®
Library Services

Compaelitors various

Compelitors AT&T
Amernica Online and othars

Compatitons vanous

3 5 millign telephane lines,
995,000 cellule cuvtomer,
812 000 cable TV customers

5.1 million relephona lines,
1 2 million cellular customars

2 7 milion telephone lines
640 000 cellulor customers

530,000 customers

278,000 listed comparies

Cusiomer demond, exponded
services and availability

Customer demand, expanded
services and avallability

Customer demand, expanded
services ond availability

Customer demand, expanded
services ond ovailability

Convanient information and
contacts for businesses

14%’

1%’

69%'’

27 %’

25%’

Fevenues
- Customers
Earnings

Tele Danmark (TLD)

MATAV (MTA)

NetCom

Wiww

I:C-rnp@mcbr 3 warH

Allies Tole Donmark and
Singopore Telecom

Ally Doutsche Tolekom

Allies Singopore Telecom,
Orklo and Comvik

Competilon  volious




Stistaned Growth

In 1998, Ameritech achieved its sixth consecutive year

of double-digit prohit growth

' Financial Highlights

| (ilslbars i mdloons, encept per dhare aminnts) | N & o B ll.'l:nlr::-l
| Revenues (SRR EE I SRR 2
l Income belore pne-time teimns' LR T 5 LM 14
‘ Net income AR 5 2un 571
Diluted earnings per share
before one-time items’ s 2 v 5 22 10K
Diluted earnings per share LI B S 2N st 3
' Average common shares outstanding s mibons: L1016 (R i
Dividends declared per share S 10K v S ol
Total assets S W v § 28w 196
Long-term debt $ 5887 $  dnlo 08
Total sharcowners’ equity S 08T W S RUM 32
Book value per share s yu v s 787 W
Return on average equity W 2 v KA 70
Capivil expenditures SR S 208 125
Net cash from operating activities S [T $ 480 67
Year-end stock price & niiTs v LTI Y 47 4
Yeur-end dividend yield 1 9% 2K (321
Price/earmings ratio’ 270 190 421
Total return 6l 3G v ERTE il
Number of shareowners 726K Tl 0TS 144
Number of employees 70,528 74, V89 i85

Renalis bir 1998 and 1997 include several one-time ems For 8 detarked s of these ikema
piease see Management s Discunaion and Analysin on page 21

Privedcarmngys rati caloulsied ming diluted camngs cxcluding ooe -time e m bl years
VAN rme Amevines hohigein

100
$1%
$100

s

Tt dwad [N e AT e

Earnings per Share Growth
Alalished earmings ped whaie belote oo e ikcims )
With |10 8% eamings per shaie grorm th on 1998 Aimaciite b bas e hiesod
the bon pead saatss ned rocord of dosstsie Jign pesdid grovs th snemig
i LTS commmmimniie a - s s anitgaiie




entech

What type of service
are we providing?

Where 15 it
hoppening?

What is our role
in this Uﬁorfa

Sll ategy

Local Phone Service

Cellular, Personal
Communicotions Services

liinous, Indiona. Michigan,
Ohio and Wisconiin

Whinon Indiana, Michigan
LI T Ohlu, Wisconun
Kentuchy and Hawou

Transport locol vouws. doto and
video, provide coll manogement
services — retail and wholesale

Pravide wireless trar .port ol
voce dato and video — plus
call manogement wervice

Poging linou. Indiona, Michigan, Minneotu Transmil numenc and
Massouri, Ohio and Wisconsin alphanumeric meisoges
S eed Growth Advertising Printed directones in illinon Induana Produce Yellow Pages. While
Mnch.gon Ohio and Wiscanun, g|c:bu| ) pagns Internel Yellow Pou-.l
ln Our Core occess o Internet Yeliow Pog.l
BUb‘ness Copital Services United States, Evrope and Asio Pravide leasing and other
oquipment hinancing solutions
Caoble TV Franchises in 95 communihes with Creats ranypor! and provide
nearly 4 million tolc! population cable TV broodbond services
( Security Services Customers in United States, Marke!, install, monitor ond
Canoda ond Maexico 3BEVICE W8CUTity Byshemy
Long Distance Cellulor woday. landiine in Illinos Tranyport voice, data and
_ Indana, Michigan, Ohio and video beyond local oreos
bitlesery Wisconuin, pending approvals
' o,
Manoged Services North America Provide network managemant

Introduce
New Services
to Customers

Inteinal Access

Markets Cowvaning 0% ol households
in Amertech s live-state region

outiourcing for lorge cusomen’
voice networks

Prowide rebable access o regional
inlormation and the Internet

Libr oty Services Inited States ana L6 thar Provide inlormahon management
couniries soltware solutions

Llocal Phone, Long Distance, Denmark Strategic porner (41 6% interest)
Cellular, Directories, Cable TV
Local Phone, Long Disonce, Balgium Strategic partner (17 5% intereat)
Collular, Direclories,
Security Services

Slrateey

L local Phone, long Dutance Hungary Strategic partner (29 B% interest]
Cellulor, Directones
N
Connect Callviar Norway Strategic poriner [19 7% intereat)

Customers
Around

the World

Buiiness Purchasing Guides

industry terms are delinad
in the Elolmry on poge 56

Germany. Austiia, Mduﬂ' Swirzertand

lunembourg. Netherlands Slovena
Slovakia Croaha, Czech Repubilic

Prodiuce print. CDROM
and inlermgt b-rpng gu-fit‘
[1OD% ownad by Ameniech]
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The timing couldn't be better. Just as humanity

prepares to leap forward into a brand-new century,

communications has emerged as the world’s most

dynamic industry. And as a front-runner within

that industry, Ameritech is poised not only to help

shape the boundless future, but also to reap its

unprecedented rewards.

That's because we understood years ago that
customers are in charge. In response, our
employees transformed every aspect of our
busiiess to align Ameritech with the highest
expectations of those we serve. And we
created a solid platform for growth based on
three strategies that have long delighted our
sharcowners: To speed growth in our core
communications business. To introduce
innovative new services that leverage our
traditional competencies. And to export our
services and communications expertise (o

customers around the world.

Once again in 1998, the results of that
foresight spoke for themselves. Our expen
work force added 555,000 new phone lines,
penerated 20% growth in call management
services and expanded ClearPath™ digital
wireless service into three new markets,

We incorporated state-of-the-urt technologies

to serve the data needs of our customers

and, in the process, fostered impressive

growth of such options as [ISDN channels
(+589% ) and high-capacity circuits (+33% )
In additon, Amentech achieved our

$300 milhon new-product revenue objecnve
through aggressive service launches —

launches that included Ameritech Privacy




Munager, a popular, first-in-the-nation
service enhancement that deflects unwanted
calls. We also completed our most ambitious
international expansion with the acquisition
of u 41.6% stake in Tele Danmark, making
Ameritech the largest foreign investor in
European telecommunications and a highly
valued partner for future opportunities in

the growth-oriented European market.

These accomplishments and many

more tock place within the contex! of
Ameritech’s commitment to disciplined
execution and outstanding productivity

In fact, applying the industry measure, our
427 lincs per employee make our work force

the most productive of any local communici-

tions provider in the world.

Most importantly, our accomplishments
generated the kind of results sought by our
sharecowners. In 1998, we celebrated our

SH6

Y

(LA L I LA LT |

Growth in Market Value

tyearend market capitalization in billions )

ther ihe past live yrars. Amerilech covatesd 449 billian i sdded
aiom b maiket valoe fa sharevs nees. e this penesd
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sixth straight year of double-digit profit
growth, the longest sustwned double-dign
growth record i our peer group. We riised
our gquarterly dividend 5 8% — Amentech's
ISth consecutive annual increase and, fo
the fourth consccutive year, the largest
announced by any major U.S. communica

tions company.

I addition, we continued our tflUTﬁl(H;dll\:._‘.
radition of shareowner value creation

In 1998, we delivered a total return to share-
owners of 61% . Over the past [ive years,
Ameritech’s total return of 297% substantially
excecds both the S&P 500 and the average
of our peers. And sharecowners who have
held shares since Ameritech began trading

in 1983 have been rewarded with a total
return of 2,.421% . which v more than double
the S&P SO0 return ol 1.O80% and well ahead

of our peers at 1.565% .

What can we do tor an encore” Plenty. Not
only has Ameritech’s growth strutegy dehvered
impressive results in the past, but its design
uniquely positions us tor success i the
future. In fact, it was our pursuit of such
value creation — as well as our response (o
customers” increasing need tor a compentive,
globul provider — that led us to parsue a

combination with SBC Communications.

As many of vou know, SBC has long been
Ameritech’s counterpart company in the

southwestern United States. a communications
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provider that hus more recently expanded its

service area 1o parts of southern New England.

It is a strong, successful organization, whose
financial performance and strategy for the

future are remarkably similar to our own —
a key factor in our shareowners' overwhelm-

ing 95% vote to approve this merger.

Ameritech’s merger with SBC Communi-
cations will enable us to better serve the
needs of customers here in the United
States and around the world. And that is
precisely compatible with our decision sever-
al years ago not only to make customer needs
the driver of our business decisions, but to
implement those decisions in ways that

maximize shareowner value,

Our commitment to that objective has never
been stronger. Likewise, the marketplace of
the future has never offered us such extra-
ordinary opportunities. Last year in this

space, | mentioned that the amival of my first

grandson had offered me fresh insight into
the universal need 1o commumcate, That
remunded me of the vast potential this indus-
try enjoys. In 1998, a second new grandson
joined our family and, like his cousin before
him. he constantly reinforces my optimistic

view of the future.

We hope you will gain a similar sense of
excitement and enthusiasm as you read
about Ameritech’s achievements and aspira-
tons in the pages ahead. If you are one of
Ameritech’s valued sharcowners, you'll
undoubtedly be gratified by your company’s
1998 performance. If you are a potential
investor, you should find the information
you need as you determine how Ameritech

might complement your portfolio.

In either case. we are confident you'll find
compelling evidence of Ameritech’s rock-
solid commitment to optimize our potential

on your behalf.

Sincerely.

322 , (,f/%,%“/

Richard C. Notebaent
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
January 21, 1999




At Ameritech, we see
the future through
the eyes of customers.
That’s how weve
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Make a call. View an image. Access data.
Share an idea. Every day, people around the
world communicate more, and in more ways,
than ever before.

Over the next five years, the global communica-
tions market is forecast to expand 60% to more
than $1.9 trillion. Nearly two-thirds of that growth
will occur in North America and Europe, where
Ameritech’s operations are focused. And our
planned merger with SBC Communications will
expand our opportunities even further.

The pages ahead show how we capitalize
on these opportunities. How we innovate.
How we grow. How our customers define
our five key growth areas for our future:
Voice. Data. Wireless. Security. Global.
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provide customers expanded services and greater
convenience. Ameritech leads in this growth market.

Al Amaeritech, we're expert at spe(.-dlng growth in local communicahons,
: a market projected to grow 27% to $218 billion by 2003 Numerous forces
| drive this expansion, including new services and broad customer demand. Busy
| houscholds and businesses use more phone lines and more services (o gan access
' to a world of convenience — through faxes. Voice Mail and tme-saving services
! such as Caller ID and Call Waiting. To capitalize on these growth opportumitics,
in 1992 Ameritech launched a series of major changes. We built a world-class
marketing organization, consolidated all vur operations under a single brand and
expanded vur product portfolio. The result sustamed
growth. Over the past five years, we've added more
than 3.4 million phone lines 1n our five-state market
area, banging our total 1o 21 milhon. In 199, con-
sumer additional lines grew 12%  and Caller 1D
customers grew 25%

To accelerate growth, we've built a world class
brond defined by attentive customer care

Through targeted advertising and extensive custumer
interaction, Ameritech has built one of the commun-
cations industry's most robust brands. More than 12 million households and
businesses in the Upper Midwest experience the Amentech brand every day
through advertising. on our Web sites. on our 40 million directornies. on our
230,000 pay phones and through millions of person-to-persoi customer contacts

Building on our success in local service. we also are developing growth
opportunities in lengdistonce For example, more than 2 4 million of our cellular
customens have signed up for Amentech long-distance, up
41% from a year ago. Our prepad phone card, which can be
_used for local, long-distance and international calls, reconded
{1: even stronger growth. Plus, we continue to work toward
/ full entry mto our regron’s $10.5 billhon long -distance murket
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Rapid growth in data and Inprnet services is
[ transforming communications. Ameritech is shaping
the future of this high-potential market.

Data communications sales in the United States are forece.” 10 more than
double over the next five years, growing to $158 billion To cupitalize on this
huge potential, in 1993 we set up a new business unit o focus on data solutions
Today. 3,400 Ameritech employees are dedicated to this segment of our business.
More than half of our network traffic is now data rather than voice And our 1998
data revenues grew 32% to $1.7 billion, representing more than one-third of our
total revenue growth. In recognition of our strength in data, in 1998 Amentech was
selected to operate America’s international research and educaton Intemet hub.

To speed growth, we've taken important steps to expand our dala capabilines
For example, during the past year we acquired Clover Technologies. a leading
network integrator and one of the largest local area network solutions providers
in the United States. Also, we were the first company certified to both operate
and connect suppliers to the Automotive Network eXchange® (ANX") service.

a secure, Intemet protocol network that connects automakers and 4000 suppliers

To meet growing mass-marke! demand for broadband, we re deploying
ADS! technology and building competitive cable TV networks both copable
of delivering the data services of the future This past year. we launched one
of the largest single commercial deployments of high-speed ADSL technology

in the country — for up to 20,000 off-campus students, faculty and saff at

the University of Michigan. ADSL. lets users access the Internet at speeds up to
50 times faster than a standard phone line and modem. We're also building advanced
cable TV networks. We have 95 cable TV franchises that cover a population

of nearly 4 million in the Chicago, Detroit, Cleveland and Columbus. Ohio,
markets. We're operating in 75 commumties, offering more than 90 chunnels of
programming and real-time community informa-

tion to more than 200,000 americasr* customers.

Wi provade advanced data seevives to customers atl the
I mives Ay ol 51“'11}:.1“ sivh as Peier Koo § L wiiy e
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Ameritech is one of the world’s most successful cellular

companies. Our broad customer base and new services

point to an exciting future.

Anerilech s wireless
SCOVICES penerale rapid
growth We serve cus-
torners such as Marsoall
Drinon an the nited
States (hwong page) and,
through our partnerships.,
customers such as Zoltan
Novak tn Hungary
toppaosite . We market
wireless services through
A vartely ol sales channels
e tuding retul stores
Ainertech associate
Rumberty Landahl tinset.
Taving page) demon
strates phone Tedtures

tis M |andsmun

Operating cash flow from aur wireless
operations increcsed 315% in 1998, as we

The U S. wireless markel is forecas! 1o grow more than 50% over the next five
years to $60 billion. Ameritech’s position in this fast-expanding market 1s large
and growing. We provide wireless service to more than 3.5 million customers in
the Upper Midwest and cover every major market where we provide traditional
wired phone service. Ameritech sells wireless service through more than 1,000 retail
locations including 69 shops within Sears stores, which were added in 1998, Our
results have been consistent
and impressive, Over the
past three years, we've
added approximately

1.7 million new customers.
And opportunities for
continued strong growth

are outstanding. Our U.S.
wireless markets encompass
a total population of more
than 34 million.

To drive future growth, in 1998 Ameritec accelerated deploymer! of our
ClearPath™ advanced digital wireless networks in our mojor U S markets
This service gives customers added call clanty, longer talk tmes and a host

of new features such as Caller 1D and Voice Mail. Over the past two yreary,
Ameritech launched ClearPath service in our largest markets — Chicago,
Detroit, Indianapolis. St. Louis, Milwaukee. Cincinnati and Columbus, Ohio
and the service is available to 84% of our potential customers

Ameritech wireless leads its marke!s in both custome:
growth and customer satisfaction Over the pust three
years, our number of U.S. wireless customers has nearly
doubled. That growth has been driven by quality service
In 1998, Ameritech ranked number one i J 1D, Power and
Associates’ customer satisfactuion survey ol wireless users

recorded the best financial performance in in Chicago, Detront and St. Louis — our only markeis where
the history of our cellular business the survey was conducted. This marks the fourth consecu-

tive year that Ameritech has received this award in Chicago
and Detron




Througl'kur Nbrﬁ Amerlean security operations and

innovative privacy services, we're building a new growth
business in a high-potential market.

Ameritech providey
secunty mononng for
vilstmers across North
Ameocs. mcluding Cindy
Fane and son William
g pager Skilled
crployces such as

Torrie Smder at vur
SevunityLink National
Accounts Center i
Coluiitbwrs. Mo
PRI L s Ve asingss
wvieslonners Char pew
Minentech Prvacy
Moamager service lets
wustomens such as
Bermard Mivon

fasel. beliow s avand

unwarted Calls

Ameritech 15 a leader in the North Amerncan elecironic secur h inclusti
a $15 billion market forecast 1o grow o more than $26 hillio
We are the second-largest provider of electronic secunty in the United States, the
largest provider in Canada and one of only two companmes that compete nationally
in all segments of the industry. We serve 1.2 million customen and operate 1n

92 of the United States’
largest 100 markets, which
cover 72% of the country's
population. This growth
profile s strengthened by
the business’ strong value
equation: a consistent, recur-
nng revenue stream, high
customer retention rates

and low capital investment
requirements for expansion.

VB AN
.

To spur continued glowﬂ" wWe Ve uq_..—_]r-.z_!(.n.i our montored produ s o
services and deployed the security industry's most tobust « ustomer service
plafform. For example, we launched systems that automatically Page customen
when alarms occur or when loved ones returm home. And in 1998, we consolidated
our call monitoring centers into tour state-of-the-an regional fucilines More than

80% of our accounts are now served by these new centers, which proside more
consistent service and added efficiency

Our Ameritech Privacy Manager sérvice is the
industry’s first comprehensive solution to phone
privacy concerns. Launched late in 1995, this
breakthrough service gives customers choice and
control over the calls that come mnto their homes
and lets them reject unwanted calls from tele-
marketers and others. The service is now available
10 customers in three states. Initial sules are ahed

Amenigch added 136 000 North
Ameandan socurty costomers
in 1908 bor o 3% growth rate

of projections. And growth prospects are bright



In 1998, Ameritech’s European investments contributed
more than one-fourth of our total earnings growth.
These strong results point to a future rich in opportunity.

The European communications market is forecast to grow 60% over the
nex! five years to more than $560 billion Powenng this growth are liberal-
1ized markets, expanding economies and a lurge population base. To capitalize
on these growth opportunities, uver the past five years Amentech has become
the largest foreign investor in Eurupean communications. We have iagor strateg i
partnerships in the national, tull-service communmications
companies Belgacom of Belgium, Tele Danmark o
Denmark and MATAV of Hungary. We are also a
partner in NetCom. a fast-growing cellular company

in Norway, and we own 100% of WLW, a successiul

businesa-to-business directory and electrome commerce
firm based in Germany. Ameritech Global Gateway
Services, launched in late 1997, has grown quichly
and now provides wholesale long-distance transport

to more than 200 countries

Over the pas! few years, the value of our European investments has more
than doubled, growing from cur oniginal invesiment of $4 7 billion 10 maore
than $10 billion. We build value by sharing

skills and focusing on customenrs. In Hungary.

for instance, our partnership in MATAV resulied

in rapid service upgrades and elimmation of a

13-year waiting list for phone service. MATAV'S

Through our Buropean
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iy D dmnark and Asel driven by strong hinoncial results and

successful new services — including Duet, the wrpanded market oppartuniies
world’s first scamless cellular-landline sigle
number phone service

Wireless communications s o powerlul growth engine i ou' Furopean
partnershins. For example, Belgacom's total cellular customer base grew more
thun BO% 1in 199¥ (o 1.2 million. MATAV s 1998 cellular customer growth
was 45% . And in late 1998, Belgacom and Tele Danmark partnered to launch
an advanced nationwide wireless network in the Netherlands




European communications
markets are poised for rapid
growth. With interests in
15 countries, Ameritech
is strongly positioned for
the future. i
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Ameritech’s European Holdings
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The global communications industry has entered an era
of rapid expansion. And Ameritech has taken major steps
to accelerate its growth strategies. Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer Richard C. Notebaert answers questions

investors frequently ask about Ameritech’s future.

) In December 1998, shareowners of
A-eritech and SBC Communications
approved a plan to merge. What ore
your goals for the merger?

A. The proposed merger offers outstanding poten-
tial for us o speed growth and build value tor
our shareowners. Over the next few years, the
conumunications industry will generate unprece-
dented opportunities. The merged company will
hive the scale, scope, expenence and financial
strenigth to capitalize on these opportunities and
sernve customers on a national and global basis.
Our combined resources will enable us 1o launch
muore new services faster than ever belore. Our
cimployees will form a world-class talent pool. And
our new-business initiatives, including our planned
national-local expansion into 30 U.S. markets out-
side our tradinonal regions, will spur compention
and turther accelerate our industry s expansion.
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In previous annual reports. | sad that tor any
merger to make sense for Amentech, it would have
o deliver elear wins tor both our customers and
our sharcowners. This merger will dehiver these

wins faster than we could achieve them on our own

Q. Whot is your dividend history, and how
will Ameritech's planned merqger with SBC

aftect dividend payoulse

A, Ameritech and SBC share o strong dividend
record. Both companies have rased their dividend
every year they ve been in business, When the
merger closes, cach share of Amentech common
stock will be exchanged for 1316 shares of SBC
common stock. So, we expect the transaction will
have httle or no impact on disidend payouts for
Amentech shareowners, Because ol our sirong
carmngs., both companies have achieved consistent
dividend growth while steadily reducing payout
ratios. This allows a arger portion of eamings to be
retamned for mmvestment in growth appontunitics

Q) Ameritech conhinues 1o (_‘.A{_\(Jn:! nternahon
o“y How do you mimimize risk when making

overseqs investments?

A, We do three important things 1o ensure success
in our international investments. First, we screen
every country by looking at a range of quanthable
fuctors These include polineal and econonne
stabihity, business and legal environments and
cducation levels. Second, we evaluate every




business opportunity by applying disciplined
investment models that quantify potential for
growth and value creation over time. Third, we
pursue strategic partnerships rather than passive
investments, Partnerships allow us to learn from
others while having direct input into operations.,
with seasoned Ameritech professionals transfer-
ring knowledge and skills eritical 1o success.

Q What impact will competition have on
Amertech’s future?

A Competition as a clear positive. Ity good for
customens. It mvigorates markets. And 1t spurs
growth. That's why Ameritech has taken the lead
in pushing for more open markets, and why we
continue to work to move beyond regulatory bar-
riers and gain entry into the long-distance busi-
ness: Today, more than 200 companies have been
certified 1o provide local service in our markets,
and we've completed more than 150 interconnec-
tion agreements with competitive providers.

Our competitive confidence is based on proven
strengths: a strong brand, a reputation for out-
standing service and world-class marketing
capabilities. 1t's also based on the success of our
wholesule business. Since 1993, our wholesale
unit has grown to include 1,000 employees, and
today more than 5,000 network and information
providers — including cellular, PCS and compet-
mg local service companies — use Ameritech ser-
vices in their products.,

) What is Ameritech doing to increase
ity How of new services?

A We created a special business unit to speed
new product development. And we set stretch tar-
gets for revenues from new services, With the
success of new data services and advanced calling
products such as 1-800-CONFERENCE® and
Amernitech Privacy Manager, in 1998 we achicved
our poal and tripled our new-product revenucs.
Qur pipehine continues o be rbust, both in our
core business and in new growth opportunitics,
such as cable TV and security services. And in
the coming year, we expect o outpace our 1998
revenue gans from new products.

Q What steps has Ameritech taken 1o
prepare tor Year 2000 computer and
systems conversions?

A We began a thorough assessment ol vur
mission-cntcal systems an 1996, and we're con-
fident we've identified and made changes 1o most
systems an tune for a full year of westng betore
the turn of the century. Our assesstent and reme
diabon programs will require that we spend about
$250 mullion by the end of 2000 As part of

our Year 2000 efforts, we'se also deseloped
contmgency plans should disruptions o services
oceur: The work s conducted by centrally conn
dinated teams orgamized by business tuncuon,
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Q What are your plans tor capial spending?

A Our capital budget tor 1999 15 m hine with

TOOK. when we invested S298 billon i capital
projects -
Two-thirds of our 1998 capital dollars were used

an mcrease of $S330 nulhon over 1997

to expand and upgrade our local phone network
Growth m capital spending also was diven by om
deployment of digital cellular networks and by
continued butldout of our cable TV network

We take a highly discaiplined approach o capial
mvestment, Rt.'pulil[ur} reguremicits are one factor
i our decisions. But the magor dover ot our
capital planming s customers. We place o higa
prionty on projects that enable us o provide

costomers with new produces and sersowes
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Selected Financial and Operating Late

Ameritech Uorpoation and Subsidiarnies

As ol [devember U)o for the year onded

(el Lars i mallions. evoept per shaie amounts |
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Averape comnmon shares
autstunding tmillions g’ 11016 10987 11038 L1072 100KS 10K 107v1 10621 10612 10TEY TUKNK
Total assets” $30.209 $25339 S$23.707 $21.942 S19.947 S21428 SQ2HIK S22.200 $21.718 S 1umEb S iudet
Property, plant and
cyuipment. net’ SI4.3085 SIAKTY S1L507 S1LAST SIL455 S17.060 17 048 SInU8n S 16050 S0 167N
Capital expenditures $ 2UB2 S 2681 5 2476 0% 2076 0% 1958 % 2008 % 267 8 220008 2S5 2iHS S LRYS
Loy term deby $ OS557 8§ 4610 $ 4437 § 4513 % L4 % LM % JSK6 S 490 8 S0 8 Sony § 4 dNT
Total debr* $ RIT6 $ 7646 5 7592 % 6,651 S 636§ 6682 % HTH S AU S HTHY S SSRY S A2
et rann 42 9% 47 9% 449 7% 48 7% 51.2% 44 L1 L S ] 0 T 421 N 7
Return on aserage eguity 6 2% 28 5% 28 7% 8% (1deE o Q00 [T I TLU I = B LY Ity 5 15 K% 1S K
Return on average ttal capital’ 1% I8 1% 17.1% 18.2% [E 2T S I R 02 Hre's It K% 1w 12
Muarket price peroommon share’ $ 6338 % 4025 § 3031 % 2944 8 2009 % 1919 8 ITHRL S ISEN S 1669 § 1700 S |
Access lines (D00s) 20068 20,502 D694 19,057 18,239 17,560 1T [T0R.T % S TS SR R 1V W [T
Cellular subscnibers (KK 1577 3177 2.512 1 K91 1,294 Wil AN 451 Vi x2 ydn
Vinplosees T0O82S T4 oh 02K 65 S 6dlswd sl T W Thaad 75.7800 17420 77.4%8
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condinon

Idolkars an millons, except per share amounts)

Chvest wiew

Amerntech 15 a diversified, full-service communications company
providimg wireline and wireless telephone service, paging. cable
IV secunty services, directory advertising and online services
Our tive domesnic landline communications subsidiaries provide
local ielephone service, network access and public telephone
service o more than 12 million customers in Illinois, Indiana,
Michigan, Ohio and Wisconsin, These subsidianies are subject to
regulation by the respective state utility commissions and by the
Federal Communicanons Commission (FCC). In addition, we
provsude cellular service primanly in our five-state region and
Misoun, paging services in our five-state region, Missouri and
Minnesota cable TV service in Hhinois, Michigan and Ohio; and
sevunity services throughout North America

The communications industry continued (o adapt 1o sweeping
regulatory changes. increased competition and significant new
strategic imtiatives i 1998, The Telecommunications Act of 1996
established a natonul policy that calls for competition and open
murhets, rather than regalatory management. as the basic industry
businiess environment. A a result, it opened the nation’s communi-
cations markels 1 competinon from new players both within and
vutside the industey, potentially enabling them to become either
niche or full-service providers of voice, video, data, local and
long-distance services for their customers. At the same time, many
communications markets in other pants of the world are in the
mudst of reforme ulting in pnivatization and deregulation of
many previously sationalized communications companies

Ihese Torces ueting together create an environmen! for tremen-
dowis potential growth in the global commumications industry.
Ameritech recogmized these growth opportunites several yean
ago and we implemented three basic strategies o compete effec-
tively i this new environment: speed growth in our core business,
introduce new services for customers and connect customen
around the world. By sdhenng to these strategies, we have posi-
toned ourselves o take advantage of future market expansion
and strategic growth opponumities.

On May 11, 1998, we accelerated the execution of Amernitech’s
stratepy with the announcement of our agreement to merge with
SBC Commumcations Ing In the merger transaction, each share
uf Ameritech common stock will be converted into and exchanged
tor 1.316 shares of SBC common stick. After the merger, Amenitech
will be i wholly owned subsidiary of SBC. The transaction was
approved by the board of directors and shareowners of each
vompany i 1998, but remains subject o vanous federal and siate
regulatory approvals. Amenitech and SBC own competing cellular
heenses in several markets, including Chicago and St. Louis
Because FUC rules hmit vross-ownership of cellular licenses, we
expect thut the FOC will require divestiture of anc overlapping
heense in each market before granting approval of the merger

Results o Clperaticin

Ameniech’s record of strong financiad results continued in JY9%
We achieved double-digit earmings growih belore one -time e
in cach quarter of 199K and for the year Resulis were driven by
sobid revenue growth and by operating cent controls iminated in the
first yuarter of 1998 Income rom intermational ventures i Belgium,
Denmark and Hungary also contnbured o earmings growth

Consolidated results of operations for 1998 compared with the
prior year were as lollows

Results of Operations
Inurease Percent
(R 1997 (Deviease) Change
Income before
one-time items § Ynid $ 2 Mn $ ok 114
One-lime 1tcims a2 1S 10612 wm
MNet incoime 1.0 2200 BRI <71
EPS betore one-time iteims
Basi $ 2% 8 214 0§ o 7
Diluted 2358 2 023 10K
Eamings per share
Hasic $ 127 8 w8 1R 568
Diluted 125 204 117 563
Average common shares
Cmillions) 1101 6 1,08 7 24 013

Une-time lems in 1998 comvasted of

* a pretax charge of $104 malhon (364 millon aler-tax, o
$0.08 per share) [or restructunng related 1o u Cost conbamiment
program announced in March 1995,

* a pretax gan of S5V milhion (51002 mulbon alter-tax, o
8091 per share) from the sale of substannally all 6! our shures
in Telecon Corporition of New Zealand Linnted (TONZ,

= pretax charge of $54 mulhon (334 nudhion aftee-tax, o
$0 03 per share), for a currency -related tar value adjustment
related o our Tele Danmark investiment

s pretan gam of $170 malhon (102 mullun after tav, o
SO0 per share) from the sale of certamn Wiseonsin telepwme
and directory assets to Century Telephone Enterprises. Ine
{Century Telephone), and,

¢ a pretax charge of $3K mulbon (824 mulbion after i o
$O02 per share) Tor the costs of redectmng $1 8 bl of
Lomg-tenm dety

One-tune ttems in 1997 included

* on alter-tax charge of $87 million, or $0 U4 per share. related o
our share of the conts of o work Torce restructunng ar Belgacom,
the national telecommumications prossder i Belgiam,

* apretan gamn of 352 mudlion (337 mullion after-tax. or $0003 per
share) resulling from the sale of our 12 8% interest in Sky
Network Television Limited of New Zealand (5hy TV,
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tdadlars i millions, except per share anwwints i

¢ g pretax charge of 369 mullion (342 mullion after-tas
S H per share) resulting from our agreement oo seflle Law suits
relinted to our inside Wire mMaimienance services,

o pretax gon of $42 million (825 million after-tax, or SO0 e
share) resulting from the sale of our 14 3% share of Bell
Communicanons Research (Belleore),

« o pretax gain of $43 nullion (827 million after-tax, or SOO3 pe
share) resulting from the sale in animtial pubhc oltenng ol
portion of our stake in MATAYV, the telecommunications
provider in Hungary: and,

a pretax charge of $16 million (S10 milhon after-tax, v
$0.01 per share) resulting from o cummeny -related G value
adjustment related to our Tele Danmark imvestmem

Including the effects of these one-time items, 199X et incone

mereased $1.310 mitlion. or §7.1%. and dituted earmings per share

mereased 31,17, or 56.3% . over the comparable priot year pernod
Net mcome belore one-nme items increased $2W oulhon. o
10.9% an 1997, and diluted eamings per share increased $0.21.
ar Y5 over 1996 resulls. Results in 1996 included an after i
gam ol ST8 mullion, or $0.02 per share, resulting from the sale of
our mnterest in Centertel, a cellular telephone company i Poland

SEGMENTS The Tollowing discussion mabes relerence 1o a new
segment reporting concept adopled 1n 1998 As discussed maore
fully .n Note 14 to the consolidated financial statemenis on pages
51 83, based on how we manage our busiess. we have three
reportuble segments. Our largest segment 18 communications,
which provides landline telephone service, cellular telephone wnd
paging services, as well as call management and data services o
business and residential customens. Our second segient is inltor
nuation and entertamment. which prosvades panted and online
directonies for business and residential users, secunity and alarm
montonng services for himes and businesses, and cable TV
services. Our third reportable segment s international, which
manages our mvestments in foreign ventures. The internanonal
segmient has no revenues., as all AUCounting snsity s reciotded
using the one-hine equity method of secounting We evaluate the
perfonmance of our o revenue-prowducing segments on a direct
margin basis. which represents ital revenues of that segment fess
direct expenses attributed w i tescluding corporate allocations,
wtormanon technology costs, mterest income or expense, incoie
laves and certim other conis)

Our communications segment is characterized by stable rey-
enue growth and solid earmnings. Revenue growth in the informa
lon and entertainment segment 1s somewhat higher, in pant due 10
acguisiions, bul carmings growth i more modest due e the stan
up mature ol v cable TV operation and normal imtegration costs
bemng aincurred in our secunty services business. The international
segment contimues to contribate to earmings growth,

Total direct margin for reportable segiments was $6.593 nullion
in P99KS6Y mulhion i 1997 and $S.332 mulhon i 1996 Direat
g o the communggations SCEMment n.'[!ll:sl.'lltw.l apprrosimate by

Q25 TN 920 DT s SR T g T the
intofmtatiod and cilertaininent segment reprowntad the remammg |
RO, K o oo Bor thenwe vears

I et A i e commmunications seginent increased i botl
TR and 19T due tomcrcased protitabibies i the cellulan bus
ness, acreased revenues from lughemaegn calb management ser
vives and steawdy provath i the Tandline communications busiticss

Ohrur prargans anc the intormaton and entertamment segment
Bave been slimed by acgquesiions we Tase nuds 10 our secunty
servives business While these aoguinitions have added to resenuees
niCgEration aned vonsoldation of I“IIIIJIIIHI:IF LT ||.|\g' i 1wl

o s Burther, the st ap nature of our cable TV basiness

which did ot have any resenues until ond D980 ] now has
mare than 2L customers, has atfected margms mthis sey
ment as well

Revestes We denve st ol our revenues Trom the prosisioning
o Lanidhine 1elephone seevive and supporting peesducts, whih
represents approvimately 785 of wotal revenues om aperating

sepments Other sipnihicant sonroes of revenue i 198 included

52
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Revenue Growth
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ANs i b s tebal b s et immreaserd T M i BRG] 2 e

Pt sl 154 abtewrg o bpsleson o o rriarnd ) owm s sdim L fcs

cellular and paging. which contobated appoovimatehs 110 ot ol
fevenues and directony advertiming shich repre ents approng
mately B o total resenues

Kevenues mereased by 7 2% 10 17 2 Wl 198 Res enue
prowth resulted Trom strong gains i Fiwal service and diita ser-
sices revenues, combaned wath contmuoed groswth m cellulag
jaging arid scvwurnity services Hate redu toons r('-llill.'l?‘ |\||:||_|||,|\
Prawrn oo ss .h.upr ooy Bost Famiddhorse @ avmnaimitinine il 10 mis sa f v iy o,
an e e enies o B distiee servives i o cotiim

vatums sepment, partialls olhset the increase. Revenue growth in

TR was O 4% noowr comim

wations sepment and 26 1% i owr
ilormation and entertnment segrent, due i part to st i ui-
sty an the secunity servives business

Total revenes ticivased by 7 20 1o S 160 billion an 1997,

drvven by invicased demamd oo wade arras of vorce and data
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{dollars in millions, cicept per share amounis)

Increase Pervent
1998 1997 (Decrease)  Change
Long-distance S 1,408 $ 1,384 s 24 17

LoNG-0sTaNCE Our current long-distance service revenuces arc
denived from customer calls to locations outside of the customer s
local calling areas but within the same local access and trunspon
area (LATA). These revenues also are included in the resulis of our
communications segment

Long-distance revenues increased 1n 1998, reflecting grow th n
dedicated services and price increases. Volume decreases, resulting
from mcreased competition i lhnois, Michigan and Wisconsin,
partially offset the increase. Customers now may use an alternative
provider of their choice for inralLATA wll calls in these markets,
without dialing a special access code when placing the call

Long-distance revenues decreased by $107 million, or 7.2%
1997, due to a decrease in the volume of intralL ATA toll calls
completed. Implementation of Dial 1 + capability in the Iinon,
Michigan and Wisconsin markets was substantially complete in
19497, resulting in increased competition for these toll calls.

Increase Percent
1998 1997 (Decrease)  Change

Cellular, directory
and ather $ 5.604 - 4938 S8 756 153

Cevl vrak, mRvcTory AND oiieR Cellular, directory and other
revenues iwlude revenues denved from cellular communications,
paging services, telephone directory publishing, cable TV, lease
tinunwing. billing and collection services, telephone equipment
sales, and securnty installations and services, These revenues result
from both our communications and informaton and enterainment
segments, as well as from other busine s activities, such as lease
financing. not included In the resulis of reporable segments,
Kevenues from cellular, directory and other services increased
in 1998, resulting primanly from solid growth in the number of
cellular subscnibers and pagers in service, as well as continued
growth in our securty and cable TV businesses. Revenues from
Voice Muil und other nonregulated services, as well as a change
in reporting classification of certain pay phone revenues, as
previously discussed, alvo contributed o the increase. Also
in 1994, we revised a partnership agreement covering the
publication of directonies m HHinois and northwest Indiana,
resulting m increased directory sdvertising revenues.
Compettion from other cellular providers has intensified
wir fegion, particularly in the Chicago market. However, the
increased price competiion and expanded service offenings have
stimubated denmand, doving addinonal subscriber growth, We
continued o introduce our ClearPath™ digital wireless service
in cities throughout our region during 1998, offering customen

enhunced call clanty, longer battery life and betier cull secunty
Revenues Trom cetlulan, directory and other services increased

by $625 mmllion, or 14.5% in 1997 due 1o strong growth in the

number of cellular and paging subscnibers. Introduction of

26

ClearPath servive i the Clucago and Detront markets and sucues
ful retention of a high perventage of subscnibers contribute o

the revenue morease Paging services grew at a strong rate duoe

o anereased markenng effonts and continued castomier demand tor
added convenience  Increased revenues trom equipment sley and
msade wore installation and mantenance seevices also contnbured
o the increase, as did higher directony resenues, resuliimg proma

iy From volume growth and poce imorcases

Oremaning exeesses Follow g iva discussion ol operating
expenses for Amentech on a vonsoldated basis Total operating
cxpenses inereased by 6 2% o STLO billon an P95 Oserall busi
ness growth and network expansion drove much ol the increase
Higher access charge expenses and a restructunng harge also
contzthuted 1o the increase Total operating expenses ticreasal

by 699 10 812 2 billion in 1997 due primanly 1o incieased
cmployee-related and wther operating expenses resultng from
overall business growth

Increase Pervent

19K 1T Decrease) Change
Empliyvee-related
CAPCRIMES $ 4oy 8 tusw s 2D § 4

EstPeovkr-met aten pxresses Dinplisee related eypenses
increased in 1998 due poimandy 1o higher emiployee levels in the
information and entertamment segment. coinbined with higher
wage rales und overnme ervpenses in thie Covmuniy ations seEment
Druring 199X, we entered snto new collective bargaimmyg agree
ments with the Intermationa Brotherhood of Electrical Workers
(IBEW ) and the Commumcations Workers of Amenca (CWA)
The IBEW vontract took ellect on June 28, 1998, tor g permd

uf five years The contract will be re apened in 2000 1o adidress
certain eoonomie wage tswues for the linal two years ol the agree

ment The CWA contrset was elfevtive August 90 199K, and

high<copacity c
n 1998

&
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

tdathars imomillons, except per shase amuounts)

Cruage W ISCOME AND EXPENSE

Increase Percent
199K 1997 (Devrease)  Change
Interest capense $ 611§ S05  § 106 210

INTEREST EXPENSE Interes! expense increased in 199K due primanly
o lgher overall debt balances associsted with our $3 1 llion
wvestient i Tele Danmark, We funded this investment an part
by raing $2.5 ballion i long-term debt. Lower interest on shon
terin debt. resulting prmarntly from a reduction in short-term debt
balances fullowing the sale of substantially all ol our TOUNZ
st panidly offset these increases,

hinerest expense decreased by 89 million, or LK%, i 1997
due primanly o increased cash flow from operations, resulting
in lower average shon-term debt balances. This decrease was
partially offset by the effect of higher shortwerm interest rates
Increased interest on long-term debt. resulting from higher averuge
long -term debt balances. alvo partially offset the decrease

Increase Pervent
_l?")ﬂ ; 1997  (Decrease) ('hani:r
(Hher income. net § 2,055 $ 390 5 1665 40

OriERr INCOME, SET Other income. net includes eamings related
tr Anicriiech s investments (when the equity method of accounting
is Tollowed), interest income and other nonoperating items

Other income increased i 1998 due pnmanly o the elfedts
o a one-time pretax gam of $1.543 million (51012 mullion alter
tax) resulling from the public sale of substantially all of our stake
i TONZ, partially offset by o one-time pretan charge of $54 nul
Lion (S34 mullion after-tax) for a cumency-related fair-value
alyustment related to our investment in Tele Danmark A/S. the
national commumcations provider in Denmark. A one-time pretay
gatn ob $170 pulhon (S 102 million after tax) from the ale of
certiin telephone and directory assets o Century Telephone alo
contributed 1o the increase. Farmings from our new investment i
Tele Danmark, combined with stronger eamings from our imvest
ments in Belgiom and Hungary, contributed 1o the increase as
well Partially offsetting these increases were lower equily carn
mgs from TONZ, resulting from the sale of substantially all of
our stahe i this company in April 1998, as well ax o one-time
prets charge of 338 million (524 million aiter-tax) (or the costs
ol redeenung $1.3 billion of long 1erm deb

Enher income ncreased by $64 amllion, or 19.6% in 1997
prunanily as the result ot three one-time gains. We sold our stuke
in Sky TV, resulting in & pretax gain of $52 milion (537 mullon
after-tax ). We alse realized a ooe-time pretax gam of $43 mullon
2T onilhon alier-tan s related o the sale of a portion of o
MATAV shugres inoan intial pabiic oftening. and a one-time preta
gam of 342 mullion (525 millon after-tax) related o the sale ol
our imvestment in Belleore. A one-time after-tax charge of SE7 nul
hon for our share of the costs of o work Torce restnciuring at
Helgavom partially ottset the increase

28

Char snvestinenits i intematinal senmuares are \||I\|L'LI Lov certain
rishos refated o Moctiatons i toregn currency oxchange rates Iy
TUON and 19497 we recopmized some forcign e s hange transaclion
pams and lovses and canene s translation adjustments related 1o
these mvestments due to Poactdations i the saboe of the B4
dollar agamst the respectine local currencies. While future Huctua
toms an curren s eschange tates Jould impact tuture resulis of
opcratioin, we expeut e gEn operalioms I Combime o prinvde
sinong hinancial results and earmings growih

As previously meted onnantermnational mvestinients epresent
one of oul thiee frepeitable segimems bguity income trom these
vestments alter one tine s des tibed abose, was $37K ol
Teowe omy D906, S 2R plbon e 1997 and $2330 andhion i 1%

This equity iwonme does ot reguine o full prososon bon additional
'S mowoene taves due toosubstaniial avalable tosergn imcome tay
credits apsing from these same foreign vy purisdictons The
mcrease 1 eyguily incomie i PR gesulis primands from the adds
o ol Tele Pranmark i pontfolios which more than otbser ihe
equity incaore Tost ront TONZ sold an Apnl 1995 Ealang edd prot
wahlity at Belgacon and MATAN alvo contributed o the inencase.
as well as the elfedts of stromper bowal cumendies The maorcase m
P equaty earmnpes whien compared witly 19790 was die b higher
ety imeie oo all oboour boreignomyestments, but modeaded
due 1o the strength of the LYS dollar agasinst the howal cuntencies

Incrcase Percem
14K PRl iecrcaser Change
Tnconie taves s lun S 1. \Kh S i 46 3

INCOME TANES Inconmee s expense i reased i RIS duse promanly
T the tan impacts of gatns resulbing fom sales ol investments
wcluding our TONZ shares Our effective taviabe was Wiri
PR compared wath WP e 1T e b efleative rale
PR resulted pramands froan e s basvis exceedimg the ook
hasis i owir TONZ shares solid

Inwome taves increascd b S 205 nollpwn, o 17 V6 1997
e T anancrease n pretay carmmps as well as the effects ol s
o e abier tay charge of S87 mdlion selated tooour share of
the vonts ol a worb Torce oo tuning ot Belgacom A decrease
i the amortizalion ot s estnent Ly credits relative o pretay
e and g change m s Liw o Sew Zealand that subjeaied
us 1o g withholding e oo divadesd distobutions alse contpbuted

Bt e ase
Financial Condiman Ligudity and Coptal Resources

Amenitech continued to penerate stoong cash o from e
oo ducing PRI These cash thoms commbined warh capinal
dernved troun exrermal sowrves, enabled us ot only o fund

e reased capital expenditures, But also v punoe sigmificant new
v estment oppettumibies and Booncrease Jdoadesds pand per share

by B 2% onvern il provn voan pwensld




CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Cash flows from
operations inereased by $300 rostlion o $4.8 billion in 1998, due
pronanily teoverall business growth, combined with working
capiial improvemenis. These factors also led to an increase in cash
Nows from operations of $767 milhion 1o $4.5 billion in 1997,

CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES Although capital expenditures
increased by more than SN milhon in 1998, reflecting continued
investment i the core commumcations segment und the infra-
structure Tor new businesses, investments in other communications
ventures represented the single lergest use of company funds in
199K The largest of these was our 83,1 billion investment 10 Tele
Danmark. Following our investment and a repurchase of shares

by Tele Dannnirk from the Kingdom of Denmark, we hold a

41.6% stake i the company. This increase in cash outflows was
partially offset by the proceeds from our sale of substantially al! of
vur TONZ shares. This transaction was structured as an installment
sales wath approvimately halt of the proceeds due at the time of sale
w Apnl 1998 and the other hall due by March 31, 1999 The initial
sl lmnt resulted i proceeds of approximately $1.1 billion, and
the second mstallment will result in additonal proceeds in 1999

ol approvimately $1LO billion. Also in 1998, we received poocecds
of approvmately 3473 million from the repayment by General
Flectne Company ol the note related to our GEIS investment and
procecds ot approximnt 'y 3221 million from the sale of assets

0 Century Telephone:

Investiients in new bosinesses ulso increased in 1997, with
acyuisibis fotaling maore than 81 billion for the year In Apnl and
June 17 we acguired assets of three companies engaged inosecu-
rity servives Consideration Tor these assets consisted of approx-
roately S8 mullwn i cash and the issuance of a total of 3,008,607
commeon shares with a dollar value of approximately 5100 million
In October AT we acquired security asscts of Rollins Protective
Services, o divsion of Rolhims, Ines and secunty assels of
Republic Secunty Company Holdings, a subsidiary of Republic
Industries, Ine. We used approximately $800 million in cash
o muke these purchases

In November 17, we acquired from Spant the asscts of s Jocal
exchange busimess in suburban Chicago. formerly known as Central
Telephone Company of Hlinors, We paid $160 mullion i cash,

Other wnvesting actvities 1n 1997 included proceeds from our
sales of wvesiments, including our stake in Bellcore, our invest-
ment i Shy TV and a portion of our stake in MATAV through an
imitial public ollenng. In addinon to these sales, we also received
princeds of approsunately $T52 million from a stock repurchase
program al TONZ

Tovesting activities i 1996 consisted pnmanly of our invest-
ment with wveral partners in Belgacom. A consortium led by
Ameriech puichased @ 49 9% stuke in Belracom from the Belgian
povernment tor a purchase price of approximately $2.5 billion
Amentech invested approximately $865 million for its 35% con-
sortium hare, representing approximately 17.5% of Belgacom

Investing activiies in 199 also indluded additional insestiments
I SCCUNTY SETVICES dasely

Capital expenditures mrcased in all thiee scars due pomanly
to icrcased spending atl the landline communications subsid-anes
to meet mcreased demand for datia, custom calhing and prisate
Jine services and to comply with regulatony reguiremients Capatal
spending also increased due to continued enhanceien and expan
ston of the cellular network

We behieve that investmient in the core communications
segment will tacthtate the antoduction of new products and ser
vices, enllianee ou rEPORSIVENEss I ev et I rcasing competitive
challenges and increase the operating clliciencs and productivity
of our network We are deploving capital based on costomer
demmands, our business plans and regulateny commiments
We place a hagh privnty on technologies that will enable us o
provide customers with new primducts and senvices

S2.01
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Earmings Growth
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Ancoibey b seaming s o lomdbsed ] 4% on P8 e 30 610 nllnen
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCISG ACTIVITIES Prinancing activities
i VR ncluded issaance of 825 ballion ol oo teom debt and
$325 nulhwon of préferred stowk by a wholly oo ned subsidian
promandy o linance our ivestment o Tele Danmark In January
T9N, we saued $1 75 Bilbon of long temm debom five separae
tranches through our o g subsidars, Amentech Capital
Funding (tACE) In addinion, we issoied S740 mullion of Eurodollu
notes ain Bebroary 1998, due i 2008 Shont term debt decreased
by S407 ol primants reflecony the apphication ol proseeds
from our sale of TONZ shares In December 199K we redeemed
approsimutely ST 3 ilhon of angterm debt issued by our Land
line commumications subsadianes s Do, Michigan, Ohio
and Wisconsn 1o take advantage of favorable market condinions
We funds d these redemptions using short term debt Financing
activaties abso o buded divadend pay menis wml stos b repurnciases
as thsussed beliw

In 1997 we issued $S680 nulhon of long-term de™st through oo
financing subsidiary, prmanly to fumd our aeguistions of secunty
aseets fromn Kollins and Repubhic wnd one of oar whaolly © wned
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The Supreme Court upheld the FCC's determumation that the
defimtion of a netwark elemeat could include items beyond physi
cal facilities and equipment, such as operational support systems,
aperator services, directory assistance and vertical services sich
as call forwanding and caller dentification. It funther ruled that
the FCC could bar ILECs [rom separating already combined net
work elements However, the Supreme Count overtumed the FCO™
rule wentfying and requiring 1LECs to offer specific network
clements, finding that the FOCC had not adequately considered
as required by the 1996 Act. whether those spevific unbundled
network elements were “necessary” or whether the falure 10
provide access o them might “impair” the ability of CLECs
provide competitive services. We believe that this ruling supperts
our view that the objectives of the 1996 Act, including develop-
ment and deployment of advanced technologies desired by
customers. will best be served by encouraging infrastnicture
e aments. rather than through unlimited blanket avcess to
ull existing ILEC network clements

Since the Eighth Circuit Court’s 1997 opinion, local intercon
nection matters und unbundled network element pricing have been
resolved primarily twough negotiated interconnection agreements
or state commission arbitration proceedings. The substantive validity
of the FCC's pricing rules, including its total element long-run
incremental cost (TELRIC) pricing methodology, was not belore
the Supreme Court, and will be addressed by the Eighth Circuit
Court on remand. Pending judicial resolution of the appropriate
pricing methodologies and a determination by the FCC of which
unbundled network elements are “necessary,” our landline commu-
mications subsidianes expect 10 continue (o negotiate and enler o
inlergonnection agreements and pursue, through appropnate stale
ot federal proveedings, tmely recovery of their costs.

We also may seck review by the LS. Supreme Coun of the
separate Eighth Circuit Court decision last year regarding shared
transpent. In 199%, the Eighth Circuit Count upheld the FCC™
determimnation that “shared fransport,” which would include access

o wll ot an 1LEC s transport facilities, is a network

element that should be made availible @ competiton an an
unbundled hasis

The outcome of Tuture repulatony aid ol dieselopments
i this ares s subject toocontining uncertamy We behiese that
the prcing rules and methidulogies penerally adopted hy ot
PPN slale comimissiins with respedt o our exesting intet
connection agreements should not ditter matenally from e
that muay be apphicd under propesed FOC prving methaodologies
W turther expect that future judical o regulaony decisions wall
detine reasonable limiting standards, consistent with the purposes
ol the 1996 Act, as 1o which ol our exasting nebwork elements
st be made svailable o commpenmon Yo can give o assuianee.
howeser, that tuture regulatony and pudical determimatisig iy
ot have a matenal adverse ettect on future tevenues and margins

Y our COTTIMIUN I Al segnwnt

Reciprocal compensation A number of CLEC are engaped in
repulatory and judicial proceedimgs wath varous ECS, e luding
our landline communications subswdianes, with respect o the puay
meni of teciprocal compensation w the CLECS Torcally ongmat
ing on the ILECS networks for dial-up connectinns 1o aeess the
Internet s 1SPs sersed by the CLECY networks The ULECS
have asserted that such reciprosal compensation s provided tor
by interconnechon agreenents between the CLECs and the TLECS
Together with other 1LECs, we have munntamned that we are not
required o make such reaiprocal vompensatinn puy ments parsuan
1o those agreements because such tralhic tomntersiate access sl
sive, mol lowal

ALUS Distoct Court i Hhitions bas ruled that vur Hlmois Laind
Iine communications subsidiary is requited o make reciproval
compensation paymeats i these cirvumstaiees under ats apphica

ety Thasatder os onn appeal o the

ble interconnection agr
U'S Court ol Appeals tor the Seventh Cucunt ©ases that s olse
appeals by other subswhanes ol adserse regulaton determinations
are pending i LS Distrct Counts i Michigan and Wisvonsin
Pending the vutcome of such appeals. our Hhinois Michigan and
Wisconsim landline commumcations subsidiaries cureently e
Hmhrllp [£X% l||!l)\.ll COITIPE Tl ion ety el ueder prasest, o
CLECs pursuant o exasting interconnection sgreements The
Public Utihities Commission of Ohio also ruded that aur Ohie Lol
line communications subsidiary i reguired to mahe reciproil
compensation pay ment, but hay stayed s ooder ending weheaning
On October 30, 1998, the 1OC isaued a Memorandum Cmnion
and Order m which it tound that a service attenmg by another
HLEC, permutng ISPs 1o turnish their customens with high-speed
access 1o the Internet through a dedicated comnectiom. s an nier
stale service that s properly tanffed ai the tederal fesel Tinosa
ruling. the FCC considered the totahity of the commiuation as
ar end-to-end transmission between an end user and the Liternet
Web wite accessed by the end user. and rejected the arpument that
such o commumication should be separates) it B compeiients
feonsinging of an [LEC-provided imtrastate teles ctiminications

service that tenmnmated ot the ISP s dowal serse Al an imtentite
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the D.C Circun Coun decision) violated the same provision of the
1996 Act, and ondenng Secunty Link to show cause why the FCC
« ould not regiire divestiture ol the assets sequired in such trans
sctons. We filed vur response with the FCC on August 7, 199K,
contending that divestiture would not be an appropriate remedy
The FOC's decision on these Orders 10 Show Cause 15 pending

COMPETINN E ENVIROSMENT  lechnological developments, mar
hetplace demand and legislauve, regulatory and judicial actuony
have expanded the types of services and products available from
an increasing number of companies, creating growlh opportumities
in the global commumcations industry. Our competiive strategy,
icluding our proposed merger with SBC. is to position ourselyes
o Rk advantage af such growth opportunities by continuing
hranch anto new services that are logical eatensions of our buw-
fess amd by exporting our eapertise to customers around the world

These same Tactors also have resulted inincreasing competition
i all arcas of our business In pursuing business opportunitics
both tnside and vutside the Uniled States, we compete against
other loval service providers, long -distance service providers, cable
I'V companies. wireless and Internet service providers (including
companies that provide all or some combination of these servives )
and other entrants from a range of industries. As we have
cxpanded our paging and cellular servives. the number and ty pe
ul competitars have growa. Our telephone directory publishing
busineas faces compeliion from ot only other directory publish-
g husinesses and iraditional advertising media, such as elevi-
sion, radio, direct manl, magazines and newspapers, but also
provaders of new technologies, such as Internet and other online
services. Many o our competitors have substantial scale and geo-
praging seope, sigmificant capital, technological and marketing
resources, and wide-ranging service offenings

With the pussage of the 1996 Act and other regulatory imtia
tines, our local service markets have been more extensively
vpened 1o new competitors, many of which are beue . Jto have
imitially targeted hgh-volume business customers in densely
popilated areas Imerconnection sgreements with competitive
service piosidens eguire our lindhine communications subsiduanes
1o provide Iercoiection of socess o unbundled network ele-
wents at cost-hased rates and telecommunications services at
discounted. wholesale rates. These agreements and applicable
fanffs may result in some downwird pressure on loval service
revenives, us a portion of our revenue shifts from local service
ab retanl proces to network aevess and wholesale services at lower
rates and s sonie competiton provide services using their omn
nerworks, i whole or i part. We cannot predict with certainty
the smpact that these and other deselopments ultimately may have
oot tatare business, resuilts ol apeations of linancial condition

Yiak 2000 kEapiness The Year 2000 1ssue extsts because
many computer systems and apphications, including those embedded
in cquipment and factlities, use two-digit rather than four-digit
date Delds wdesigrate an applicahle year As a result, the systems

and applications may ot properly recopnize the seiar 2000 o
primess data that includes st potentially cauving data nscalcula
tons of inaccurasies of operational malfunctions or Lalures

We have established a centrally munaged. company wide it
tive o adentily, evaluate and address Year 2000 1ssues Begun i
May 199 our Year 2000 effort covers our network and suppon
g anrastrnciure tor o provisson ol o al swaty bed and data

telecommunee ations services. cellular and paging services. vahle
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TV service and sevunty servees Also within the scope of this im
Wty e are o operational and Dinam b ntonmation tew hinalogy
(I sy stems and appliations, e e compuitng resources and
bunlding systeims, siichoas secunty, elesator amd heating aod ool
g systems In sddition, the project i dudes areview ol the Yeat
2000 compliance eltorts of our key supplices and other proinvpal
business partners and. as appropriate the deselopient o joing
business support and continmty plans tor Year 2000 issues. While
this imnanse s broad moscope s structured toodentity and
ontize our ellons for missiz-ontnal ssstems etk clements
and products amd kes business partners

Work o progressing in the tollowing phases s cibon. assess
ment, remediation, testing . deployment ad mowdonng Although
the pace of the work vanes among our busimess units and the
phases utten are conducted in parallel as ol December 11 199K
the inventory and assessmient phases have been suistantially com
pleted, the remediation phuse s neanng completion, ol the testing
and deployment pluses are well umder way

As o December 3, 1998, e maponty of our netaork clements
ceguinmg eormective st ancluding substantially sl ol our cone
network switches and other network compssents that we segand
as s ot o bave been made Year 0000 peads aid depllovaed
bach it produc 1 Ax ol Devember V10 P98 more than SRS of
our wtal wdenit
we have determined o be massionentical, have been remediated.

IT apphicanons, e luding substantally all tha

and o magorns o all correvted apphications have «ompleted cemiy

cation testing and been deplon od back o prosduc b We hune
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Pderllars an il lwens, eaepl per share amounisi

abvir made substantial progress in Year 2000 readiness preparabions
for our remmmng infrastructure compaonenis (butldings and physi-
cal facihties, internal vowce telephone systems, and deskiop PCs).
and these effons are scheduled w be completed in mad-1999. Final
integratton testing for vertmn cnticn! systems and processes 1s
scheduled wo be completed by the end of the thind quarter of 1999

With the magonty of our vanous systems remediated and a
substantial portion of those already tested and deployed back into
production, we believe we are well positioned to complete the
remediation and deployment of our remaining systems, any addi-
tional testing that may be necessary, and the deselopment of our
Business contingendy and contimuity plans in advance of the Year
20KKd transiion. However, our ability to meet that goal remains
dependent upon a vanety ol factors, including the tmely provision
of nevessuny upgrades and modifications by our suppliens and
comtractors. In some mstances, upgrades or modifications are
ot expected 1o be available until mid- or late- 1999

We huve sought Year 2000 readiness information from vanous
thard-party suppliers on whom we depend for certain products
ur essential services ! as electric utilities, interexchange
carmers, ¢t ko but we have no method of ensunng that these
supphiers will convent their entical systems and processes in a
umely manner. We are developing business contingency and con-
tnanty plans (see discussion below ), and are coatinuing to work
with our key suppliers as part of a supplier comphiance program
oy seck W s e such nsks

As i the case tor other communications services providers,
there exists o wonst case seenano possibility that a failure to cor-
rect o Year 2000 program i one or more of our mission-cnitical
network elements or IT apphications could cause o significant
disruption ol ot interruption in ceriamn of our normal business
furctions. Based on vur assessments and work to date, we believe
that uny such matenal disruption 1 our operations due to failure
of an iternal system s unhikely. However, due to the uncenainty
inherent in Year 2000 isspes generally and those that are beyond
oot wontrel i particular te g o the final Year 2000 readiness of owr
suppliers. customiers, ulilitics, mterconnecting varmners, and joint
venture and investinent interesta ), there can be no assurance that
e of mofe such Lalures would not have o matenal impact on
widr results of aperations. liguidity or financial condition

Phere also may be Year 20000 pssues in customer premises
cyguipment (CPL L maluding CPE that we have sold or maintained
and CPE that 1+ used in connection with Y11 services. Although
the customer penerally s responsible tor CPE, customers could
attnbute o Year 2000 divruption i their CPE 1o a malfunction
wl our aetwork service We have taken steps 10 encourage many
o o customers potentially at risk o undertake the necessary
assessment and remedial activities 1o avord a Year 2000 problem
with therr equipinent and systems

We currently estmate that we wall incur expenses of apprott.
nrately 250 anlhon through 2000 a0 connection sath our antici-
pated Year 2000 ettorts, of which approximately $108 million had
been imcurred through December 31, 1998 The uming of our

capenses may vary and i not necessanly aimdicatnve of readiness
cltors o progress 1o date We anticrpate that a portion of vur Year
2000 expenses will mod be moremental vosts, but rather will repre
sent the redeploy ment of existing TT revouries We also expedt 1o
ncur certan capital improvement conts tiotaling approvmately
S$30 mulhiony o support this progect Such capital eosts (512 il
av of December M, 1995 are beang ancarmed sooner than angi
nally planned but, fir the most pan. would have been reguired in

the normal sourse ol husiness
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We have sipmibicant mimonty investiments in large telecommu
mcanons providers an Belgm, Denmack and Hungary Fach ol
thime companies has plans in place and activities under way o
address Year 26K tssues, and we are oftening adsice i these
efforts as prachical. Based an information seported 1o us, the esn
mated propartionate share ol these compames Year 2I00 conver
stom oty that will fhew through oo carmimgs 15 mol evpedted
o be matersal As s the case Tor muany companies outside the
Upited States, we behiese that the Year 2000 readiness ¢tons o
these varmiers has mol progressed as far as our awri, and we evpedt
that the Year 200 readiness comversion and 1esiing scnsties st
some of these comipanies sl continue i fate |99

A part of out Year OO0 ilialive. we aie ©4 uating soenanon
that may oveun as a resalt of the century change and are i the
provess o deselopang contimgency and business continuty plans
talored tor Year 2000 related oveuriences Contimgency planmng
W mamntain and restore seevice an the esent ol natural disasters
power Latlures and softw are related problems has been part of our
standdard operation for many yeors, and we are workimg o leveraye
this capencnce i the deselopment ol contngeney and continuty
plans tulored 1o meet Year 2000 related challenges This work 1
being performed through contrally managed. company wide teams
.ngum;nl hy cortical bosiness Toectons o diig ondening . peov
sioming. manntenan e, albing and powen) Dur contimgens y and
business contimuity plans are expected 1o assess the potential o
business diseuption i vanous scenarion, amd (o provide for key
vperational back-up. recovers aiad restoration alteratives
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The aboye mbonmation i based on our current best estimates,
whi W owere denved asing numerous assumptions of fulure events,
incluaing the avatlability and future costs of centain technological
and other resources. third-party modification actions and other
factors. Given the complexity of these 1ssues and possible unident-
fied nsks. actual results may vary materially from those anticipated
and discussed ahove Speatfic factors that might cause such differ-
ences include, among others, the avalability and cost of personnel
trmed i this areas the abihity 1o locate and correct all affected
computer code, the tming and success ol Year 2000 remedial
elforts of vur customers and suppliers, and similar uncertaintics

Etro cosvirsion On January 1, 1999, 11 of the 15 member
countnes of the Vuropean Union formed the Economic and
Monetary Union (EMUT) and estabhished fixed conversion rates
between their sovereign currencies and the future European cur-
feney unit, the euro. The participating countries agreed to adop!
the curo as therr common legal currency on that date. The sover-
cign “legacy ” currencies of these countries will continue in circu-
lation within the respective countries until at least January 1. 2002,
but not later thun July 1, 2002, At the time of final conversion,
new euro-denominated bills and coins will be used exclusively.

Our international business segment consists nf several signifi-
cant minonts investments in Europe, including Belgacom in
Belgium, Tele Danmark 1w Denmark and MATAV in Hungary
Of these, only Belgium is among the countries that will conven
1o the eurv, Tele Danmark, however, has operating affiliates in
several participating countries. Management al these companies
st address several issues related o the conversion, including
mereased prce transparency. the tas trestment of conversion gain
oF losa, changes W business pricesses and modification of infor-
mation systems [o process curi-denominated transactions during
the transition penod

Munagement at our European affiliates has mformed us that
ctlons o convert compuler systeims and business processes are
well under way and are scheduled to be complete by the time the
vonverston takes place. Based on information repened to s, the
estimated proportionate share of curo-related costs that will flow
through to our carmimgs s not eapected 1o be matenal,

EFFEcTs OF FOREIGN CURRENCY FLUCTUATIONS Our foreign
operations and mvestments in iernational ventures are subject

o certmn sk related to luctuation in foreign currency exchange
tutes bor the three years ended December 3, 1998, due to Muctu-
atons m the U8 dullar, we recognized some foreign exchange
transaction gains and losses and currency trunslation adjustments
related 10 these investments. Foreign exchange transaction gains
and losses incurmed by wholly owned subsidianies affected operat-
e ncorme Transaction gains and losses i urred by other interna
tonul ventures (prmanly equity -method investments) affected
other income, net Translation adjustments resulted in a change

i the investment halance and a corresponding change 1in accumu
lated other comprehensive imcome on the consolidated balance

sheet Wiile tuture Hlucteanions i curreney ovclange rates vould
impact results o opertations ot financial posien, we expecd
I’l“(lgl’l mvestments to voniimoe ['Illl\-ldl_' \-llﬂllF Tythiain fal tesulis
and eprmings growth

DISCLOSURES ABOUT MAKKET KISk We are oxponed to market
risks primanly trom changes in interest rates and forsign currency
exchange rates To manage our exposure o these (uctuations,
we incastonally onter inlo vanous hedging transadbons that have
been authorized according o dovumented paolicres amd proge
dures We donol use denyatives bor trading purgeeses, b geneiie
income or o engage in apeculative activits, and we never use
teveruged dery ainves

The amounts shown below represent an estiniated protential
loss that we could incur Trom adverse clanges in eithern imicrest
rates o furergn eachange rates. hased upon the salue at tisk s
mation model The value-at nisk model uses hintoncal biveign
exchange rates and interest rates o estimate the volanhins and
correlation of these rates in luture peoods 1 estunates o lossn
fair market value using the vanance/oo sanance statstical misdel
ing technujue. The model addresses numerous market nsk expo
sures, but specifically excludes equity-method imvestments. which
in our case are signihicant The Tair value Josses shown in the
table below are Tor a one-day time peneod waih o confidence level
of 95% tagnifving vur degree of conlidence that actual one-day
losses would not exceed such estimated lonses. i eavh vase. based
on the midel) Such estimated losses have no smpadt on our results
of operations or Ninancial condition

Deveniteer 11
(R |97

Risk category
Interest rates Y W 25
Forergn eachange

The value-at-rish mode! assumes that all teesveinents i these rates
will be adverse and disregards the possibibing that imterest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates could move 1 our Lavor: Actual

experience has shown that gains amd Tosses tend teootiset cach

other oner tune. and we bebiese s anbkely Fowe wouhd expen
ence losses such as these vver an extended poonad of tme These
amounts should not be considered progections of future boesses
stee actual results may ditter sigmibhicantly depending upon soin
ity in the global tfinancial markets

The G value ot nsk nweeased i PRIR due pomandy oo net
increase in Hived rate debt, ond tooan mcrease m the solandity ot
interest rates. mostly resulting from mucker actovary methe third
and fourth quarters of 1998 We sssued 825 bilhen of fived-rate
debtan the Orst yuanter of 1995 principally w Tumd our insestmeni
i Tele Danmark. and i December 1995 we redeemed STV Inllon
ol fixed-rate debt issued by four ol our Lusdhie commumications
subsidianes Value at ok related w forepn exchange bas no
changed sipmlicantly since December v1 1997 but as pre souly
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Ameriech Corporation and Subsidiaries

toklars i mudlions, except per share amuminis)
Revenues
Liowal service
Interstate network access
Intrastale network access
Long-distance service
Cellular, directory and other

Operuling expenses
Employee-reluted expenses
Depreciation and amortizaton
(nher operatng expenses
Hestructuning
Faxes other than income taxes

Operating iwoime
Intesest PRense
(hher inwoine, net
Invenne belore income taxes
Income taves
Net imcome
Earnings per commwon share
H.I.\u
Inluted
Average common shares vutstanding (millions)

Fou the vean ended Dhecriber V]

| I (L | L
S 7.0 S HhST2 S 78
hET 1| 2 ARS 2 AnS

541 Y 57
| 408 |, x4 1441
5 0idd SURTS SRTE]
17154 15,9498 14917
4.1t LusY 171
27 Y821 2 Ans
SAT0 5140 4,740

([}

(11 §T4 RS
12,9001 12199 11402
4 |ui VLo 1,508

il s S04
JA188 (Y] LA )
Lni? LM i37
RIRY] 1. 38K 1,183

S Lo $ 2249 S 20\
$ unm S M [
328 S 20M S 1w

1101 6 1AMK T 1103 s

The e commparns g medes ac an e gral pan of the financial daicmenis
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Amerttes it Corporation and Subsidianes

ol bues i el s
Assels
Current assels
Cash and wmporary cash investments
Recervables, less allowance for uncollectibles of $33K and $308, respecively
lnstallment receivable from TCNZ share sale
Muterial and supphes
Prepand and other

Propeny. plant and equipment
In service

Ulnder construction
Less, accumulated depreciation

Investments, primanly iternational
Other assets and deferred charges
Totul assets

Liabilities and shareowners” equity
Current habihities
Debt maturing within one year
Accouns payable
Other

Lasmg-term debt

Preterred vredits and other long-term habilites
Accumulated detered imcome txes
U namortized investment tax credits
Postretirement benelits other than pensioas
(iher

Sharcowneny” equity
Commaon stock, par value $1; 2.4 billion shares authonzed,
177 million issued in 1998 and 1997
Proceeds in excess of par value
Remvested carmings
Treasury stock. st cost (78 maflion shares in 1998 and 79 million shares in 1997
Deteried compensation
Avcumlated other comprehensive income

Toal babaline s and shargowners” equity

Av ol Dewenbey 8

(R Lo

5 | LR U]
11182 078

wan

148 T

0 U4l
S8 4,540
14 K54 W0
ARS T
(IR EERLT
220 0.518
14,38 IR RR
ERIRE 1751
026 5,100
AR $24 14y
5 Inly S i
[IIHA 1,955
Ldln 2,250
L] 7.0
5457 4610
1.502 1,150
s 1400
QUIN Jons
X uls

S MAS S IR0
PATT 1477
S.dut TR ]
455 4 190
AT RET il 45
IEL] 1N
U S T
w7 AT
LR $25.1W

Pl v otniratny fivy terbes @ i integral pant of the Dnancual saements
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Consolidated Statements of Shareowners™ Equity

Ameritech Corporation and Subsidianes
Sharcvwnens” Fguity
Accumulated  Commn Treasun
Priwceeds in hher Shares  Counmion
dollars in millions, Common  bEawessol Hemvestead  Treasuny Delerred  Comprehensive Insued Shares
eLccpd per d!!f'_m"] Tintal Sunh Par Value Famings Sink U ompensation Iwvene  imithioasy  comthions
Balances, December 31, 1995 $ 7018 § 11758 % S026 8 220 § (9K $ (1 S (KN 1178 &7
Comprehensive income
Net income 214 2
Unrealized gain (loss)
on securities, net of
reclassifications i il {
Foreign currency
translation adjustments (103) (10Y)
Comprehensive income 2,030 |
Dividends (51.078 per share) (1. 189) i1, 189)
Stock issued to employees ] 1 h 1
Treasury stock activity
Purchases 492) 1492 17
lssunnces 200 3y 134 %)
Reduction of LESOP debw 70 0
Other 24 24
Halances, December 31, 1996 7.687 1176 S.144 IS4 (1344 1 2509) sy 178 7t
Comprehensive income
N income .19 2,296
Unrealized gaim (loss)
on secunties, net of
reclassifications (R1] (R]]
Foreign currency
translation adjustments _ 1350 (R
Comprehensive imcome 1.943
Dividends ($1.148 per share) (1,260) (1,2600
Stock tssued to employees 12 | 1 |
Treasury stock activaty
Purchases (602) 1012y i
Issuances MR T2 h (AR
Acquisitions of businesses 98 43 55 (R
Reduction of LESOP dett 64 64
Other 43 s
Balances. December 31, 1997 8,308 1.177 53113 4090 (1645 (190 1537 1,177 TV
Comprehensive income
Net income 1.606 1606
Unrealized gain iloss)
on sccurttics. net of
reclassifications 9 4
Foreign currendy
translanion adjustments 7 137
Comprehensive income 3952
Dividends (51218 per shared (1.341) (1.341)
Treasury stowk activiny
Purchases (500) (X n
Issusnees 345 123 2 iy
Reduction of LESOP debr 76 76
Other 57 §7
Balances, December 11 1998 S$10897 8§ 1,177 § 5493 $ 6455 S9N $ i $ (v 1,177 78

The avomipany ing insics ane an (nicgral par of the financial statemends
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Ameritech Corporation amnd Subsidianes

Faw the year emded Deoemibwer 1]

tibillass o millwns | 1t [
Cash Mows from operating activities
Net income $ Lol v 2290 $ L1\
Adjustments o net iwome
Restructunng. net of lax 5]
Depreciation and amortization 207 25 2368
Deterred income taxes, nel s 218 122
Investment tax credits, net 125 (] (30
Capitahized interest {27 125 128)
Change in accounts receivable, net 20 M) (296
Change in matenal and supplhes 98 1T whi
Change in other current assety 1214 (AR b
Change in acoounts payable 15t 1w ad
Change i certam other current habilities 1an Wi L
Change 1n cenam noncurrent assets and labilities (954) h22) 1482)
Giain on sule ol TONZ shares (1,543
Giain on sale ol assets to Century Telephone Enterprises, Inc (17
Gan on sale of shares in MATAV — (ERY]
Gain on sale of Bellcore 142 -
Gann on sale of Sky Network Television of New Zealand - [l )
(ther operaling activities, net (14K} 115 194)
Net cash from operating activities 4810 4.510 1743
Cash flows from invesung activities
Capital expenditures, net (19584 1201 (24400
Additional investiients, including acquisition of new companies (3.201) (1074 1922)
Proweeds from sale ol TONZ shares 1.O7K
Proceeds from sale of assets 1o Century Telephone Enterprises, Inc. 22
Proveeds from repayment of GELS note 471
Proveeds from TONZ. share repurchase 152
Proveeds from saie of shares in MATAY 146
Proceeds Trom sale of Bellcore v
Proveeds from sale of Sky Network Television of New Zealand i
Orher investing activities, net i el 51
Net cash Irom investing activities 14 4l 1S tvATh
Cash flows frnom financing activities
Net change 10 shon-term deb 22 (AT K18
lssuance of Jong-term deht 2,500 651 a1
Retirement of long-term debt 11L.672) 132n M
Ihvidend payments Ay 24 T
Repuhiase of comnng stink RN [T 149
Proceeds from reissuance of treasury stock 401 i 146
bwsuance of preferred stock in subsidianes A2 250
Other financing achivities, net 2 2K 53
Net cash from financing activities 476 o 141K)
Net inerease tdecrease ) in cash and temporary cash investmenis (RILLN R 14
Cash and temporary cash investments, beginning of year 2w 145 (RY
Cash and temporary cash investments, end of year $ 1w $ 2w 3148

Th s conmpany ing motes ane an tsiegral pan of the Tinan sl statoments
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Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

(dollars i millions, except per share anwsunts)

1 Significant accounting policies

NATURE 0F operaTiONS Amenlech Corporation is one of the
world's fargest communications companies, providing a wide arruy
of local phone. dota. directory and oth - services 1o more than
12 milhion customers (primanily in Hlinois, Indiana, Michigan,
Ohio and Wisconsing

We serve more than 3.5 million cellular customers, more
than 1.5 million paging customens and approximately 1.2 million
SEUUNTY SCIVICTS CUSTOmers. The Ltl.'nl"ll}' RETVICCS b\).\lnfk.\ 15 o
ducted throughout the United States and Canada. We have cellular
interests in Norway as well as inlerests in communications compa-
mies in Belgium, Denmark and Hungary, We also publish business
directuories in Germany and other European countries

See our discussion of regulatory matters and competitive
environmient in (Other Matters in Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Conditivn
IMD& AL on pages 30 to 36. See also the discussion of our
pending merger in Note 16 on page 53,

Consoppanios The consohidated financial statements include
all of vur magonty -owned subsidiaries. We have eliminated all
sigmificant intercompany Iransactions,

Basiy 0F ACCOUNTING We have prepared the consolidated financiul
statements 10 accordance with US generally accepled accounting
principles tIGAAP). Wr have made certain reclassifications to the

1997 and 1996 balunces 1o correspond to the 1998 presentation.

USE OF ExTIMATES The preparation of financial statements in
contormity with GAAP requires management 1o make estimates
and wssumptions that attect the reporied amounts of assets and
liatuhities us ot the date of the financial statements and the reported
anounts of revenues and expenses dunng the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates

Material anp suernis We have stated inventones of new and
reusable matenal and supplies at the lower of cost or market, with
st penerally determmined on an average-cost hasis,

INvcose Taxes We Dile a consobidated federal income tas returm
At the end of each penod, we determine deferred tax assets and
labilities based on differences between the financial statement
bases of assets and liabilities and the tax bases of those same
assets and hahihine. using the currently enucted statutory tax
rutes. We measure delerred incormie Lax expense as the change

v 'thie net deferred income tax anset or habihty duning the year.
We also recognize deferred income taxes on undistributed equity
carmings from foreign investrnents when we do not control the
dividend flow back to the United States

Provysry, prast asneguirMent We have stated propenty,
plant and equipment prmanly at onginal cost. The provision for

depreciation s based poncipally on stnght-hine remasming hife
and straight-hne equal Ile group methods of depreciation apphied
e individual categones of plant with hike characiensiics

We use averape plant hives, generally ranging trom three to W
years depending upon the 1ype of asset In general, the lives o 2d
for cenaim commumcations assets and sllwe equipment hasve
shortened due to the use of newer technologies

Gienerally, when depreciahle assets are retired, the amoun:
at which such assets are carmied in propenty, plant amd eguipment
s charged to accumulated depreciation: The cost of maintenance
and repair of assets is charged to eavpense

Most of our property, plant and cquipment i located m o,

Indvana, Michigan. O and Wisconsin

TEMPORARY CANH INVESTMENTS W huve stited temporary cash
mvestments al cost, which approsimates market value We con
sider all highly Bguad, shost-termi investients with un onginal
matunty ol three months or less o be cash equivalents

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS W oceastonally enter o
forward contracts and swap agreements o hedge exposures o for
cign curteney eachange and interest rate nisks We include gaims
and losses on Toreign currency Torward contracts used Tor hedging
purposes in net meorme i the perod mowhich the gaim or loss
anses. We recond gams and losses that hedge ananvestment in
a toreign company as a component of accumulated other compre-
hensive income until such time as we reduce our interest in the
cormpany Cranny gnd losses on inlerest rute sWaps of interest e
“locks” are recorded as adjustinents o nterest expense

We use dervatives ina himited was 1o the tollowing purpeoses
* 1o manage Hnancial nsh,
* 1o hedge assets and obligations that we already hald, and
* o protedt our vash fows

We do not use dernaiives T generale imeame on engage
in speculative sctivily, and we never use leveraged denvatives

ADVERTISING CosTs We charge advertiving conts o expense
as incurred

Sortwage coses We have listoncally expensed most soltware
and reloted heense tees ay incurred. Begmmng m 1999 we are
required, because ot u change i GAAP, 1o capitabize a sigmificant
portion of software deseloped or abtained Lo our inteamial uswe
Sec our discusston of pew aovounting pronouncements i Ciher
Mutters in MD&A on page in

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [0 1998, we adopted Statement

of Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) 10, “Repsating
Comprehensive Income.” issued by the Financal Avcounting
Standards Boand (FASH). We repont accumulated other compre-
hensive tncome as a separale component of sharcowners” equity
The deferred tax effects of the unrealized gan of hims i available
fowr-sale secunties were o 85 muhor beneflit in 199K gkl eypense




of 82 million in 1997 and $1 million in 1996 We do not recognize
deferred mcome taxes on foreign currency translation adjustmenis

FARNINGS FER SHARE We compute hasic earmings per commuon
share by dividing net income by the weighted average number
of commaon shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted carnings per share are calculated by including all
dilutive potential common shares such as stock options Dilutive
potential common shares were 9319370 in 1998, 5,375,302
in 1997 and 4,448,568 in 1996. No adjustment 1o reported net
income 15 required when computing diluted earnings per share

STOCK oPTIoNs We account for our stock option plans in accor
dance with Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion 25, under
which no compensation expense is recognized in the financiul
statements uniess the plan is determined 10 be vanable in nature

REVENUE RECOGNITION We generally recognize revenues as we
provide services or deliver products to customers. We bill certaun
local telephone and wircless and security service revenues in
advance, resulting in deferred revenues. We account for vur direc
tory advertising revenues generally as billed over the term of the
related directory (usually one year) and amontize production costs,
which are deferred when incurred, to match the related revenu

INtTaNGIBLES We amortize intangibles, including goodsw il arising
from business combinations, on a strmght-line basis vver the antic-
tpated period of benefit, not to exceed 30 years, We peniodically
review amounts recorded as intangible assets for impairment using
expected undiscounted future cash lows

TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS  We (ranslate the assets and habilities
relating 1o our share of significant foreign operations to U8, dollars
al year-end exchange rates. We tramslate revenues and eapenses to
U.S. dollars using average exchange rates for the year Translation
adjustments are accumulated and recorded an a separate compo
nent of accumulated other comprelicnsive income

2. Investments

We account for our investments in Tele Danmark., Belgacom and
MATAV using the equity method of accounting

Teie Dansaux In January 1995, we purchissed o 4% interest
in Tele Danmark A/S, the national communicationy provider in
Denmark, from the Kingdom of Denmark fin approatmately
$3.1 billion. As pant of our investment agreement, Tele Danmark
repuschased and retired all remaiming shares owned by the Danish
government. effectively increaving vur equiry nwnership 1o
41.6% of Tele Danmark.

Based on the year-end closing price of individual Tele
Danmark shares, the aggregate market value uf our investment
was $6.1 billion as of December 31, 199% We ure anmWrlizing

poodwill of approsanuitely S 1T858 mulhon from this iny estment
over a penid of 40 years

Brrocacom In March 1990 a consetium led by Amentech final
zed 1ty agreement to acguire an interest in Belgacom S A the
national communications provider o Belgiom The consortiugm
purchased from the Belgun government o 4%.9% stake i
Belgacom, The consortium s purchase price was approsimately
74 billion Belgian francs, or $2.5 hillion. We have invested
approsamately SKC malhion for our 35% allocable consortium
share, which results in about a 17 5% investment in Belguoom
Adter piving eflect o Belgacom's unfunded pension obligation
and other adjustments o conform o U S GAAE our share of
goodwill from this myestient is approninately S84S mifhon,
which we are amortizing on a staght-line basis over a perisd
of 40 years
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MATAV We mnvested a total of $%3 1 anllion in MATAN the
natinal communications peovider i Hungars On November 14,
17 MATAN completed an imtal public ottening (1PO) o1 11y
shares. We sold 11 8% ot ous shares in the IPO and eealized cash
prineeds ol 3136 million. We recorded o pretan gain of $43 mil-
livris on the share sale and currentls hold W 0297100 shares,

of approamately 3% of MATAY Based on the year-end closing
price of indiadual MATAV chares, the agpregate value o our
resining shares i approsimately $1 8 ballion. We are amortizing
pomdw b ot approsimately S35 million, adjusted tor the share

sitleover a penod of 40 years

TrrEcom CorpoRanion or New Zeaiasn Lisiren In April
TR, we sold substantially all of our remarming 24 95% interest
i Telecom Corporatin of New Zealand Limited i New Zealund
Telecom or TONZ) i plobad sisch offering The fiest of two
installment naymcats was recenved 1in Apel 1998 with the second
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payment due by March 31, 1999. At the ume of the first install-
ment payment, we irevocably transferred our shares to a trusiee,
which is holding the shares in trust for the purchasers until the
final installment 1s paid. We retmined a secunity interest in the
shares, and cach purchaser remains personally liable until the final
installment payment is received. The purchasers will receive all
ordinary dividends in the interim period. The trustee will have one
vie for each share and will vote the shares based on instructions
from the purchasers

o
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Cash Flow Growth
feanh Now from operations in eillons )
Cash flow 90 operations increased o $4. K billeon i | Wl
up 515 over the past five years

In accordance with FAS 125, *Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities,”
we accounted for this transaction as a sale and recorded an after-
tax gain of approximately $1.0 billion. Because the receivable
from the cecond installment payment does not have o stated inter-
est rale, we are imputing interest at 9% . Net proceeds from the
initial installment were approximately $1.1 billion, and we expect
to receive total net proceeds of approximately $2.1 billion from
this transaction. We have hedged substantially all foreign exchange
risk associated with the final installment. Until April 1998, we
used the equity method of accounting for this investment.

SUMMARY OF RONCONSOLIDATED INVESTMENTS A summary of
our investments, which have not been consohdated, follows:

1998 1997

Tele Danmark S 401§ —
Belgucom 892 742
MATAV 534 506
New Zealand Telecom — 417
(¥her international investments 4 4
Tertal anternational investments 4,411 1,664
Dommiestic investments .
Total investments $ 4938 § 1751

In accordance with the equity metiod of accounting, we incrcase
our recorded investment for our allocable share of earmings tiudher:
g to purchase accounting and U'S GAAP), reduce the mvest:
ment for distnbutions (dividends) recerved and give effect to any
currency translation adjustments. We received dividends on such
invesiments of SE71 million in 1995, $164 million in 1997 and
$15.2 mulhion in 1Y%

The following tables present summarized financial information
of significant investments accounted for using the equity method
of accounting after wking into account all adjustments necessary
to conform 1o LLS. GAAP, but excluding Amernitech’s purchase
udjustments indluding goodwill

Year ended December 3 1594 1997 1996
Revenues $ 1L 8 B199  § 7400
Operating income 2803 1918 'UIN
Net income 1.751 723 1002
Weighted average

owned by Amenitech® 17 W% 22.2% 23 V%

* Hepeesenis Ameriicch v weighted average chare of revenoes

As of December 3] 199K fou?
Current assels S 4145 0§ 2421
Nencurrent ussels 13,826 HOHS 1
Current liabilities 5.168 4.565
Noncusrent Labiities [0 . S00)
Minonty mnterest HY 9l

OTHER INGESTMENTS In addition to acquinng our Tele Danmark
mvestment in 1998, we made several smaller investments for
approximately SO0 million in cash and assumed debt 6f approw
mately $40 million. At vanous times in 1997 we acguired assets
of several companies engaged in secunty servives through ow
wholly vwned subsidiary, Secunitybank trom Ameriech, fne
tor approximately $1 billion in cash and stk

We accounted Tor these transactions using the purchase methixd
of accounting We allocated our purchase rowe to individual assets
and habihties based on estimates of Tair value Revenues of all of
the above-mentioned secunty businesses o 9%, prior to our asset
acyuisitions, were approatinately 18 oallion




of $2 million i 1997 and $1 mullion in 1996, We do not recognize
deferred income taxes on foreign currency translation adjustments,

EARNINGS PER SHARE We compute basic carnings per common
share by dividing net income by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earmings per share are calculated by including all
dilutive potennial common shares such as siock options. Dilutive
potential common shares were 9,319,370 in 1998, 5,375,302
in 1997 and 4,448,568 in 1996. No adjustment (o reported net
income 15 required when computing diluted carnings per share

STOCK OPTIONS We account for our stock option plans in accor-
dance with Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion 25, under
which ne compensation expense is recognized in the financial
statements unless the plan is determined to be vanable in nature

REVESUE RECOGNITION We generolly recognize revenues as we
provide services or deliver products to customers, We bill cenuin
local telephone and wircless and security service revenues in
advance, resulting in deferred revenues. We account for our direc-
tory advertining revenues generally as billed over the term of the
related ditectory (usually one year) and amortize production costs,
which are deferred when incurred, to match the related revenues.

INTasGInLEs We wanortize intangibles, including goodwill anising
trom husiness combinations, on a straight-line basis over the antic-
ipated penod of benefit, not to exceed 40 years. We peniodically
review amounts recorded as intangible assets for impairment using
expected undiscounted future cash flows.

TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS We translar: the asscts and habilhities
reluting 10 our share of significant foreign operations to U.S. dollans
at year-end exchange rates. We translate revenues and expenses (o
LLS dollurs using average exchange rates for the year. Translation
adjustments are accumuliated and recorded as a separate compa-
nent of accumulated vther comprehensive income

2 Investments
We account for our investments in Tele Danmark. Belgacom and
MATAV using the equity method of gecounting

Tere Dasmark In Junuary 1998, we purchased a 34% interesl
in Tele Danmark A/S, the national communications provider in
Denmark, from the Kingdom of Denmark for approximately
$3 0 milhon As pant of our investment agreement, Tele Danmark
repurchused and reured all remaining shares owned by the Danish
poverninent, effectively increasing our equity ownership to
41.0% of Tele Danmurk.

Based on the year-end closing price of individual Tele
Danmark shares, the sggregate market value of our investment
was $6 | bilhon as of December 31, 1998 We are amortizing

goodwill af approvimately $EASY mullion Trom this investment
over o penod of J0 years

Brrcacoss In March 1996, 4 consortium led by Amernitech final
ized it agreement o acquire an interest in Belgacom 5 AL the
national communscations provider in Belgium The consortium
purchased from the Belgian govermment a 49 9% stake 1n
Belgacom The consortium’s purchase prive was approximately
T4 billion Belgian francs, or $2 8 billion. We have invested
approvimately $S865 mullion for vur 38% allicable consortium
share, which results in about a 17 5% mvestment in Belgacom
Alter giving eftect o Belgacom™s untunded pension obligation
and ither sdjustments to contorm w U1S GAAF, our share of
goodwill from this investment 1s spproximately $845 millon,
which we are amaortizing on i straight-ling hasis over a pernisd
of 40 years.
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MATAN We imvested a total of $830 muillion i MATAY, the
national commumeations prosider i Hongary On Nosemiber 14,
1997, MATAV completed an sminal public offerig (IPO) of s
shures. We sold 115% of our shares in the 1PO and realized vash
pricecds of $146 million We recorded & pretax gam of $43ml
lion on the share sale and currently hold MELO029. T shares,

o approaimately W% of MATAY Based on the year-emd closing
price of individual MATAY shares, the aggregute vilue of our
remaiming shares is approsimately $1.8 billion We are amortizing
goodwill of approximately SIRS million, adjusted Tor the share
sale, over a petnnd of 40 years

TELECOM CORPORATION OF NEW ZEALAND Lisuren In Apni
1998, we sold substantially all of our remaming 24 95% nterest
in Telecom Corporation of New Zealand Limited (New Zealund
Telecom or TONZ) i a global stock oftening Toe it of 1w
installment payments was recessed in Apnl T99K with the vedond




3 Picperty, plant and equipment
The components of property, plant and equipment were as follows
s of December 31:

1998 1997

Land - I T T S
Buildings 3,308 312
Central office equipment 14,658 14,335
Cable, wiring and conduit 14,605 1 3,960
Other 3140 1,450
35859 34020

Under construction 485 i
3344 34391

Less, accumulated depreciation 22,039 20518
Total property, net $ 14305 $ 13873

Derreciation expense on property, plant and equipment was
$2.475 million in 1998, 82,317 million in 1997 and $2,216 million
n 199

4 Income laxes

The components of income 1o expense follow:

19981997 199
Federal
Current $ 1568 § 994 § 989
Deferred, net 213 217 15
Investment Lax credits, net (25 (32) (36)
Total 1756 1179 LOMW
State, local and foreign - i
Current 3 191 138
Deferred, net R IR R
Total 215 09 148
Total income tax expense $ 2031 § 1LIERE S LI¥}

Total income taxes paid were $956 million in 1998, $1,151 million
n 1997 and $1.075 million in 1996.

The following is a reconciliation of the statutory federal income
t rate for each of the past three yeans (o our effective tax rale
(computed by dividing total income tax expense by income before
nome taxes)

- 1998 1997 1996
Statutory lax rate ' A50% S0 35.0%
State income taxes,
net of Tederul benefin il 29 28
Amortzation of
investmeni tax credits (0.3 (0.6) 10.7)
Other, net (1.8) 04 (1.4)

Effective tax rate 0% 317%  357%

Income taa expense was reduced by $12 miltion in 1996 as a
result ol a porhion of the beginning -of-year valuation allowances
no longer being required.

As of December 1. 1998 and 1997, the compunents of Tong
term accumulated deferred icome tases were as follows

199N 1947
Deferred tax assets
Postretirement and
postemplayment benefits s L s 1
(her (1] )
| 440 1LAINK
Deferred tax habilies
Accelerated depreciation
and amortizaticn 10l 1,787
Prepaid pension cost 627 bR
Undistnibuted equity
carmings from foreign
investments s R
Other (AN 287
LR B 256K
Net deferred tax liability $ 1502 8 IS0

As of December 31, we had valuation allowances agaimt vertain
defermed tax assets aggregaung $107 milhon i 1998 and $72 ol
lion in 1997 We do not separately report defermed incomme laxes
10 current assets and liabilitics, as they are not significant

5 Debt matuting within one year
We include debt matunng within one year as debd in the conips

tation of debt ratios Debt matuning within one year vonsisted
uf the following as of Devemnber 31

149K 17
Notes payable
Commercial paper § 2K % 2984
HBank loans 4 v
Other 12 ¥
Long-term debt maturing
234 408

within one year
Total $ 2619
Weighted average interest rate
on notes payable, year-end

3 L0

§ 4% S N

We have a commitied revolving credit facihity of $2 0 billion

The fee for this facility 18 0 038% per annum No amounis were
vutstanding under this facility as of Devcember 11 199K In akh
ton, we have entered into uncommitied agreements with a number
of banks for lines of credit totaling $1.K billion. We had $1 milhon
outstanding under these agreements as of December 11, 1998,

und did oo use the agreements during 1997 or 1990 The interest
rates on these lines are negotiable at the ume of bomowing There
are o significant commitment fees or matenal compemaling
balance requirements associated with any of these lines of credit
These lines. as well ax the revolving credit facility. arc avarlable
for support of commercial paper borrowing aml o meet shat
term cash needs
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6 longterm financing

Long-term debt conssts pnincipally of debt issued by our landline
communications subsidianes and our financing subsidiary,
Amentech Capital Funding Corporation (ACF). The lullowing
table sets torth interest rates and other information on long-term
debt outstanding as of December 31

Interest Rates Maturitics 1994 19a7
4 375% —6.0% 2000-2007* $ 1LEB9) § fdid
H128% -HO0%  2001-2028 1517 3462
KA25%-9.0%  2000-2003% 45 326
9, 1% - 10.0% 2006-2016 iy Ut
5.54¥ +4.524
LESOP (Note 8) 7 114
Capual lease obhgations 6 Y
Orther 2 1
Unarorized discount, net (36) {38y
Total § 5557 8 4610

L by $280E pllinan ALF 4 9% debentures maturing in 2000 with a past optsm
Py hkder jy MY

Scheduled matunties of long-term debt, including principal pay
ments on LESOP debt (see Note 8), are $235 million due in 1999,
S147 mitlion due in 2000, $606 million due in 2001, $127 millon
due 1 2002 und $477 million due in 2003

In December 1998, we redeemed approximately $1.3 ballion
ol lung-term debt, including morgage bonds, issued by our land-
line commumcations subsidinnes. We called this debt in anticipa-
ton of refinancing at more favorable interest rates in 1999 Interest
rates on the extinguished debt ranged from 6.25% w B.5% and
muturities ranged from 2004 o 2026,

In January 1998, we issued 31,75 billion of long-term debt in
five separate tranches through ACFE. The notes and debentures bear
interest al annual rates ranging from 5.65% 10 6.55% and mature
between 2001 and 2038, In February 1998 we issued $750 million
of S KRG unsecured Eurodollar notes, due February 19, 2003,
through ACEF We used proceeds from these borrowings primanly
1o fund our investment in Tele Danmark.

As of December 31, 199K, we had available Tor issuance through
our landline communications subsidianes and ACF $1.2 billion
n upsecured debt secunties through shell registration statements
with the Secunties and Exchange Commission (SEC)

PREFERRED STOUK [SSUANCES BY SUBSIDIARIES [n April 199K,
an Amentech subsidiary 1ssued through a private plucement
4,250 shares of stated rate auction preferred stock (STRAPS)

1 four separate series. Net proceeds (rom these issuances tolaled
L322 milhion Dividends acerue on the STRAPS at varying rates,
which are adjusted penodically through separate auctions on
cach series. Dividends are cumulatve frivn the date of issuance
The dividend rates fur cach series ranged fron 4.15% 1o

4 USG as ol Pevember AL WK

&

In June 1997, one of vur wholly owned subsidianes isaued
$250 mulhion of prefemred stk an a provate placement The holders
ol the preferred stock may reguire our subsidiary o redecin the
shares at uny tme after May 20, 2004 Holders receive quarterly
dividends based on a mlling three month London Interban® Ofter
Rate (LIBOR) The dividend rate for the Devember 31 JWIR pay
ment was 6 O5%

As of December ML 199K, another wholly vwned subsidiany
has outstanding $X5 mallion of Senes A Prelernted Stoch
(7 04% , subjgect o mandatory redemption i 2001 and $6d) ol
hon ot Seres B Preferred Stowck 18 anable rate, 4 4% as ot
December 11, 199K, not subject 1o mandatory redemprion )

All preferred stowh ivsued by subsidianes v included in Other
loag-term liuhiliies on the consolidated halance sheet

" Other nssers and delerred ha s

The companents of other assets and defermed changes are as follows

14Y49K 17
Goodwill S LOTT S YK
Avquired secunty servives
Cuslemerns a8 §12
(nher intangibles 544 ARE
Total intangibles, net 2074 208
Prepawd pension asset 1681 1.3ad
Other 2.2 1,742
S Suh % SIbh

Conts ol aoguining sedunty services customerns generally are bemng
amrtized onver 1) years, the expected hife when acguired fnm

a third pany. Our goodwill generally s amortized onver 0y can
Avcumiulated amortization of mtangibles swas S W6 nullion in 19
and $27 3 mullion in 1997

8 Employee beneht plans

PENSION AND RETIREE HEALTH ASND LIRE #LANS W maintan
noncontnbutony delined benelal pension plans tor substantially
all emplisees, as well as pentretirement health care and Hile insue
ance plans for substanbially all renrees and e dependents

The components of peasion cost toredits s are as tullows

Pensuy Henetits
199K 197 19

Benefits carmed dunng the year 5 210 S Iad 36T
Interest cost vn projected

benefit obligation 451 S50 4ul
Expected retam on plan assets (LR 3, PT65
Net amortization and delermal

Transstin obligatin (RN LAl [RRL (2

Other n 19 &2

Net pension credits LS TR SR 2 F S S TR Y

_
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tbollars i mallions, except per share amounts)

[rebt and deferred compensation decrease as the trustee makes
prngipal pavinents As of December 31, 1998, we had 537 millon
e huded i fong term debt and $77 miilion included in long-term
debt imatuning within one year with respect to the LESOPs,

We maintain savings plans that cover substantially all of our
employees. Uinder these plans, we match a cenain percentage of
eligihle contnibutions made by the employees to the plans. The
LESOP provisions of the savings plans became effective January |,
19960 Unader these provisions, our matching contributions are allo-
cated o employees in company stock from the LESOP trusts. We
release Amernitech stock for allocation w employees in the propor-
ton that principal and interest paid in a year beam 1o the total prn-
cipal and interest due over the life of debt outstanding in the trusts.

We revond our matching contributions to the plans as compen-
saton expense. Any change in the required contribution as a result
of leveraging this obligation is recorded as a gain or loss in other
income. The amount expensed and coniributed to the LESGPs
totaled S50 million in 1998, $29 million in 1997 and $34 million
in 1996 Interest expense incurred by (he savings plans was
SY mithon in 199K, $15 million in 1997 and $21 million in 1996,
Dividends paid on shares of stock held by the trustee used o
partially sausty debt repayment requirements were $42 million
for 1998 and S41 million for bath 1997 and 1996, As of
December 3. 1998, we had allocated or commiited 35,256,838
shares W employee accounts, leaving 9,875,714 shares unallocated.
As of December 31, 1997, we had allocated or committed
32,154,838 shares w employee accounts, leaving 12,977,714
shures unallocated

We have entered into agreements to lend up to $123 million 1o
one of the trusts through December 1, 2004, As of December 11,
1994, (he trustee borrowed $94 million from Amernitech at rates
ranging from 6 1% 10 % 4% The trustee borrowed an additional
200 molhon i Janvary 1999 at 5.6%.

Restrucrumine In March 1998, we announced plans to sig-
mifiwantly reduce future operaling expenses by the end of 2002,

As pant of this cost containment program, we recorded a pretas
restructuang charge ol STO4 million (364 million alter-tax, or
SO0 per share) in March 1998 pnincipally to cover the costs of
consulidating secunty monitoring centers and closing 53 company-
owned cellular retatl stores. The charge includes employee-related
costs (prancipally severance) of approcimately $54 million for the
terminution of the employment of approximately 5,000 employees,
av well as ather costs ot approximately $50 million related to
leane terminations and asset write-downs. We accounted for the
employee costs of the restructurimg charge in sccordance with

our exiting severance plans and following FAS 112, “Employen’
Accounting for Postemployment Benefis” We accounted for the
other restructunng costs n sccordance with existing accounting
Hterature b restructunings The charge does not include approxi-
mately 550 employees wentified for employment wermunation
when we acguired certam securnty services assets in 1997

We ineluded the cost ol termimating the emplovment ol these
employees in our purchase price

Employee reductions under the Manch 1998 restructuning peogtam
were LATR in 1998 Termunaton costs related o these employees
were approsimately STS nulhon Wee alw meurmed nonempl nee costs
ol approvmately $13 millon in 199K reluted 1 this restructunng.
resulting in an averual balanve of approvimately $76 million as of
December 3, 199K Sentlememt guins of approvimately $3 nnllhog
associated with this restructunng were revonded in 19495

Masanrsesi WORK FORCE REDUCTIONS Eflcctive January 1
1995, management employees who are asked to leave the company
under certan condimons will receive a severance payment under
the Management Separation Benefit Plan iMSBIY We aovount

for this benefit in accordance with FAS 112, “Employers’
Acvounting for Postemployment Benetits.” aceruing the separation
cost when incurred. The number ol emplovees leaving Amenitech
under the MSBP, other than those leaving as pan ot the March
199K restructunng discussed above, was 249 0 1998 271

1997 and 618 1 9%

Settlement gains result trom the payment of lump-sum distn-
butions from the penston plans to lormer employees and are
recorded as o credit woother operating evpense Settlement gains,
net of termumation costs, under the plans were ST pullion i 14
20 malhon i 1997 and $33 pallun i 199 We fund the involun-
tary plans Liom vur operativais and made cash pavments ul $4 mul
Lo an 199K, S5 muthon in 1997 and $17 million w1996

9 Commitments

We lease cenan tactities and equipment used i our vperations
under buth operating und capital leases Rental expense under
operating leases was $243 million an 1998, $220 milhon in
1997 and $219 mallion i 1996 As of December V1 T99% 1he
aggregate munimum rental commuments under nongang ciable

icases were as tollow s

Years Operating Capital
1999 5 04 5 1
2000 N2 3
2001 i 3
20012 St |
2003 51 |
Thercafier AT I
Toda! minimum rental commtments §  S54 1

Less: executory cosis
inlerest vists o
Present value o mimmimum lease paymenis S

2y =

We commenced a 10-year agreement in 1996 with THM Global
Services (IBM), to perform certam information technology ser
vices we previously performed THA alsoos sesponsihle Tor the
vonsohidation of our data centers. The terms of the agreement and
subseguent amendments specily payments o THM thar uo not
exceed about $200 milhon i any year Actual charges trovn [HM

—



may increase of deviease based in pan on usage, growth or other
datas prowessing reguirements. We may terminate the entire agree-
feens 1pon payment of a predetermined fee, wihich vanes based
on the reason tor termination und the year terminated.

11U Financial instruments and derivolives

The following table presents the estimated fair value of our finan:
cial instruments as ol December 31

19494 1997
Carrying Fair  Carrying Far
Value Value Value Value

Cash and temporary
cash imvestments  § |34 $ 139 8 2w % 2

bt K327 K644 7.749 8,037
Dher assets 1434 1,421 907 REK
Oither hiabihioes 76l TRY 476 S09

We wwed the following methods and assumptions (o estimate the
tasr value of finuncial instruments!

CASH AND TEMPORARY CASH INVESTMENTS The carrying value
approsimates fuir value because uf the short-term matunty of
these instruments

Desr The currying amount (mcluding ecerued interest) of our
debt mutunng within one year approximates fair value because
ol the short-term maturities involved. We estimated the fair value
ot vur leng-term debt based on the year-end quoted market price
for the same or similar issues.

OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES These financial instruments con-
sist primarily of long-term receivables, other investments, financial
contracts, customer deposits und preferred stock of subsidiaries
We based the fuir values of these items on expected cash flows,
avaluble market pnces or market comparables. Fur value of other
Tabhities meludes the effect al interest rate switps and forwards
discussed helow

FINANCIAL CONTRAUTS, INCLUDING DERIVATIVES We occasionally
enter into foreign currency forward contracts 1o hedge exposure W
adverse exchange nsk, Also, we use interest rale swaps 1o manage
mterest rate cxposure. Related gains and losses are reflected in

net income. As of December 31, 1998, we had contracts giving

us the nght to deliver foreign currency valued st approximately
S1.0 billion (83,0 billion in 19497). As of December 31, we also had
entered it nterest rale swap agreements (o change the interest
rate on notional amounts of $395 million in 1998 and $527 million
in 1997, We adjust interest cxpense to give effect to obligations
under the swaps. We are exposed to credi nsk in the unlikely
event of nonperfurmance by counterparties and the fair value of
the swaps excecds their carrying value. As ol December 31, 1998,
the fair value o) these interest rute swaps was 525 million less than

carrying value As of December 11, 1997, the taie value of the
interest rate swaps was $15 mullion less than carrying value

11 Other ingame nel

The components of other income. net are as tollows

Income texpense) 144K 1997 | 1
Equity carmings of affiliates* % L O ] S 2 I
Iaterest on company -owned
Infe insurance and
related programs 4 4h bR
Gan on LESOP 52 44 15
Gain on sale of TON/ shares 1,844
Charge for early redemption
of long-term debt (1K) |
Gain on sale of assets o
Century Telephone 170 -
Guin on sale of Sky Network |
Television of New Zealand 53 I
Gain on sale of shares in MATAV 41
Gain on szle of Bellcore 42
Loss on forward contracts related
o Tele Danmark acquisition (54) (1)
Other, net (4 2 -
Total S 2088 8 m S AMO

* Prnwly Tele Dennark Belgaom ad MATAY an 1995 gl TUNZ Belgaom
anad MATAN i 1997 ancd 1996 Kosuls i 1997 i lusde an SAT mnlhion restna tur

g vharge at iBelgsom

12 Shareowneis oguity

STOUK INFORMATION Our certilicate ol incorparabion authorses
2.4 hallon common shares. The cemtiticate alwo allows 30 nullion
shares of preferresd stock (par value $1 per share) and 30 millon
shures of preference stock (par value ST per share)

As of December 31, 199K, we have repistered 14,279,340
shares of our comman stock wath the SEC for future issuance
We may issue these shares from tme 1o e tor the comipletion
o avquisstion s fon the payiment o divadends o Lor arther cospue
fale purpses

STouek Prass In Apnl 1997, shareovners approsed o lonp-term
stock meentive plan Through our T98Y and 1997 plans, we grant
incentive compensation o our aflicers and other employees in
the form ol stoch oprons, stock appreciation nghts, restneted
stock and performance awards. The centives granted are bused
upun termy and conditions and are subject to certamn limitations.
determined by a commitice of the board of directors. which
admanisters the plans The plans authore the isuance of up
o 120,000,000 shares of common stock over a 1k year pernd
All future grants will be made under the 1997 plan

We may grant stock options under the 1997 plan as either
mcentive stock options or nengualified siock optic v We have
not granted any options at less than Lur market value ax of the date
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(holbars in mlbons, except per share amounts)

of grant. Under the 1997 plan, stock options and stock appreviation
rphts may oot be granted at less than the fuir market value on the
date of grant except in the case of awards to newly hired or pro-
moted employees when the fair market value on the date of hire
of promotion may be used. Additionally, under the 1997 plan, the
per share exercise price may not be repriced or surrendered as
constderation in eaxchange for a new award with a lower per share
exercise price. The options have a maximum life of 10 years and
vnie day from the date of grant. We may gramt stock appreciation
rights independently or together with stock options. Stock appreci-
ation nghts permit the optionee (o receive stock, cash or a comb
nation thereo! equal 1o the amount by which the fair market value
i the exercise date exceeds the option pnce. Substanually all
stoch options granted on or following December 16, 1987, are
excrcisable after one year in equal increments over the following
three years: Beginning in 1994, we awarded grants of nonqualified
stoch options with dividend equivalents to certain employees

Infore aon regarding options granied under a long-lterm
incentive plan, which eapired in 1994 and under the 1989 and
1997 plans, 15 as follows

Incentive Nongualiticd

Stock Options Stock Oprions

Shares  Price®  Shares  Price”

December 31, 1995 11,336 $10.29 27951 434 $1903
Giranted —_ — 13,760,832 $29.18
Exervised (11,330) $1029 (4,391,874 S 1808
Canceled or expired = — (1.666,368) $24.99
December 11, 1996 - — 35.652,024 $22.98
Granted -~ — 17,226,368 $3015
Exercised - — (7.859,530) $19.83
Canceled or expired - — (4,309,148)  $27.53
December 3L 1997 - — 40649714 $25.96
Cirunted — — 9697193 $45.09
Exercised — — (6.773.262) $21.36
Canceled or expared - — (1.638,244) $35748
December 31, 998 - — 41,935 401 $3042

* Marghied ascrage

Ihe above stowkh options hase the following charseteristics
as ol Devember 310 19498

Remaning

Shares Life Shares

Gramt Yewr  Ouistanding Price* (i years)® Exercisable
19KY.U3 2ISO083  S1628 24 2150083
994 17618 1928 51 17618
15 557014 20 R4 ol 5,570,324
1 M K Wl INT U R R 1.1 4,816,787
17 10477081 030 8.1 1671271
(LY CRLEN Y 4500 9.3 2111
41,4935 4010 17,524,191

* Mopghnesd aserape

Ax of December 31, addinonal »hares uvnlable under stk
options with dividend equivadents were 11440082 1n 199K,
LG9 i 1997 and TELR20 i 1996

All stock appreciation rights granted under the plans have been
ssued 10 tandem with nongualified stock options. The exerciwe
of a nonguahified option or a stock appreciation nght cancels the
related nght or option. We have not issued any stock appreciation
nighis after December 31, 1990

As of December 31, 1998, 22338 shares of inmiperfuimance-
hused resticted stowh dre outstanding under the plans Sharcowners’
equity rellects deferred compensation Tur the unvested stoch
awarded. This amount s reduced and charged against operations
(together with any change i market price) as the employvees vest
in the stock

In 1995, the FASB issued FAS 123, "Accounnng lor Stk
Based Compensation ™ This pronouncement reguires us o caleu-
lnte the value of stk options at the dute of grant using an option
pricing mokdel, We have elected the “pro forma, disclosure only”
option permutted under FAS 123 instead of recording a charge
o aperations. as shoswn below

1R 107 1420

Net invonmne As reprwtad 3 L S s
b USR] 202 27

Farmngs por s As neponiad hase L) 2iM (K2
As repurtod diluted 128 20K 142

Pro fonma b 128 20y 141

Pro fomma diluted L 2us Il

Because the FAS 123 method of accounting has not been apnlicd
to options granted pnor to January 1, 1995, the resuliing poo tonma
compenyation cont may ol be representative of that 1o be expeciald
in future years We adjusted pro forma net iwome fog disadend
equivalents expensed as a vanable plan

Our weighted average assumphions used in the pncimg model
cod resulting L valoes were as follows

19498 1947 (R0
Risk-free rate S6is 6 24 5 17%
Expected dividend vicld® ol 174N 180
Expected option Bile 1in years)
ewithout dividersd equivalenis) 4.0 )28 125
Expected option Iile 1in yeurs)
twith dividend equivalents) 540 ALY RRLY
Expected stock pnce volanliny A 200 Jo T

Girunt date value

twithout dividend equivalents) $ 1007 S sS4 $ 448
Girant date value

(with dividend equivalents) S 1595 S0 § KU

* The operoms grandcad ot dis sdend cuuns aberts tabwant 208 F fodal st grasied
an PRI s T e 2R e were posoed avsumiog the dis skt miaikd
wourue to the opaonee ot he ey pected Dl of the o




13 Addonal financial inkarmation

Devember
19494 1997

Other current labilities
Averued payroll s 68§ Ik
Avcrued taxes 1,408 ™
Advance billings and customer deposits 70 178
Dividends payable 151 Vi
Accrued interest 183 127
Other 1,002 (LR
Total § 3476 8 2250

Interest paid was $555 million in 1998, $534 million in 1997
and $544 mullion in 1996, Advertising expense was 3283 milhon
in 1998, $354 million in 1997 and $270 million in 1996

Net income was reduced by $56 million in 1998 and $24
million n 1997 as a result of reclassification of currency transla
ton adjustments from other comprebensive income. This resulied
from the sale of our TONZ and MATAY shares previously discussed
Reclassifications from other comprehensive income as a result
of sales of secunues did not exceed $10 million i any year

14 Segment Information

We have three reportable segments ax defined by FAS 111,
“Iisclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information.” They are communications, information and enter-
tunment. and international, The communications segment provides
telecommunications services such as landline telephone service,
cellular telephone and paging services, and call management and
data services to business and residential customen primanly in

the states of Hiinois, Indiana, Michigan, Ohio and Wisconsin
Communications services also inc'ude network access and inter-
connection services for interexchange carmiers and competitive
providers of local telephone service. The information and enter-
Lunment segment provides printed and online directones fur busi
ness and residential users, security and alarm momitonng services
for himes and busingsses, and cable TV services. The international
segment manages our investments in foreign ventures, which

we account for using the equity method of accounting. In addition
o these reportable segments, we derive revenues from other
momeportable segments, including lease financing services

Odur reportable segments are strategi business uiits o aggee
gations ol strategie business unils that offer different producis
or services They are munaged separately based on dillerences
custinmier base, strategic objpectives o regulaton cnviroament
With the exception of the mtermational segiment. managenient
evalugies segment performance based upon direci margin, which
represents total teventes less diredt expenses attrbutable s tha
scgpment Results 2re pormaltzed lor one-lune ilems .'\1;“:.1}:1‘nlcl'll
does nat allocate corporate overhead, centrahzed rtuormation
I('a;hlmhlb:_\ (T womts, nterest smame, intcrest CAPCON, other
AoROpCraing e or income Lanes when measunng segment
resulis. Corporate overbiead and FT costs are shown as @ redoneal
g tem in the revonciliation of segiment profit o consolidated
operating meome below The international segment 1y evaluated
based on income Trom equity -methad investees e tore one-time
tems The accountng policies of the segments are generally the
same as those desenbed an Note 1 Fallowing s a summary of
wdommation about segment profits, assets and capital expenditunes
tincluding business acyuisiiions

Communications

1N 1wt 149496
Revenues fnsm
external customers S 15021 S 14208 S TRLUNT
Interse gment reyenues 14K 194 183
Dreprecianon and anwrmization 210K Y20t 2.207
Nel income i
ety e thuond investees 1 - | \
Segment profit 1.0 55061 1K1
Segmenl assets 14 .8 19,043 LRI ES
Expenditures [
sepient assely g 2748 21K
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idodlans 0 malfions, except per sha ¢ amounts)

Informanon and entertainment

1998 1997 144
Revenues from
cutemal customers 5 1993 % 15K 0§ 1418
Intersegmeni revenues 9 2 2
Depreciation and amortization 177 124 74
Sepment profil 527 ARN 521
Scpment assels 2.R6K A2 1,164
Expenditures for
ACLITENT uxsels 186 | 86 149
Internanional
194K 1997 19
Incormne trom equity-
miethind investees $ W8 280 % 233
Sepment asseis 7438 2328 2,502
Expenditures for
sCRIMEnt assely 3,143 == RYH
Chther b aness achivilies
1948 1997 1949
Revenues from
extermal customers 5 156 % 1M S ¥
Resentes Trom operatng
ESUTTETIEN 92 2 6
Deprecianion and amortizanon 130 109 69
Profit 9% 77 (5
Asneln 1479 12 953
Expenditures for
long-lived dssets 13y 103 L

Follow g are reconcibanons of reportable segment information
£

1o tinancial statement amounts

Roesenues
1998
Total revenues rom
fepaniable segments $ 173N
(ther operating revenues 248
Corporate resvenues

andd ehimnations (365)
Tl consolidated
(EAENUEs $ 17154

1997

$ 15,945
26

(183)

S 15.99%

1996

$ 14807
145

135

S 14917

Profu
199K o7 s

Communications and

inlormation and

colerainment margins $ 69U S niMe S S
Margin trom other

husiness activities i T7 il
Corporate and elimimations 12, 1%t 125N LLRYT
Operating income betor

ne-tme iems 4.7 LI 1.50%
One-time ttems

N OPCTALNE IoIme [T iy
Operating incomse 4,101 LI 1508
Interest capense nil 08 S14
Income Trom international

eyjuity -method investees VTR 289 AT
Other income (expense) Sty hi 78
(hher one-time ilems 1621 u IN
Pretax income S S617 0% Inake 8 LA
Ansels

199N g7 (R

Total assels liw

reportahle sepmenis $ 208 $ RSV 8 2T
Onher assels 1479 |, 2 ULE]
Corporate asscis and

eliminanons 1L ANS) g 1o
Total consulidated

assels Sy s 25w s 2

GEOGRAPHIU INFORMATION W Bold investments in enbities of

conduct operations 1 g number vl countnes outside the Unied

States. Substantudly all of our overseas veangres are accounied

for using the equity method of accounting, undet which we div mn

record the revenues amd expenses of the sentures i our operaling

resulis isee Note 2 Speaifically, less than '3 o comsolidaled

revenues for all years presented are from oulside the United States

A summany of vut long-lived assets by country s a0 follows

Long-hived assets

1W4R
United States S 2, um
Helgmm R
Denmurk V401
Hungary 414
New Zealamd
(ther countries 1
Tonal $ 25169

17 [

S 1sim? S 1T6SK
142 MM

S0 M1 e

417 i

12 1%

S 2079 S 19NN




PRODUCT INFORMATION Most of our revenues are derived from
the provisionng ol lundlhine telephone service and supporting
prowducts Products or services that contnibuted more than 5% of
v solidated resenues other than those of our landline telephone
business are as follows

19498 1997 1996
Cellular and paging % 1% 9%
Directory advertising K% L K%
L4 Giuatioly hnoncal wlormation {unaudited)
Diluted
Operating Net  Earnings
Tevenues Inconie Income  per Share
(R
Iat Quiarter R I TR 1 TR, T L A S
Ind Quarter 4,289 1164 1,707 1.54
rd Quarnter 4,200 1.063 6dS {).58
4th Quarter 4,442 1,061 162 .68
Total S 17054 0§ 4193 8 3nD6 8 32
|7
s Quaner S 1LESY S 912 S 5 5 044
2nd Quarter 1, URG 1,041 537 0.49
Ard Quarner 4,00 962 (k) 0.56
4th Quurter 4,147 HE4 Ly 0.55%
Total SIs9u% % 3799 8 2296 % 208

The first quarter of 1998 includes a one-time pretax charge of
STH million (364 million after-tax) for restructuning related to

@ cost contanmient program, as well as a one-tume pretax charge
ol $54 mulhon (834 nullon after-tax) for a currency-related Fair
value adjustment i conjunction with our Tele Danmark invest-
ment The second quarter of 1998 includes a one-lime pretax gain

of $1.5 ballion 151 0 billion after-tax) related to the sale of substan-

tally all of our TONZ shares. The fourth quarter of 1998 includes
a one-time pretas Charge of $38 million (324 million after-tax)
tor the comts ol varly redemphion of long-term debt, as well as a
pretax gam of $170 million (3102 million after-tax) from the sale
of certan telephone and directory assets to Century Telephone
Enterprises, Inc

The second guarter of 1997 includes a one tume alter-ta
charge of $X7 mulhon related o our share of the costs ol s waork
forve restructunng at Belgacom The third quarter of 1997 includes
aone-tme pretay gan of $52 million (337 millon alter-tax)
resulting trom the sale of our interest in Shy Network Televivion
of New Zealand Several other significant income and expense
ttems were reporied in the fourth yuaner ol 1997 However. the
net result was not matenal woresulis Tor the quarter or year

We valoulated earmings per shire on a guarnter-by -quarter
basis in acvordance with GAAP Quanerly EPS ligures may
et total EPS ton the year due to Nuctuations in the number
of shares oulsiamding

We have i luded all adjustments necessary Tor s Lar statemen
of results T cach period

16 Merger Agronmen

On May TL 199K, we oty announced sath SBU
Communiwatons Ine (SBC) a delinitive agreement Lo merge
an SBC subsudiary with Amentech in a trsaction in which cach
outstunding share of Ameritech common stis b tother than chares
owned by Amentech, SBC or thewr respective subsidianes ) will
be converted into and exchanged tor 1 V16 shares of SHC common
stock. Alier the merger, Amentech will be g whally vwned sub-
sidiary of SBC The transaction has been approsed Dy the board
of directors and shareowners of each company I s intended
o be avcounted Lor as a posding o interests and wall gpuality fou
federal incomie tax purpones as a tan-tree eaongamzation. The
merger 1s subjedt e the satisfaction of certam conditions amd
regulatory approsals

The transaction. 1f approved by regulatons and completed,
will constitute a change in control of the company Stk oplions
granted o cmployees prior o smibation ol the merger sest Tally
upon the change in control, and certam change in control agree
ments and emplinyee severandce plans become operatine Thiese
apreements and plans have been descnbed inour meonst recent
proay statemeni

We have capritalized direct merges pelated coms aggpregatimg
approvaniately 22 mullion as of Devember 31 1998, pending
completion vf the merger




Amertech le

Board of Directors

54

idership

Richard C. Notebacrt

51. charrman and chiel executive officer of Ameniech
since 1994 president and chiel operating officer
1993 1994, vice chawrman 1993, president of Tnduna
Bell F89- 1992, vurin operations positiens

1969 - 19RG Dyrector, Aon Corporation. Seans,
Roebuck and Co Amentech Jirecton since 19491

Donald C Clark

67. chairman ementus of Housebold Tndematiomal
Inc since 199, chairman Y84 - 199, chiel
excounve officer WH2- IR, Durecton, Armstrong
Workd Industnies, In, The PMI Group. Inc
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Ameritech director singe 1989

Melsin B Ganodes

fud, charman and chiel executive officer of
Wirner- Lambent Company since 1991 president
and chief operating officer 1985 199] Direvtin
Warner:- Lambent Company, The Chase Manhatian
Corporation, Univys Corporation. Amenitech
director since 1M

Hanea Holborn Geay, Ph.D

68, presadent ementus and Hurry Pran Judsoo dis
nnguished service professar of history, University of
Chuicago since 1993, president and professor of history
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director since 1983
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4, chanrman sinee 1999 and ¢hue! exevulive
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Ine.: presadent and chiel operating officer 1977 - 1994
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siwe 19KA

Sheldon B Lubar
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vanous Deey s Funds. Amertech director since 19931

Aothur € Murines

S, b vean aned Choel evevubive ofDwer ol Sedns,
Homhan b and o s #RIA Chammiuen awl el
exvenudive ollhcer of Sears Merchandisz Linmip
1) WS Dhrentw Sears, Riebuin bl O
Federal Reserve Bank ol Chicaga Amcnitedh
dires tor vinee [99%

John B MLy

A8 peesadent and o hie? exevuative olher of
BASK ONE L OB ATTON sinee 1998 hasiian
and chiel evevuiive olliwgr of ANE O8]
DO R AT TON 19T WS Directon, BANK 0N
CORPFORATION, Cardinal Health, Toe - Federal
Hoame Loan Muoogage Corpsiration, Pasiwentech
Inc Amentedh dires tor singe 19491
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f% hatrman canenitus ot The BIFConadowh
Company vinee 19T hanman 1979 19497

chiel exevutive atlwer 1979 19900 Ehied o
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It Prsdential Lot e Ciiipans of At a
Mapciiles B difeu td s 1998
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Glossary

Accoss chaorge A fee that local phone compantes charge long-
distance camers for connecting long-distance calls o customers
on the focal network.

Access ling A ling for voice, data or video reachimg from a local
phone company to a home or business

ADSL (Asymmetnic Digital Subscrber Line] A technology that uses
the existing copper phone wiring that serves vireally all homes
and businesses to provide customens network access o the Intemet
and other popular multimedia and data services at speeds SO e
faster thun an ordinary phone line.

ATM [Asynchronoos Transter Mode) A technology that transimits
data, voice and video at high speeds. ATM breaks cusiomen” dats
itto fixed-length cells and transmits them in bursts in order W pro:
vide etficient use of network capacity.

Broadbond A transmission facility that has a capacity or
“bandwidth™ greater than a voice-grade phone line. Broadband
lacilities — fiber optics and coaxial cable, for example — may
carry numerous voice, data and video channels at the same tine

Caoll managemen! sarvices Services that add value and comven:

yence for phone customers — such as Call Waiting, Call Forwarding
and Caller 1D These services are sold to customers individually

and i packages

Customer g oemises eguipment (CPE) Communications
cyurpment owned by customens. including telephones, Taxes
and switches

Uit communications Digital transmissions through wired or wire-
less networks, wsually hnking computers.

Diaetal An ol smative to traditional analog communications,
digatal sy steins transport information in the Is and Os of computer
cinde tor improved clanty and guality,

el Cammumeatons Commission [FCC) The U.S. federal
agency responsible for regulating the interstate aspects of telecom-
mumctions actvities

finanal Accounnng Standurds Boord [FASB] The independent
hexdy responaible for setting accounting and financial reporting
stundards to be followed by U8, business enterprises

Highcopoacity lines Lines sold to customers that have large-
volume data commumcations needs — such as long-distance
varmiers, Internet access providers and large companies

interconnoction Allowing a competitive local service provider
0 use the loval phone company s network, or elements of the
nelwaork, Lo pron e service 10 1y customen

Intere s hange carters (10 s] Those companies primanly involved
i prosading long-distance voice and data ransmission services —
sich as AT&T MCT WorldCom and Sprint

[nternet The global web of networks thal connects computers
arownd the world, prosadimg rapid aceess o information from

tiliple saurves

itreiatate revenues The portion of revenues regulated by state
rather than federal authontes.

56

ISDN [Inegroned herwcoy Digtal Betaors | A service that
carnes vonce, data atd sideo at the same b CFters seseral tiies
the capacity ot a consentional phone line

tandlne Relers to consentional twired) phone service
Ll e cess The lwal completion ot long distance valls

Lo al access onag vampont area (LATA] The boundary witlun
which a loval company mas prosade phoae senvive A LATA
usually s ventered aroumd a ity of other wlentitiable communits
ol interest

local wechonge g (1HC ] One of the vompanies primarly

s elved i providing loval phone service and acvess 1o the liwval
phone network, metuding Amentech in Hhnois, Indiana, Mighigan,
Ohie and Wisconsin A competitive local exchange carrier, or
CLEC, i a company that provades sach services i competituom
with the established lowal pronader

Long diatamoe Ve, data and video commmunications o lvatns
beyond loval servive areas Amentech currently i+ prohibited Hrom
carrying vertam landline long-distance communivations beyond
local areas

Managed weracas Services that give business custmens one
paint of contict tor all communications and computing necds
ncluding phones, personal computers, videsconterencing. local
arca networks, PBXs and more

Personal communioationy seove oy (PO S Wireless servives
such as cellulur-hike phone servive and tworway paging. that use
rudhio frequencies acetioned by the 1CC

Provomraton A government sale of part or all ol a naional conpany
o prvate firms and imveston

Secunty services Services that help secure people and property at
Funnie and at work — such as burglar and hire alarm sy stems,
clined-circut camerss 1CCTV y and electronic card access

SCINET The North Amenican liher-opie transmission standand
used to ofler high-speed transpont of digital information.— vonee
data and viden. SONET enables connection sith networks und
eyuipment from multiple seador

Swat heet munotes ol vse The measure of tme used to bill long-
distance companies for secess 1 the local phone netwaork

Total reture Stwock price apprecition plus remsested divudernds
Wouce qreade vogoeatent A channel or ather portion at g high
capav ity aveess hine that can he used ko transint voree or data
teathil

Voice maid A service that avtomatically answers catl amd
distribuites messages

Wieless Vowe. data and video communteations that use radio

frequencies sathier than wires for tramsmission Includes cellular,
paging and personal communications services (PCS)
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Information for Our Investors

Mo rehere 1o help you Please call KO0 233 1342 for inquinies
onstowk rcluted matters — aneluding dividend payments, direct
depositof dividends, stock transfers. dividend reinvestments,
odd-Jorsal=closteentitivates and address changes. To hear or
receve infonnation regarding our lutest dividends and earmings,
please call BOOYEL-024K8

Uirect deposit of awidends This service gives you access to your
muoney on the day at s issued with no cost to you. Direct deposit
ol dividends iy the satest. most confidential way Lo get your
money into your checking or savings account To recerve

an enrollment form, qust call KOO 233.1342

The Amertech Direct Services Investment Plan [ADSIP] This
plan ollers many mnovative fealures to give investors grealer
canvenience and fexit ity woinvest in Ameritech. For more
intormanion or a prospectus, call 800 2331342

Sotekeeping Convert vour certificate shares to book entry so
you'll never have oo worry about theft, loss of destruction of your
Amentech stk certificateis ) For i furmation, call 800 2331342

Semiannual report and quarterly results A semiannual reporn
for all registered and street-nume shureowners 1s scheduled for
August Shareowners can call B0 984-0248 tor financial and
ather news delivered by phone, fax or mail

Requests for addimonal information Additional financial
mformation v aviluble without charge. To request a copy of
the Amenitech Fact Book. Annual Report on Form 10-K, the
Amertech Bepon to the Commumity of an audiocussetle version
ol thes annual report, contact

San L. Macne

Vive Presadent ol Investor Relations
Amentech Corporation

WS Wacker Dnve, 35th Flor
Chicago, L 6066

112 750-51583

How 1o contact Amernitech

KOO 233-1342
200 324-0308
EER 403-9700

In the Unned States
Outsade the Umited States. call collect
TRDATY Teletypewnter

Internet www amentech com/investor
I manl share vwnen igamenicch com

Wiite 10 us of

Amertech Shareowner Services

o Fiest Chicago Trust Divimion of EguiServe
O Hox 2958

Jersey Oy, NJ 07303 255K

for information obout Amentech services and products

NEK) TR -S40
SEN) 776-14K7
KON 220 -(rr4
RIM) HI2HA2N
KRR WS40
KN YRR -KYT7
KO 1279146

Consumer Servives

Greneral Business Senvives
Cellular Services

Team Data

Secuntylink trom Amcritech
Global Calling Sersices

All other

Annual meeting The 1% annual mecting of shareowners will
be held at 9 30 a m Central Time on Wednesday, Apnl 21, 1R,
at McCormick Place South, Grand Ballroom, Lesel | 230

S Mamn Luther King Jt Dnve, Chacago. Hhimos

Electronic voting As an added convenience, we uller shareowners
the opponunity to vore then provy via the Internet or by telephuone
Registered shareowners can lind us at hitp //www vote by net com,
or you may call wll free. B0 652-86K3, 24 hours o day seven
days a week Strect-name shareowners can Tind us at
hitpiprosy vote com, of you may call the wll-free numiber

on the votng instruction form 24 hours o day, seven days a week

Trading and dividend information
(restated to reflect stiwh saplit effective December V1 1997)

Ihssdends
Migh Lare Cline e fared
1998
Ist Quarter § 49 KN S IR TS $ 49 44 $ 30
2nd Quaner 80025 4150 44 KK i
rd Quarter 213 41 1N 47 80 ]
Ath Quaner vl 28 47 K fHiAN V18
1997
st Quarter $ 1250 $25 0 S MInd $ 2825
2nd Quarnter 1% KA 2760 g7 K28
Yed Quuarter 15 1] U oty 1108 JR2S
4th Quaner 4414 Wil LT W

Stock trading information Ameniech stock s traded i the Unied
States on the New York. Boston, Chicago, Pacitic and
Philadelphia stk exchunges Ttalso s listed on the London
Tokyo and Amsterdam stk exchanges and on the Swiss stock
exchanges ol Basel. Geneva and Zunch

Key dividend dates*

Hewomd Daie
Apnl 1, 1er May | 1w

July 10, 199 Aupust 1w
Oxtober 10, 19499 November 1. 1WA
January 10, 2006 February 1 2000

Paviiwent 1hae
Int Quarter
2oad Qrrarntct
Ard Quarter
4tk Quarter

* Subpect 1o discretion of the Amweritey B bogrd of directoes

Amernitach stock Ticker symbol — AIT INYSE)
Newspaper stock table listing — Amentech or Amnch

Repor! prnted entrely on recycled paper @-
© Copynpght Amerntesh Corporation, 10499




Ameritgchiwill be the world’s premier
provider of full-service communications
for people at work, at home or on the move.
Our goal is to improve the quality of life for
individuals and to increase the competitive
effectiveness of the businesses we serve.
As we move and manage information for
our customers, we set standards for value
and quality. Ameritech’s competence
reaches worldwide, building on our
strength in America’s vibrant Upper
Midwest. Customers can be assured

that we will assume only those tasks

we can do exceedingly well.

Amertech. 30 S Wacker Dive. Chicago, llhinos 60606  BDO 257 0007 www armentech com




EXHIBITD

Ameritech Corporation's 1998 Annual Keport

(See attached)




EXHIBITE

Statement of Managerial Capability

SBC National, Inc. (*SBC National™) is a corporation created and existing under the laws
of the State of Delaware. Its parent corporation, SBC Communications Inc. (“SBC"), is a
holding company whose subsidiaries and affiliates operate predominately in the communications
services industry. SBC's subsidiaries and affiliates provide landline telecommunications and
related services in California, Texas, Missouri, Oklahoma, Kansas, Arkansas, Nevada, and
Connecticut and wireless telecommunications and related services principally in those states, as
well as Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, New York, Rhode Island,
Virginia, Washington D.C., and West Virginia. SBC has investments in teleccommunications
companies that serve selected markets outside of the United States, including Mexico, Chile,
South Korea, France, South Africa, the United Kingdom, Switzerland, and Taiwan. SBC also
has investments in Israel, where it provides cable TV, directory publishing, and sofiware

develupment.

Further, upon the completion of its merger with Ameritech Corporation, SBC will
provide landline and wireless telecommunications and related services in lllinois,* Indiana,
Michigan, Ohio, and Wisconsin; wireless and related services in Missouri,* Minnesota, and
Hawaii; and security and monitoring services in most of the United States” largest metropolitan

areas. It also will have significant investments in the European telecommunications industry.

SBC National’s executive officers have been recruited from SBC and its affiliates, and
are among its key managers with considerable experience in the telecommunications industry,
inciuding operations, interconnection, network, marketing, sales, finance, regulatory and legal
issues. Each has served in an executive capacity with SBC or one of its affiliates in excess of
five years. The following provides a brief synopsis of the managerial experience of each of SBC

National's executive officers.

* As a result of the pending merger with Ameritech Corporation and Federal
Communications Commission regulations, SBC will be required to divest itself of overlapping
cellular properties in [llinois and Missouri.




STEPHEN M. CARTER, President

Mr. Carter has been ¢cmployed by SBC since 1987, when he became Managing Director
of its newly created United Kingdom subsidiary, Southwestern Bell Telecom, Ltd. In 1993, he
was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer of that subsidiary. Subsequently, Mr.
Carter assumed responsibilities for all marketing, sales and operations for Southwestern Bell
Telephone Company’s (“SWBT") inter-industry customers and national account customers, as
well as operator services and public communications in the five-state SWBT region (Texas,
Arkansas, Kansas, Oklahoma, and Missouri). In 1997, Mr. Carter was appointed President of
Special Markets for SBC. In that position, he was responsible for wholesale operations,
including marketing, sales and operations for interexchange carriers and local wholesale carriers,
as well as national accounts, operator services, and public communications for three SBC
subsidiaries: SWBT, Pacilic Bell, and Nevada Bell. He ultimately was responsible for
interconnection agreements with the wholesale customers of SBC's subsidiaries.  Since
November 1, 1998, Mr. Carter has been responsible for SBC's National-Local operations in his
capacity as President-Strategic Markets, and has served as President of SBC National since its

inception.

TIMOTHY HARDEN, Vice President, Operations

Mr. Harden has over 18 years of telecommunications experience and is responsible for
the design, development and deployment of the network and systems necessary to support SBC
National’s competitive local exchange activities. He also is responsible for the day-to-day
operations. SBC National represents Mr. Harden’s third “start up™ endeavor. He was on the
ground floor with the start up of PacTel Business Systems as Chief Operating Officer and as
President and CEO. More recently he served as Vice President & General Manager of the Pacific
Telesis broadband effort in California where he was responsible for all of the operations of that
$5 billion effort, including network engineering, design and construction; cuslomer care centers;
and systems designs and implementations. Mr. Harden gained broad telecommunications
experience in a series of executive assignments with Pacific Telesis Group, most recently as Vice
President and Geuneral Manager of SBC’s Industry Operations where he had responsibility for all
wholesale operations for access and local (CLEC) customers. Also, he previously served as

Vice President and General Manager of Industry Markets, Vice President and General Manager




of the Pacific Bell North Coast Regional Business Unit, and President and Chief Executive
Officer for PacTel Business Sysicms. Other assignments have included stints in operations,

customer service, and swiiching 1n both Northern and Southern California.

DAVID R. LOPEZ, Vice President, National-Local Regulatory

Mr. Lopez began his career with Southwestern Bell Telephone in 1979. He has held
numerous executive positions with his responsibilities covering a vast array of disciplines,
including public relations, accounting, human resources, regulatory and operator service. He was
appointed to his current position of Vice President, National-Local Regulatory in December of
1998. Prior to his current position, Mr. Lopez held the position of President of Southwestern
Bell Telephone-Oklahoma. In this capacity, Mr. Lopez directed all regulatory and external
affairs activities for the state of Oklahoma. Prior to his appointment as President of
Southwestern Bell Telephone-Oklahoma, Mr. Lopez served as the Assistant Vice-President,
External Affairs in the State of Texas. In this capacity, Mr. Lopez managed public affairs and

community reletions activities.

EDWARD L. ECKHART, Vice President, General Counsel/Secretary

Mr. Eckhart has practiced law since 1976. He began his career with Southwester Bell
Telephone in 1981 and has heid a variety of positions with responsibilities for state and federal
regulatory issues. Mr. Eckhart possesses considerable experience in telecominunications law and
local exchange carrier issues. Prior to his recent appointment as Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary at SBC National, Inc., Mr. Eckhart held the position of General Attorney and
Assistant General Counsel at SBC Communications in San Antonio, Texas, where he was
responsible for state regulatory matters related to the pending merger with Ameritech. Prior to
his assignment in San Antonio, Mr. Eckhart held the position of General Counsel-Austin. In this
capacity, Mr. Eckhart directed all legal issues for Southwestcrn Bell Telephone-Texas regulatory,
which included legislative and regulatory activity, local exchange carrier negotiations, and

arbitration support.




PETER A. RITCHER, Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Ritcher joined SBC in 1987 and has held various positions in the Tax Department
including serving as the director of all state and local tax matters for SBC and its affiliates. In
1996, Mr. Richter was appointed Vice President Finance/Chicf Financial Officer for Cellular
One in Chicago, where he was responsible for all financial activities related to the Chicago
cellular market. He held that position until he was appointed Vice President & Chief Financial
Officer of SBC National. Mr. Ritcher has extensive experience in all areas of finance, including
analysis, general accounting, financial reporting, budgeting, procurement, payroll, compensation,

accoun'~ receivable, collections and facility management.

MICHAEL D. WAGNER, Treasurer

Mr. Wagner joined SBC in 1977 and began has carcer with Southwestern Bell Telephone
Company in the Controller's Department. In 1991 he accepted the position of Director-Investor
Relations. While holding this title, Mr. Wagner was responsible for management of SBC's
relationship witi the investment community, which included dissemination of all financial and
operational information to this community. Mr. Wagner filled the position of Chicf Financial
Officer with SBC International from December 1997 to May 1998. In May 1998 Mr. Wagner
assumed, and still retains, the position of Director-Corporate Finance for SBC. In this position,
Mr. Wagner directs the development and implementation of cash investment, cash management,
financing, foreign exchange, and financial risk management policies and strategies for SBC, its

existing subsidiaries and proposed affiliates or investments.

This biographical data of its managers shows that SBC National possesses the technical,
managerial and leadership expertise to provide alternative telecommunications service in the

State of Florida.




EXHIBITF

Statement of Technical Capability

SBC National, Inc. (“*SBC National”) clearly possesses the technical expertise to provide
alternative local exchange service in the State of Florida. SBC National anticipates staffing its
operations with a significant number of employees who will have a broad range of experience and
expertise in provisioning facilities and services in the local, long distance, wireless, paging,
Internet access, security services, and messaging markets. These employees will build and
acoire the network and systems, and will develop the product distribution channels and service

strategies to enable SBC National to compete successfully.

Detailed planning currently is underway for the initial network deployment strategy. The
key elements of this infrastructure and design will be fashioned in a manner that will best serve
customers. It will consist of voice switching equipment; data switching and routing equipment,
fiber transport; customer access equipment; service platforms (ie., network features and
functions that allow the provision of custom services); operations support systems (OSS); billing
and customer care infrastructure; as well as adjunct infrastructure such as floor space, power

equipment, interface equipment, and alarm and monitoring equipment.

Evaluation of customer expectations, cconomic analyses, vendor negotiations, service
provider negotiations and other critical discussions have commenced and are designed to
determine the optimal initial network implementation strategy that will be deployed. SBC
National anticipates the results of these analyses and negotiations to produce an initial network
implementation strategy consisting of a combination of (1) depioying its cwn network
infrastructure; (2) leasing capacity from other network providers; (3) strategic partnership
agreements with other service providers; and (4) combined utilization of unbundled network
clements and some resale of telecommunications services from incumbent local exchange
carriers. One of the guiding principles being used in finalizing this network implementation plan
is that SBC National will have as much control as possible of all network elements owned, leased

or otherwise obtained to ensure the high level of service quality, . chnical excellence,




performance guarantees, and overall customer satisfaction for which SBC is recognized in the

worldwide markets it currently serves.




EXHIBIT G

Price List

SBC National, Inc. will file a price list prior to the commencement of operations.

1631431
66271/85130




Dic & ey gy

1. This is an application for ¥ (check one):
(¥') Original certificate (new company)
() Approval of transfer of existing ccrtificate:

Example, a non-certificated company purchases an existing company and desires
to retain the original centificate authority.

() Approval of assignment of existing certificate:
Example, a certificated company purchases an existing company and desires to
retain the certificate of authority of that company.

() Approval for transfer of control:

Example, a company purchases 51% of a certificated company. The Commission
must approve the new contrelling entity.

2. Name of company:

SBC National, Inc. (“SBC National”)

3; Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.):
Not applicable

4, Official mailing address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, zip
code):

David R. Lopez

Vice President, National-Local Regulatory
SBC National, Inc.

175 E. Houston Street, Room 4-A-60

San Antonio, Texas 78205
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